

4

ele:

Final Report

6

July 1969

## STIMATING PRODUCTION AND REPAIR EFFORT

Prepared for:

OFFICE OF CIVIL DEFENSE OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF THE ARMY WASHINGTON, D. C. 20310

OCD CONTRACT DAHC 20-67-C-(135 OCD WORK UNIT 3311C

This document has been approved for public release and asis; its distribution is unlimited.

Reproduced by the CLEARINGHOUSE for Federal Scientific & Technical Information Springfield Va. 22151



STANFORD RESEARCH INSTITUTE Menlo Park, California \$4035 • U.S.A. Final Report Detechable Summery

### ESTIMATING PRODUCTION AND REPAIR EFFORT IN BLAST-DAMAGED PETROLEUM REFINERIES

BY: F. E. WALKER

Prepared for:

OFFICE OF CIVIL DEFENSE OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF THE ARMY WASHINGTON, D. C. 20310

OCD CONTRACT DAHC 20-67-C-0136 OCD WORK UNIT 3311C

SRI Project MU 6300-620

This document has been approved for public release and sale; its distribution is unlimited.

OCD REVIEW NOTICE

This report has been reviewed in the Office of Civil Defense and approved for publication. Approval does not signify that the contents necessarily reflect the views and policies of the Office of Civil Defense.

------

٠,4

ς.

July 1969

#### DETACHABLE SUMMARY

#### Method Developed

1

The study effort was directed toward developing a method for rapidly estimating to what extent petroleum refineries would be affected in the event of a nuclear attack on the United States. The method developed enables the user to estimate the repair requirements, and the corresponding production capabilities, of petroleum refineries after blast damage from overpressures of 0.5, 1, 5, and 10 psi. Thus, it is possible to predict what a given level of repair effort will buy in terms of petroleum products, when it is known which refinery is hit, and with what overpressure.

The estimating method was used during the study to produce the following major conclusions:

- After 0.3-0.5 psi, a refinery can produce the same proportion of products but at about 70 percent of the initial capacity. This reflects the assumption that at this overpressure refinery capacity is directly related to remaining cooling tower capacity.
- After 1.0 psi, a refinery temporarily shuts down, but with minor emergency repair to process controls, it can operate at about 50 percent of initial capacity.
- After 1.5 psi, a refinery is totally shut down, primarily because of process control damage by roof collapse in each of the numerous individual refining process control rooms. Vulnerability at higher overpressures is summarized in Section IV.

Children was

The physical items needed for refinery repair after blast damage are:

- · Lubor in terms of man-days and major skills
- Equipment, by type
- Material, by type

Repair labor requirements were developed by study of the average size refinery of each type at each selected overpressure. The requirements are shown graphically in Figure 2, as best-fit curves of data from average refineries, indicating a range of man-days for a given initial refinery capacity at a specified overprossure level. This report discusses how the repair requirements are developed and describes all the elements that are covered. Analysis of conclusions indicates that repair costs calculated by the method developed are consistent with overall average costs of building new refineries.

#### Repair Decision

.....

After blast damage to petroleum refineries, certain decisions must be made before repairs to restore production are begun. The decisions will hinge on what products are needed and what repair effort is available.

Reclaiming refinery capability for light fuel products such as gasolines, jet fuels, and diesel fuels (most likely to be in demand during a period of postattack repair) will require decisions in three areas and will be governed by what products are most needed, and what minimum grades will meet users' demands. The three decision areas are:

- The order of repairing refinery processes
- · The stage to which the repair is to be made
- The substitution of an alternative crude oil for the refinery's "normal" supply

Reclaiming reiinery capability for producing specialty products, such as asphalts and lubes, will require decisions on where to produce these products, for example, whether to:



- · Fully repair the specialty refinery
- Partially repair the specialty refinery, the comparable specialty processing units of fuel, and the complete processing refineries
- Repair the comparable portion of the fuel and the complete processing refineries rather than the specialty refineries

#### Application of the Method

The following sequence for the repair of petroleum refining processes, emphasizing gasoline production, is used in this report:

Repair Stage	Repair Effort
A	Repair the crude oil topping processing unit
8	Repair processing units that convert heavy petroleum fractions to gasoline-type products
С	Repair processing units which upgrade gasolines
Ø	Repair all other processing units producing nonfuels

Using this sequence of repair stages, the reader can refer to Figure 2 (based on average refineries) and determine, for any refinery capacity at a specified level of blast overpressure, the level of repair effort in man-days that is required to restore the refinery to 100 percent production. For example:

A 24,000 B/D refinery is expected to require 60,000 to 90,000 man-days of repair labor to return it to 100 percent of initial capacity after 10 psi overpressure

Also, for any refinery product, by type of refinery, the reader is given tables and charts from which to determine the amount of a product (as a percent of initial refinery capacity) that can be produced after

each successive repair stage. These relationships for gasoline are illustrated in Figure 3. For example: ٢

Before blast damage, gasoline constitutes 50 percent of initial total products from a small fuel refinery. After 10 psi overpressure a 24,000 B/D small fuel refinery has the production capability shown below.

Repair	Cumulative	G	asoline Production			
Repair Stage	Repair Effort, Man-Days	Percent of Initial Total Products	Percent of Initial Gasoline Production	B/D		
A	28,000	15%	30%	3.600		
B	61,000	29	56	7.000		
C	76,000	40	80	9,600		
D	77,000	50	100	12,000		



į

Results of sensitivity analyses on refinery sizes show that for refineries of the same type, but of different sizes, the stages of repair effort (Repair Stages A, B, C, and D) are proportional to the corresponding repair stages of the average size refinery.

This means that, for any refinery type, an estimator can simply caluulate the ratio of the individual repair stage to the cumulative repair stage for the average size refinery of a particular type, apply that <u>ratio</u> to the repair requirement estimated for repair to 100 percent capability (total of Repair Stages A, B, C, and D) of that refinery size, and derive repair requirements for the other repair stages. This is illustrated by a simple example, below.

Given: 24,000 B/D small fuel refinery Repair Stage A = 28,000 man-days Repair to 100 percent capacity (A+B+C+D) = 77,000 man-days Ratio  $\frac{A}{A+B+C+D} = 0.36$ 

Then, to find the repair requirement for Stage A for a small fuel refinery of a different size;

90,000 B/D small fuel refinery Repair to 100 percent capacity (A+B+C+D) = 285,000 to 335,000 man-days Ratio of  $\frac{A}{A \times B+C+D} = 0.36$  (given above)

Thus: 0.36 x 285,000 and 335,000 = 103,000 to 120,000 mandays for Repair Stage A

Each refinery has its own "normal" input of crude oil. Following an attack, conditions at producing oil fields or in the transportation

aystem may necessitate supplying a refinery with an alternative crude oil. The "normal" crude oil input to fuel and complete processing refineries is considered to be one of the three "major" U.S. crude oil types; "normal" input to specialty refineries is considered to be one of three representative special crude oil types. The effect of supplying a refinery with one of the other two of the three major U.S. crude oil types rather than with what this study judged to be that refinery's "normal" supply of crude oil is illustrated by the following example:

A 24,000 B/D small fuel refinery, after 10 psi overpressure, with its normal crude oil and alternative crude oils has the production capability shown below.

	Total Pr	oduction as
	Percent of I	nitial Capacity
Repair	Normal	Alternative
Stage	Crude 011	Crude Otls
A	44	25-28%
в	62	28-33
с	79	31-37
D	100	33-42

#### Summary of Results

The method for estimating production capabilities and requirements of refineries after a nuclear attack is summarized in Tables 1, 2, and 3. Table 1 gives, for each type of refinery, the product percentages available when the refinery is undamaged (0 psi), and at two levels of low overpressure: the range of 0.3-0.5 psi, with no repair effort, and 1 psi, with only emergency repairs to the crude topping unit. Table 1 can be used for any size refinery of the type specified; it gives the normal product mix and shows the immediate effect of damage in the low overpressure ranges, where refineries are still operable.

ł

i

ŧ

i

į

ł

# INITIAL CAPACITY AND PARTIAL PRODUCTION CAPABILITY AFTER 0.3-0.5 PSI AND 1.0 PSI BLAST OVERPRESSURG<sup>\*</sup>

		ā	roduction Cap	ability as (	a Percent	
	Blast		of Initial	Refinery Ca	pacity	
Refinery Type	Cundition, psi	Gasoline	Kerosene	Diesel	Other	Total
Large fuel	Undamaged	54%	155	14%	175	1005
	0.3-0.5	38	10	10	12	70
	1.0	26	80	1	Ø	8
Small fuel	Undanaged	50	15	15	8	100
	0.3-0.5	35	11	10	14	70
	1.0	26	60		<b>a</b>	20
Complete processing	Undanaged	47	15	15	8	100
	0.3-0.5	33	11	10	16	70
	1.0	24	2	2	12	8
Asphalt	Undanged	11	10	11	68	100
	0.3-0.5	80	17	60	47	70
	1.0	~	1	7	11	15
Asphalt and lube	Undamaged	ŝ	ŝ	15	75	100
	0,3-0.5	4	n	10	53	20
	1.0	r.	7	e	17	22
Lube	Undanaged	42	15	15	38	100
	0.3-0.5	30	11	10	19	70
	1.0	21	sé	۲	•	8

•

,

•

į

ł

ſ

;

.

日間の日本 ちらえ 後期をありまう 大田な 御たる中 しょうの 静をたたたり

1

「小田市の」

\* Using "normal" crude oil.

5-8

	<b>e</b> .
PAIR STOT	OVERPERSURG
BY KE	BLAST
PABILITY	GRATER
3	8 0
NOL	194
50	1.5
	<b>HER</b>

ç

Ĵ

.

			of Initial Re-	finery Onpe	city	
Refinery Type	Stage	Gasoline	and Jet Fuel	Diesel	Other	Total
Large fuel	<	13%	5	35	132	375
	#	58	•	7	51	8
	U	33	0(	۵	13	3
	٩	54	15	14	11	100
Small fuel	×	15	7	7	15	13
	ø	8	•	•	15	63
	U U	ę	12	12	15	19
	۵	50	15	15	8	190
Complete processing	¥	11	ŝ	ŝ	11	32
	¢	11	9	¢	11	31
	U	8	10	10	16	8
	<b>e</b>	47	15	15	2	2001
Asphalt	<	3	10	10	19	5
	4	æ	10	10	15	2
	U	10	10	n	5	8
	٩	11	10	11	89	100
Asphalt and lube	•	1	*	12	3	8
	8	I	ŝ	14	74	2
	U	*	6	15	75	
	a	ŝ	ŝ	15	75	100
Lube	~	11	ŝ	ŝ	11	32
	8	22	6	6	31	5
	U	57	11	11	2	73
	٩	42	15	15	R	100

\* Using "normal" crude oil.

8-9

Ì ;

# REFINERY REPAIR REQUIREMENT BY REPAIR STACE AND HEAST OVERPRESSURE LEVILS (Labor as 000's of Man-Drys, Cumulative)

Raffron m.	Initial	Repair	Blact Ou			
addi Aranne	Capacity, B/D	Stage		inssaud	e Level	ī
				-1	5	10
Teni ažres	78,000	•	;			1
		: 6	61	54	73	97
		¢ (	8	9 <b>8</b>	136	224
		וט	36	126	176	28.6
Swall Sur		a	36	128	178	
Teni Trawa	24,000	•	¢			ŧ D Q
		: 0	יני	10	15	88
		4 (	N)	19	28	61
			-	24	33	76
Complete nuccessing		a	r	24	36	11
Sursecond anather	194,000	•	<b>0</b>	140	901	
		Ø	62	217	004	
		v	LA L		0.14	22
		-	4 6	987	397	633
Asphalt		1	78	289	402	640
	12,000	<	-		u	
		8	~	' a		
		U		Þ (	12	17
		- c	¢ 1	<b>0</b>	14	2
Asphalt and lube	1	1	'n	11	16	*
	2,000	<	-1	2	¢	
		8	I	) v	7 1	0
		U	1 .	n	2	1
		) c	-	ŝ	80	18
Lube		à	54	9	10	22
	4,000	v	1	0	•	
		•	-	) (	4	Ŧ
		U	• -	<b>n</b> ,	*	8
			4,	m	ŝ	14
		1	T	Ŧ	9	18

Ĵ

1000

At overpressures of 1.5 psi or greater, repair to refineries becomes necessary for them to operate. Table 2 gives product percentages after each of the four repair stages for an average size refinery of each type, thus showing the incremental production that each repair stage affords.

Table 3 gives the man-days of repair effort required at each repair stage and for each level of overpressure for an average size refinery of each type.

The only data the estimator has to supply are readily available from industry published periodicals, journals, or reference material:<sup>2</sup>

- Refinery type and initial capacity in B/D
- Type of crude oil used, including both the "normal" crude oil supply and an alternative (supplied in the report)

It is recognized that in a postattack environment the relative demand for individual products will not be the same as before an attack. Because. refining processes produce a combination of products, a relatively high demand for one product creates a surplus of "other" products. Management and planning must consider uses for, or ways to dispose of, these other surplus products. For example, kerosene and diesel type products normally represent about one-third of total products. In a postattack condition if the demand for gasoline and residual fuel rises so that the demand for kerosene and diesel products drops to one-fourth of the total products, a surplus of kerosene and diesel equivalent to one-twelfth of the total products would occur. Even with reduced total products of 6 million barrels per day (slightly more than 50 percent of current production) this represents a surplus of  $1/12 \times 6,000,000 = 500,000 B'D$ . The surplus products will eventually create tremendous storage problems. A few potential solutions include: partial blending of surplus products into required products, reprocessing of surplus products to make required products, or re-injecting surplus products into underground storage.



SEANFORD RESEARCH INSTITUTE Medic Park California - Constraint - C

Final Report

July 1969

- wassing

٢

### ESTIMATING PRODUCTION AND REPAIR EFFORT IN BLAST-DAMAGED PETROLEUM REFINERIES

By: F. E. WALKER

Prepared for:

OFFICE OF CIVIL DEFENSE OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF THE ARMY WASHINGTON, D. C. 20310

OCD CONTRACT DAHC 20-67-C-0136 OCD WORK UNIT 3311C

SRI Project MU 6300-620

This document has been approved for public release and sale; its distribution is unlimited.

OCD REVIEW NOTICE

This report has been reviewed in the Office of Civil Defense and approved for publication. Approval does not signify that the contents necessarily reflect the views and policies of the Office of Civil Defense.

#### CONTENTS

j

1

I	INTRODUCTION	1
11	SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS	7
III	INDUSTRY DESCRIPTORS	19
	Crude 011s	21
	Refinery Types	25
	Processing	28
	Equipment	29
	Products	33
	Validity of Industry Descriptors	35
IV	REFINERY VULNERABILITY	39
	Cooling Tower	39
	Controls	41
	Fired Heater	43
	Tanks	43
v	REFINERY REPAIR	47
	Rengir Stages	47
	Quentity of Production in Renaired Refineries	50
	Quality of Products After Repair	52
	Labor	54
		61
	Renair Waterials	64
	Operational Materials	66
VI	USING THE METHOD	69
	Determine Refinery Size and Type	69
	Determine Crude 011 Supply	70
	Estimate Production Capability	72
	Estimate Repair Requirements	74
	Estimate Production Capability by Repair Stage	76

iii

#### CONTENTS

Ł

-----

-7

----

-----

E

•

1

1

and the second se

Ş

#### APPENDIXES

5

A	EQUIPME	NI	s si	[Z]	ES	AN	Ď	NU	MB	ER	6	٠	٠	٠	٠	٠	•	٠	٠	٠	٠	٠	٠	•	•			•	8	7
в	PRODUCT	2	IEI	Ð	FF	20M		CRU	DE	0	IL	S	AF	TE	R	ĸ	W	BI	As	T	01	/E)	PI	rue !	581	URU	B		13	7
С	PRODUCT	r y	IEI	LD	F	łOM		CRU	DE	0	IL	S	AI	F	ot	JR	87	140	ir:	s (	)F	RI	EP/	A II	R	•		•	14	7
ם	REPAIR OVERPRE	re Ss	QU: URI	IRI 2	ENCE	ent •	'S	<b>А</b> Т •	F	ou ·	R ·	RE	РА		. 5	т/ •	G	ts •	AE •	•71	SR •	BJ •		ST •	٠	٠	,	•	15	9
REFERI	ENCES .	•	•	•	•	•		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	٠	•		•	17	3
BIBLI	ography		•	•	•	•	•			•		•				•		•	•					•	•			•	17	5

iv

- -

#### ILLUSTRATIONS

1	Petroleum Refining Industry Model	3
2	Labor Requirements to Restore 100 Percent Refinery Capacity after Specified Blast Overpressure Levels	9
3	Gasoline Yield Resulting from Repair Effort at Selected Blast Overpressures: Small Fuel Refinery; 24,000 Barrels per Day Capacity	11
4	Processes, Capacities, and Products: Complete Processing Refinery	31
5	Blast Overpressure Effects on Vulnerable Refinery Parts	45
6	Individual Refinery Labor Requirements to Restore 100 Per-	59
7	Cost to Restore Refineries to 100 Percent Capacity after 10 psi Blast Overpressure, Compared with New Refinery Con- struction Cost	63
8	Labor Requirements to Restore 100 Percent Refinery Capacity after Specified Blast Overpressure Levels	75
9	Product Yield versus Repair Effort, Undamaged and after 1.0 psi Overpressure: Large Fuel Refinery; 165,000 Barrels per Day Capacity	78
10	Product Yield versus Repair Effort at Selected Blast Over- pressures: Large Fuel Refinery; 78,000 Barrels per Day Capacity	79
11	Product Yield versus Repair Effort at Selected Blast Over- pressures: Small Fuel Refinery; 24,000 Barrels per Day Capacity	80
12	Product Yield versus Repair Effort at Selected Blast Over- pressures: Complete Processing Refinery; 194,000 Barrels per Day Capacity	81
13	Product Yield versus Repair Effort at Selected Blast Over- pressures: Asphalt Refinery; 12,000 Barrels per Day	
	Capacity	82

v

#### ILLUSTRATIONS

r.

------

14	Froduct Yield versus Repair Effort at Selected Blast Over- pressures: Asphalt and Lube Refinery; 7,000 Barrels per	
	Day Capacity	83
15	Product Yield versus Repair Effort at Selected Blast Over- pressures: Lube Refinery; 4,000 Barrels per Day Capacity	84

٧i

j

ļ

. . . .

2

;

•

1	Initial Capacity and Partial Production Capability after 0.3-0.5 psi and 1.0 psi Blast Overpressure	14
2	Production Capability by Repair Stage after 1.5 psi or Greater Blast Overpressure	15
3	Refinery Repair Requirement by Repair Stage and Blast Over-	16
4	Refinery Categorization	27
5	Refinery Processing Unit Capacity Indices	30
6	Refining Equipment Included in Processing Units	34
7	Process Units Assumed Repaired at Each Repair Stage, by	
	Refinery Type	49
8	Refinery Production Capability by Repair Stage with "Normal" and Alternative Crude Oils	51
9	Parameter Values for Labor Requirement Model	56
10	Repair Requirements, by Refinery Type	58
11	Repair Cost after 10 psi Overpressure	62
12	Operational Supplies	67
13	Determining Refinery Type from Processing Combinations	71
14	Normal and Alternative Crude Oils, by Refinery Type	71
15	Refinery Production Capability with Selected Crude Oils after 0-1 psi Blast Overpressure	73
A-1	Equipment Sizes and Numbers: Crude Topping Processing Unit	103
-2	Equipment Sizes and Numbers: Thermal Cracking Processing Unit	105
-3	Equipment Sizes and Numbers: Thermal Reforming Processing Unit	107
-4	Equipment Sizes and Numbers: Vis Breaking Processing Unit	109

vii

ANTERNA STR

ø

ı.

ţ,

- 5	Equipment Sizes and Numbers: Coking Processing Unit	111
- 6	Equipment Sizes and Numbers: Catalytic Cracking Proc- essing Unit	113
- 7	Equipment Sizes and Numbers: Catalytic Reforming Proc- essing Unit	115
- 8	Equipment Sizes and Numbers: Polymerization Processing Unit	117
- 3	Equipment Sizes and Numbers: Alkylation Processing Unit	119
-10	Equipment Sizes and Numbers: Hydrogen Treating Proc- essing Unit	121
-11	Equipment Sizes and Numbers: Vacuum Flashing Processing Unit	123
-12	Equipment Sizes and Numbers: Vacuum Distillation Proc- essing Unit	1 25
-13	Equipment Sizes and Numbers: Lube and Specialties Proc- essing Unit	127
-14	Equipment Sizes and Numbers: Asphalt Processing Unit	1 29
-15	Equipment Sizes and Numbers: Light Oil Treating Proc- essing Unit	131
-16	Equipment Sizes and Numbers: Naphthenic Lube and Spe- cialties Processing Unit	133
-17	Equipment Sizes and Numbers: Pipe Supports and Utilities	135
B- 1	Product Yield from Crude Oils after Low Blast Over- pressure: Large Fuel Refinery	141
- 2	Product Yield from Crude Oils after Low Blast Over- pressure: Small Fuel Refinery	142
- 3	Product Yield from Crude Oils after Low Blast Over- pressure: Complete Processing Refinery	143

----

بالمرجاري

B-	4	Product Yield from Crude Oils after Low Blast Over- pressure: Asphalt Refinery	4
-	5	Product Yield from Crude Oils after Low Blast Over- pressure: Asphalt and Lube Refinery	5
-	6	Product Yield from Crude Oils after Low Blast Over- pressure: Lube Refinery	6
C-	1	Product Yield from Crude Oils at Four Repair Stages: Large Fuel Refinery	2
-	2	Product Yield from Crude Oils at Four Repair Stages: Small Fuel Refinery	3
-	3	Product Yield from Crude Oils at Four Repair Stages: Complete Processing Refinery	4
-	4	Product Yield from Crude Oils at Four Repair Stages: Asphalt Refinery	5
-	5	Product Yield from Crude Oils at Four Repair Stages: Asphalt and Lube Refinery	6
	6	Product Yield from Crude Oils at Four Repair Stages:      Lube Refinery	7
D-	1	Repair Requirements after Blast Overpressure, Four Repair Stages: Large Fuel Refinery, 78,000 B/D Capacity 16	3
-	2	Repair Requirements after Blast Overpressure, Four Repair Stages: Large Fuel Refinery, 150,000 B/D Capacity 16	4
-	3	Repair Requirements after Blast Overpressure, Four Repair Stages: Small Fuel Refinery, 24,000 B/D Capacity 16	5
	4	Repair Requirements after Blast Overpressure, Four Repair Stages: Complete Processing Refinery, 194,000 B/D Capacity	6
-	5	Repair Requirements after Blast Overprossure, Four Repair Stages: Asphalt Refinery, 12,000 B/D Capacity	7
-	6	Repair Requirements after Blast Overpressure, Four Repair Stages: Asphalt Refinery, 14,000 B/D Capacity	8

ix

i

.....

ı

D	7	Repair Requirements after Blast Overpressure, Four Repair	
		Stages: Asphalt and Lube Rafinery, 7,000 B/D	
		Capacity	169
-	8	Repair Requirements after Blast Overpressure, Four Repair	
		Stages: Lube Refinery, 4,000 B/D Capacity	170
-	9	Repair Requirements after Blast Overpressure, Four Repair	
		Stages: Lube Refinery, 27,000 B/D Capacity	171

x

#### **1** INTRODUCTION

The U.S. petroleum refining industry is regarded as oritical to the continued national viability. In the event of damage by attack, petroleum refining capacity is expected to be of primary interest, with emphasis on restoration of a petroleum refining level required for that viability. To plan the recovery of the petroleum refining industry, it is essential to be able to estimate (1) the extent of damage by blast overpressure levels, (2) the capability of individual refineries to produce products as they stand or with increments of repair effort, and (3) the repair effort needed.

#### Objective

The overall purpose of this study was to describe individual U.S. refineries and their normal modes of operation and derive a means for estimating refinery production capability and the repair effort needed after exposure to selected blast overpressures.

Specifically, this study was aimed at developing a means for estimating the capability of refineries to produce petroleum products after exposure to blast:

- With no repair
- After partial repair
- After full repair
- By product group
- By overpressure level

#### Scope and Method

The U.S. petroleum refining industry is made up of 267 refineries which process more than 200 different types of crude oils. Over 100 individual refining processes, and at least 50-100 types of equipment are used by these refineries to produce well over 1,000 different products.

Analysis and grouping of the pertinent factors related to these aspects of the U.S. petroleum refining industry represented a major effort in this study. To develop a procedure for estimating production capabilities and repair requirements after a nuclear attack, it was necessary to bring industry descriptors down to a meaningful number. These reductions are described below.

- . The 267 refineries are represented by six types:
  - Large fuel\* - Small fuel\*
- 94 percent of U.S. Capacity
- Complete processing
- Asphalt
- 6 percent of U.S. capacity ~ Asphalt and lube
- Lube

• The 200+ crude oils are represented by three major types of crude oil from the largest producing oil fields and three specialty crude oils:

- 30°-40° API Gulf
- 20°-25° API West Coast |Largest
- 20°-25° API Midcontinent
- 10°-15° API asphaltic
- 10°-15° API asphaltic Specialty and lube
- 30°-45° API lube
- \* Large fuel and small fuel refineries are differentiated by included processes.

• The more than 100 individual refining processes are represented by the 16 most used

7

- The 50-100 types of equipment within processes are represented by
  25 items most vital to process operation, most susceptible to
  blast damage, and requiring largest labor input for repair
- The 1,000+ products are represented by seven groups, according to common characteristics

The reduction process is summarized graphically in Figure 1.



FIGURE 1 PETROLEUM REFINING INDUSTRY MODEL

To abstract the petroleum refining industry to this extent, it was of course necessary to make many simplifying assumptions. These are pointed out throughout the report, where appropriate.

The data used in this study reflect the most recent information available. The topics addressed are described below.

#### Processing

The petroleum processing characteristics of CONUS crude oil refineries are considered. A representative "normal" crude oil and alternative crude oils for processing are selected on the basis of production records and refining characteristics.

Refineries in Alaska, Hawaii, U.S. protectorates, or areas contiguous to the United States are omitted. These latter areas could prove to be of limited utility to the United States in a time of nuclear conflict. 

#### Blast Effects

Levels of refinery damage are characterized in terms of blast overpressure. This damage mechanism is better understood than other damage mechanisms and, in addition, overpressure provides a direct link with the nuclear environment. Although other damage mechanisms of wind, chermal effects, electromagnetic pulse, or the secondary effects of debris-missile or fire are recognized to be important, their coverage is beyond the scope of this study.

#### Repair Requirements

The analysis is based on the major requirements for the rebuilding of the essential parts of a petroleum refinery after debris has been cleared and the area determined safe for repair work. Major requirements include labor of reconstruction, principal skills or crafts, and corresponding needs for equipment and supplies. Essential parts of a refinery include only those items necessary to the refining operation.

#### Capacities and Yields

Accepted abbreviated methods<sup>1</sup><sup>\*</sup> are used in estimating refining capacities and product yields from selected crude oils after various blast overpressures. The capacities and yields are expressed as B/D (barrels per day) or in terms of initial capacity under conditions of no damage. The capacities and yields and the repair requirements are expressed as functions of blast overpressure.

#### Acknowledgements

「「「「「「「「」」」」」」「「「「「「」」」」」」」」」

いいいろものである

The study was conducted under the direction of Robert M. Rodden of the Civil Defense Technical Office at Stanford Research Institute. The project manager was Richard B. Bothun, Manager, Resource Analysis Group; the principal investigator was Frank E. Walker. Research assistance was provided by Lyle Schump, Rae Wong, and Pamela Kruzic. The entire effort was under the supervision of George D. Hopkins, Director, Operations Evaluation Department.

Direction and guidance for this study were provided by Michael Pachuta of OCD. Additional information on refinery components was provided by Carl A. Trexel, Jr., Senior Industrial Economist and Viona R. Duncan, Research Assistant, both of the Energy and Resources Economics Department.

\* Superscript numbers denote references listed at the end of the report.

and the second second

#### II SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

#### Method Developed

The study effort was directed toward developing a method for rapidly estimating to what extent petroleum refineries would be affected in the event of a nuclear attack on the United States. The method developed enables the user to estimate the repair requirements, and the corresponding production capabilities, of petroleum refineries after blast damage from overpressures of 0.5, 1, 5, and 10 psi. Thus, it is possible to predict what a given level of repair effort will buy in terms of petroleum products, when it is known which refinery is hit, and with what overpressure.

The estimating method was used during the study to produce the following major conclusions:

- After 0.3-0.5 psi, a refinery can produce the same proportion of products but at about 70 percent of the initial capacity. This reflects the assumption that at this overpressure refinery capacity is directly related to remaining cooling tower capacity.
- After 1.0 psi, a refinery temporarily shuts down, but with minor emergency repair to process controls, it can operate at about 50 percent of initial capacity.
- After 1.5 psi, a refinery is totally shut down, primarily because of process control damage by roof collapse in each of the numerous individual refining process control rooms. Vulnerability at higher overpressures is summarized in Section IV.

The physical items needed for refinery repair after blast damage are:

- · Labor in terms of man-days and major skills
- · Equipment, by type
- · Material, by type

Repair labor requirements were developed by study of the average size refinery of each type at each selected overpressure. The requirements are shown graphically in Figure 2, as best-fit curves of data from average refineries, indicating a range of man-days for a given initial refinery capacity at a specified overpressure level. This report discusses how the repair requirements are developed and describes all the elements that are covered. Analysis of conclusions indicates that repair costs calculated by the method developed are consistent with overall average costs of building new refineries.

#### Repair Decision

After blast damage to petroleum refineries, certain decisions must be made before repairs to restore production are begun. The decisions will hinge on what products are needed and what repair effort is available.

Reclaiming refinery capability for light fuel products such as gasolines, jet fuels, and diesel fuels (most likely to be in demand during a period of postattack repair) will require decisions in three areas and will be governed by what products are most needed, and what minimum grades will meet users' demands. The three decision areas are:

• The order of repairing refinery processes

and a second second

- The stage to which the repair is to be made
- The substitution of an alternative crude oil for the refinery's "normal" supply

Reclaiming refinery capability for producing specialty products, such as asphalts and lubes, will require decisions on where to produce these



L

7



9

- A LAR AND AND A LAR AND A LAR

products, for example, whether to:

- · Fully repair the specialty refinery
- Partially repair the specialty refinery, the comparable specialty processing units of fuel, and the complete processing refineries

•

• Repair the comparable portion of the fuel and the complete processing refineries rather than the specialty refineries

#### Application of the Method

. . . . . . . . . .

The following sequence for the repair of petroleum refining processes, emphasizing gasoline production, is used in this report:

Repair Stage	Repair Effort
A	Repair the crude oil topping processing unit
B	Repair processing units that convert heavy petroleum fractions to gasoline-type products
c	Repair processing units which upgrade gasolines
D	Repair all other processing units producing nonfuels

Using this sequence of repair stages, the reader can refer to Figure 2 (based on average refineries) and determine, for any refinery capacity at a specified level of blast overpressure, the level of repair effort in man-days that is required to restore the refinery to 100 percent production. For example:

A 24,000 B/D refinery is expected to require 60,000 to 90,000 man-days of repair labor to return it to 100 percent of initial capacity siter 10 psi overpressure

Also, for any refinery product, by type of refinery, the reader is given tables and charts from which to determine the amount of a product (as a percent of initial refinery capacity) that can be produced after

each successive repair stage. These relationships for gasoline are illustrated in Figure 3. For example:

· ····

T

....

a and a second second

-

----

Before blast damage, gasoline constitutes 50 percent of initial total products from a small fuel refinery. After 10 psi overpressure a 24,000 B/D small fuel refinery has the production capability shown below.

	Cumulative	G	asoline Production	
Repair Stage	Repair Effort, Man-Days	Percent of Initial Total Products	Percent of Initial Gasoline Production	B/D
A	28,000	15%	30%	3,600
в	61,000	29	58	7,000
С	76,000	40	80	9,600
D	77,000	50	100	12,000





Results of sensitivity analyses on refinery sizes show that for refineries of the same type, but of different sizes, the stages of repair effort (Repair Stages A, B, C, and D) are proportional to the corresponding repair stages of the average size refinery.

This means that, for any refinery type, an estimator can simply calculate the ratio of the individual repair stage to the cumulative repair stage for the average size refinery of a particular type, apply that ratio to the repair requirement estimated for repair to 100 percent capability (total of Repair Stages A, B, C, and D) of that refinery size, and derive repair requirements for the other repair stages. This is illustrated by a simple example, below. Given: 24,000 B/D small fuel refinery Repair Stage A = 28,000 man-days Repair to 100 percent capacity (A+B+C+D) = 77,000 man-days

Ratio 
$$\frac{A}{A+B+C+D} = 0.36$$

Then, to find the repair requirement for Stage A for a small fuel refinery of a different size:

90,000 B/D small fuel refinery Repair to 100 percent capacity (A+B+C+D) = 285,000 to 335,000 man-days

Ratio of  $\frac{A}{A+B+C+D} = 0.36$  (given above) Thus: 0.36 × 285,000 and 335,000 = 103,000 to 120,000 man-

days for Repair Stage A

Each refinery has its own "normal" input of crude oil. Following an attack, conditions at producing oil fields or in the transportation system may necessitate supplying a refinery with an alternative crude oil. The "normal" crude oil input to fuel and complete processing refineries is considered to be one of the three "major" U.S. crude oil types; "normal" input to specialty refineries is considered to be one of three representative special crude oil types. The effect of supplying a refinery with one of the other two of the three major U.S. crude oil types rather than with what this study judged to be that refinery's "normal" supply of crude oil illustrated by the following example:

A 24,000 B/D small fuel refinery, after 10 psi overpressure, with its normal crude oil and alternative crude oils has the production capability shown below.

	Total Pro Percent of I	oduction as nitial Capacity
Repair	Normal	Alternative
Stage	Crude 011	Crude Oils
A	44	25-28%
В	62	28~33
C	79	31-37
D	100	33-42

#### Summary of Results

The method for estimating production capabilities and requirements of refineries after a nuclear attack is summarized in Tables 1, 2, and 3. Table 1 gives, for each type of refinery, the product percentages available when the refinery is undamaged (0 psi), and at two levels of low overpressure: the range of 0.3-0.5 psi, with no repair effort, and 1 psi, with only emergency repairs to the crude topping unit. Table 1 can be used for any size refinery of the type specified; it gives the normal product mix and shows the immediate effect of damage in the low overpressure ranges, where refineries are still operable.

INITIAL CAPACITY AND PARTIAL PRODUCTION CAPABILITY AFTER 0.3-0.5 PSI AND 1.0 PSI BLAST OVERPRESSURE<sup>\*</sup>

.....

		Ā	roduction Cap	ebility as	a Percent	
	Blast		of Initial	Refinery Ca	pecity	
Refinery Type	Condition, ps1	Gasoline	Kerosene	Diesel	Other	Total
Large fuel	Undanaged	54%	15%	145	17%	, <b>,1</b>
	0.3-0.5	38	10	10	12	
	0.1	316	80	2	ch.	20
Small fuel	Undanaged	50	15	15	20	100
	0.3-0.5	35	n	10	14	70
	1.0	26	80	2	Ø	50
Complete processing	Undamaged	47	15	15	52	100
	0.3-0.5	33	11	10	16	20
	1.0	24	2	2-	12	8
Asphalt	Undamaged	11	10	n	88	100
	0.3-0.5	æ	7	80	47	70
	1.0	а	r	T	11	15
Asphalt and lube	Undamaged	ŝ	ŝ	15	75	100
	0.3-0.5	4	n	10	53	70
	1.0	-1	1	m	17	22
Lube	Undamaged	42	15	15	28	100
	0.3-0.5	30	11	10	19	70
	1.0	21	80	2	14	<b>9</b> 5

14

\* Using "normal" crude oil.

ł

Table 1

.

# PRODUCTION CAPABILITY BY REPAIR STACE AFTER 1.5 PSI OR GREATER BLAST OVERPRESSURE<sup>®</sup>

			Production Capabi	ility as a	Percent	
			of Initial Rei	finery Cape	ci ty	
	Repair		Kerosene			
Refinery Type	5 tage	Gasoline	and Jet Fuel	Diesel	Other	Total
Large fuel	۲	13%	6,5	55	132	375
	ß	22	÷	2	13	9
	U	33	10	6	13	3
	<u>a</u>	54	15	14	17	8
Small fuel	¥	15	7	7	15	77
	8	8	6	0	15	3
	v	ç	12	21	15	38
	٩	50	15	1.5	8	100
Complete processing	۲	11	ŝ	ŝ	11	33
	8	14	9	9	11	5
	ი ი	29	10	10	16	5
	9	47	15	15	52	100
Asphal t	*	6	10	10	13	96
	ß	Ø	10	10	15	3
	ç	10	10	11	19	96
	Ω	11	10	11	22	10
Asphalt and lube	~	1	*	12	3	08
	æ	T	ŝ	14	24	ð
	U	Ŧ	ŝ	15	75	8
	Q	ŝ	ŝ	15	24	8
Lube	×	11	ŝ	ŝ	11	8
	8	22	6	đ	31	G
	ç	38	11	11	2	12
	۵	42	15	15	裁	100
• lising "normel" crude	130					
STATE CHEVEN STREET						

1

15
### Table 3

,

.

# REFINERY REPAIR REQUIREMENT BY REPAIR STACE AND HIAST OVERPRESSURE LEVELS

ative)
Cumul,
Man-Days
J0
000's
8 8
(Labor

1

, psi	19	1	61	224	388	292	2	\$ 6	5 2	5 5	•	543	468	633	640	G	b t [	5	3 8	1	9	<b>7</b> 4	18	22	•	' di	14	18
re Level	n		73	136	176	178	15		i i	98		881		140	405	4	12	14	, y	, ,	m	~	<b>6</b> 0	10	2	-	ŝ	9
erpressu	-		8	86	126	128	10	19	24	2		0#1	286		592	*	¢h	6	11	4	N	ŝ	ŝ	9	~	ы	m	*
Blast Ov	0.3-0.5	51	2	83	98	36	m	ŝ	~	4	ŬŦ	25	18	60	4	I	61	e	ro	~	• •	4	П	~	1	I	p=1	-1
Repair	orage	~	æ	<b>,</b>	ונ	a	¥	24	U	۵	<	8	с С	Q		<	8	с U	Q	<	æ		۽ ر	2	<	<b>6</b>	ט <i>ו</i>	2
Initial Capacity, R/D		78,000					24,000				194,000				1	12,000				7,000					4,000			
Refinery Type		Large fuel				Small first	TONT TTEME				<b>Complete</b> processing				Asnhalt					Asphalt and lube								

••

. . . . . . . . .

:

16

·~ •

-----

At overpressures of 1.5 psi or greater, repair to refineries becomes necessary for them to operate. Table 2 gives product percentages after each of the four repair stages for an average size refinery of each type, thus showing the incremental production that each repair stage affords.

Table 3 gives the man-days of repair effort required at each repair stage and for each level of overpressure for an average size refinery of each type.

The only data the estimator has to supply are readily available from industry published periodicals, journals, or reference material:<sup>8</sup>

. Refinery type and initial capacity in B/D

いましたから おというまたち かって

Sector allerder

States and

1441

• Type of crude oil used, including both the "normal" crude oil supply and an alternative (supplied in the report)

It is recognized that in a postattack environment the relative demand for individual products will not be the same as before an attack. Because refining processes produce a combination of products, a relatively high demand for one product creates a surplus of "other" products. Management and planning must consider uses for, or ways to dispose of, these other surplus products. For example, kerosene and diesel type products normally represent about one-third of total products. In a postattack condition if the demand for gasoline and residual fuel rises so that the demand for kerosene and diesel products drops to one-fourth of the total products, a surplus of kerosene and diesel equivalent to one-twelfth of the total products would occur. Even with reduced total products of 6 million barrels per day (slightly more than 50 percent of current production) this represents a surplus of  $1/12 \times 6,000,000 = 500,000$  B/D. The surplus products will eventually create tremendous storage problems. A few potential solutions include: partial blending of surplus products into required products, reprocessing of surplus products to make required products, or re-injecting surplus products into underground storage.

17

-

### III INDUSTRY DESCRIPTORS

In the United States today there are 267 crude oil refineries<sup>3,3</sup> which use many different processes and modifications of these processes. They refine crude oil, or <u>mixtures</u> of crude cils, from at least 200 different oil fields.<sup>3</sup> The product markets they serve are as varied as the U.S. economy is diversified.

As a result of these factors, no two refineries are exactly alike. There are, however, some overall similarities. The contribution of this study is in analyzing the components of the U.S. petroleum refining industry, abstracting the similarities, assembling representative types to make it possible to apply estimating factors and carrying out the calculations in making the estimates. This section details the bases and assumptions used to arrive at the initial production capabilities in the industry.

This study approaches the analysis from the standpoint that the effect of nuclear blast on refineries is similar for similar types of refineries and that these effects can be related to refinery type and capacity. Simplifying assumptions are made and relationships are developed in the following areas:

- Crude oils
- Refinery types
- Processing
- . Equipment included in refineries
- Products

A petroleum refinery is a group of manufacturing processes organized and coordinated to achieve both physical and chemical transformation of a particular type of crude oil into salable products that meet the qualities and quantities required by the product market supplied. In general, petroleum refining consists of separation of a crude oil into its parts, changing the structure of these parts under various conditions of temperature and pressure (using catalysts where necessary), and recombining and treating these parts with chemicals and additives to meet a product wix demand.

Many of the processes used to separate the crude oil into its parts are fairly standard throughout the industry. Normally, the separation is by fractional distillation (fractionation). All of the materials that boil above a given temperature, at a particular pressure, are separated from those that boil below that temperature at that pressure. Sequential selection of temperatures and pressures permits the separation of a crude oil into many fractions. This separation process is used in all the initial processing steps and in the preparation of products intermediate to structural change.

Refinery processes and equipment are chosen, sized, arranged, and interrelated according to the crude oil that is available and the product market that the refinery serves. For each refinery type, the author has postulated an average refinery. This consists of typical processing equipment sized to operate at capacity and produce the product mix representative of that refinery type when using a "normal" crude oil represented by the predominant U.S. crude oil.

It is recognized that, within a particular refinery type, the crude oils input to individual refineries will differ. Some refineries process a heavier crude, while others process a lighter crude. However, it is assumed that there are compensating differences in the included processing equipment to permit refineries of one type to produce similar product mixes. It is also assumed that the equipment differences do not

materially change the postattack refinery repair requirements or production capabilities from those shown for the average refineries.

Substitution of alternative crude oils in each of the postulated refineries will influence the product mix, depending on the characteristics of the alternative crude oils and the refinery processing equipmont. The result is potentially an unbalanced product mix (the product mix volumes do not coincide with product market demand) and a resultant refinery throughput decrease because of individual process limitations. For example, a refinery specializing in the heavier products, such as asphalts, also produces gasoline; a refinery that is producing light products (gasoline, kerosene, and diesel) also simultaneously produces higher-boiling fuel oil materials. If the amounts of fuel oil produced by the latter exceed the demand in that refinery's market area, the overall operation of that refinery is unbalanced: fuel oil will accumulate, and eventually storage problems will force the refinery to shut down. Similar problems would occur with light products, if refineries use alternative crude oils lighter than they are designed to process. For example, the use of a light crude in a refinery specializing in heavy products, such as asphalt, would create a light products storage problem. To balance its operations, a refinery would have to include a degree of cracking and related processing to convert enough of the heavier fuel oils into the lighter products to meet market demands. Such factors have been taken into consideration in the development and equipping of refineries.

### Crude Oils

At the well-heads or in the producing oil fields, small amounts of gas and light gasolines are removed from crude oils. The remaining major portion of the crude oil then goes on to become input to a petroleum refinery. The crude oil that reaches the refinery is still a complex

mixture, ranging from light hydrocarbons that can be used in gasoline to the heaviest hydrocarbons, which can only be used in asphalts.

The composition of crude oil from some producing fields is distinct, and a few particular crude oils are segregated for specific purposes-some for use in specialty-type refineries, others because of undesirable refining characteristics that require specialized refibing processes. However, most of the crude oils from the producing fields are blended with similar crude oils from the same locality during the delivery to a refinery. The characteristics of the blended crude oil stream may in many respects be similar to characteristics of the crude oil that constitutes the largest field volume in the blend.

Ţ

「あっ」またいますのないので、「「「」」

ä

In this study, the normal crude oil supply to the major portion of petroleum refining compares to the largest volume of U.S. crude oil produced; alternative supply available compares to the next largest volumes produced. In the Gulf Coast area, crude oils from the largest producing fields are relatively light  $(30^{\circ}-40^{\circ} \text{ API gravity range})$ . On the West Coast there are fewer large fields, but all the crudes are somewhat heavier than those from the Gulf (in the range of  $10^{\circ}-40^{\circ} \text{ API}$ , clustering around  $20^{\circ}-30^{\circ} \text{ API}$ ). In the Midcontinent area there are a few large, widely separated fields with some moderately heavy  $(20^{\circ}-30^{\circ} \text{ API})$  and some light  $(30^{\circ}-40^{\circ} \text{ API})$  crude oils.<sup>2,4,5,6</sup>

Published production volumes<sup>5,7</sup> from the 88 largest producing oil fields include about 42 percent of the total U.S. production of crude oil. The percentages from these largest volume oil fields grouped by gravity range are shown below.

		Gravity Ran	ge, API <sup>+</sup>	
Producing Fields	10°-20°	20°-30°	30 - 40	40+*
Gulf Coast area		4%	22%	5%
West Coast area	1%†	4*	1	
Nidcontinent area		_2*	38	
Total	1%	10%	26%	5%

The largest volume of crude oil used by refineries is in the  $30^{\circ}=40^{\circ}$ API gravity range; over half of the 42 percent is in this range. The crude oil production most representative is that from the Gulf Coast area. This crude oil was selected as being comparable to the "normal" crude supplied to the largest part of U.S. petroleum refining industry, the fuel and complete processing refinerics. Crude oils selected as being comparable to alternative crudes available to these refineries were:

- 20°-25° API West Coast area
- 20°-25 API Midcontinent area

The  $20^{\circ}-25^{\circ}$  API Midcontinent crude (2 percent of U.S. production) was selected over the  $30^{\circ}-40^{\circ}$  API Midcontinent crude (3 percent of U.S. production), because, under postattack conditions, the widespread geographical locations of fields in the latter gravity range group could limit the availability of that crude oil to the refineries.

These considerations apply principally to the larger refineries, which produce a complete range of products or mainly fuels. Smaller

In the 20°−25° API range.

High gravity numbers in degrees API reflect light crude oils.

<sup>+</sup> In the 10°-15° API range.

<sup>§</sup> Widely separated oil fields.

specialty refineries normally use only crude oils segregated specifically for their use. A process similar to that described above resulted in a selection of three representative specialty crude oils, again with the consideration that a crude oil comparable to only one of these would represent that specialty refinery's "normal" supply. The specialty orude oils selected were as follows:

.

Type of Herinery	Comparable Crude OII
Asphalt	10°-15° API asphaltic
Asphalt and lube	10°-15° API asphaltic and lube
Lube	30°-45° API lube

Usable alternative crude oils for specialty refineries are the three largest production crudes selected for fuel and complete processing refineries. This is shown in summary form as follows:

	Fuel and Complete		Asphalt	
Crude Oil	Processing	Asphalt	and Lube	Lube
30°-40° API Gulf	N	٨	A	A
20°-25° API West Coast		٨	Α	A
20°-25° API Midcontinent	٨	٨	A	A
10°-15° API asphaltic		N		
10°-15° API asphaltic and lube			N	
30°-45° API lube				N

Note: N = comparable to "normal" crude oil supply.A = comparable to alternative crude oil supply.

Underlying the selection of representative types of crude oils was the assumption that in the event that "normal" crude oils were unavailable after an attack, crude oils comparable to the other categories would be available. Because an attack might disrupt a refinery's

"normal" supply, and because differences in crude oil input effect a refinery's production capability. Each refinery would be able to operate, but at differing levels of production, by use of one of the alternative crudes for input.

### Refinery Types

Refineries may be grouped by similarities in size and in types of products produced. Similar types of products imply similar types of processing units, and this in turn reflects similar refining equipment in those processing units. Refineries primarily producing fuels comprise about 94 percent of the nation's crude oil refining capacity. The primary purpose of the remaining 6 percent is the production of specialty products, asphalt or lube, or a combination of these. Within each of these two groups, fuels and specialties, there are similarities in size and degree of completeness in the line of products.

In general, the small refineries include only the simple processes, such as skimming or topping, and produce a limited number of types of fuel and asphalt products. Conversely, the large refineries are complex and produce many products. Both characteristics, refinery size and types of products, are important.

The details necessary for categorizing refineries are available in published trade journals.<sup>2</sup> The categorization selected for this study was that developed by W. L. Nelson.<sup>2</sup> In using Nelson's categorization system, each refinery's processing characteristics were investigated separately, rather than with refineries grouped by large company ownership. Peacetime operations by large multirefinery companies frequently include shipments of intermediate or partially finished oil products between owned refineries. In the event of attack, these shipments may cease, changing somewhat the processing characteristics of some refineries. For this reason, the categorization used in this study, reflecting

conditions after blast damage, may differ slightly from the usual peacetime categorization. Petroleum refineries have been grouped into six estegories that give recognition to both the types of products and the refinery size:

- . Large fuel
- Small fuel
- · Complete processing
- . Asphalt
- . Asphalt and lube
- . Lube

This grouping reflects the use of particular refining processes in the manufacture of particular products. In developing the six categories, each refinery, with its production capacities, is identified according to five types of processes in combinations:

- Alkylation (manufacture of aviation gasolines)
- · Polymerization (manufacture of gasolines from light gases)
- Lube products
- Coke
- Asphalt

Table 4 summarizes the six refinery types by combinations of process types, and details the capacities, number of refineries, and average capacity for each type.

All large fuel refineries include alkylation processing, while combinations of the other four selected processes are fairly well distributed. The large fuel refineries account for the largest part of U.S. refining-about one-half of the total U.S. capacity--but this category includes less than one-fourth of the total number of refineries. Capacity of the large fuel refineries averages 78,000 B/D, with the largest capacity at 241,000 B/D and the smallest at 36,000 B/D. Table 1

The first function fu	ал 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		2000's of 10.0 740.0 2133.2 853.3 852.0 542.0					Product Las
Lerge feel r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r	ны ыки жы	ы мым ж	742.0 153.2 158.9 1582.0		щ.	(ILVE JO OCC)	1000 1 of 1001	
All target at a constant of the second at a constant of th	имики ихи	<b></b>	10.24 10.24		1 :			
All large K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K	жы ыки ыкы	н <b>ми</b> м ж	6.958 6.2.58 742.0		2 (			
All large K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K	мики изек	м чин ж	562.0 742.0	:3	1 =			
All large X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X	мки жин	н кик ж	742.0	1.6	9	X		
All Large X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X	мки жки	ини и		6.7	1	0.01		
All large X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X	ки ижи	нын м	199.0		н			
All Large K.	ки ини	ин и	1.218		•	114.9		
<pre>All Large Loui Loui Loui Email fout Email Email Fout Fout Fout Complete</pre>	и усъсъс	н и	A, 940	3,4	4	8.8		
All Large All Large Loui Lanit Luei X X X X X X X X X X X Z All analit Food Combinet X X X X X X X X X X X X X	***	×	6.30.0	-	-1	10.5		
Banil fuei K K K K K K K K K K K K K K	ж ж н	×						
Mail and Lines Katicated	***	×	5,219.9	21.43	5	1.1	0, <b>1</b>	AL.O
All small fieal fi	жж <b>ж</b>	×	£.721.1	10.25	ĩ			
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X	жж <b>ж</b>		1,048.0		1			
K Kill menil feat faat Complete Proceesiag RI complete RI complete Proceesiag RI septati K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K	ижи ,		130,0	1	. 4	1		
All munii four sudicented	жж,	Ħ	20.05	0.2				
All meal) feel feel Complete Proceesing All complete Froceesing Argentic All complete Froceesing Argentic All complete Froceesing Argentic All complete Froceesing Argentic All complete Argentic All complete Argentic All complete Argentic All complete Argentic All complete Argentic All complete Argentic Argen	1 1 1 1 1 1		63.6	÷.	-			
All manii fani fani Compinete K K K Proceesiag X K K Mil complete Proceesiag Mil sephait Mil sephait Mil sephait Mil sephait Mil sephait Mil sephait	, , , , ,	×	112.0	1,0	N	2		
All small feel Completes X X X Processing X X X X Processing X X X X All complete processing X X X X All separt X X X All separt X X X X All separt X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X			324.0	1.9	2			
feel Complete K K K Complete X X X Proceesing X K K X All complete proceesing X K K K Li complete All asphalt X X K K Li asphalt X X X K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K					ł			
Complete X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X				1	1	•		
processing X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X				2.1	611	24.0	<b>0</b> .7	0.001
All complete processing processing tempert MI septett MI septett NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA	×		4"O#1	<b>.</b>	n	226.6		
All complete proceesing trynkait X X All separit X All separit X and lum		_	355.0	S. 0	-	145.0		
All complete proceeding terminit X Millissphalt X and lub K K			1.20#	5.5	-	1 108		
All complete Proceesing Repeals Ul septait X Sphalt X sed luts X x	4		41.5 1	귀	-1	Leto., 5		
Proceeding Lephalt X Mill asphalt X Sphalt X X Add Lum X X X								
tepholt X X 11 septatit X sed tun X vv vv			0 424-2		:			
Li septatt Li septatt K sphatt K add lubs K	•				1	C'111	<b>34</b> ,0	419.0
Ll sophalt Ll sophalt R sod lubs K			31.142	5	32	<b>8.3</b>		
kl sephalt X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X	,		0.405	2.1	5	14.0		
11.1 sophalt bydhalt E K sed luta K				히	-1	15.2		
kyphait E K sed luta K			\$70.0	5	ţ	•		
end lubs					;	1.11	1.1	9'W
						14.0		
	ſ		34.1	3	•	<b>6</b> .5		
ENC 1			5.0	3	•	•	•	
415.					n	n	1.1	<b>N</b> , 0
a			16.0	0.15	ul	10.0		
ε			1.1	3	2	7		
31 lube				1	:	•		
Total					7	1.6	<b>0</b> ,0	2.01
			11,040.2	100.05	5	41.5 <sup>+</sup>	0.T	418.0

į

About one-half of the number of small fuel refineries average only about 5,400 B/D capacity and do not include any of the five major ref: ing processes listed above. Most of the other half of the small fuel i is neries have alkylation and asphalt processes. The total number of shall fuel refineries is about one-half of the total number of refineries, but the total small fuel capacity is only one-fourth of the total U.S. capacity. The average capacity of the small fuel refineries approximates 24,000 B/D, with a capacity range from 185,000 B/D to 700 B/D.

In the complete processing refinery category, processing is fairly evenly distributed among the combinations of the five selected processes. Capacity approximates one-fifth of total U.S. capacity and is contained in only 12 refineries--less than 5 percent of the total number of U.S. refineries. The average capacity of this type of refinery is about 194,000 B/D, with a range from 419,000 to 34,000 B/D.

The remaining three types of refineries include the small specialty refineries: asphalt, asphalt and lube, and lube. None of them have alkylation processing, but each has either asphalt or lube processing, or both, depending on their primary product line. Capacities of the three types together comprise only 6 percent of the U.S. total refining capacity. Capacities range from a high of 35,000 B/D to a low of less than 1,000 B/D.

### Processing

Within the refinery, the crude oil is fractionated into parts, the parts processed to change their structures, and the resulting products fractionated further, recombined, and treated as necessary to meet market demand. Technology in the structure-change processes has progressed rapidly, so that there are more than 100 identifiable processes<sup>8</sup> and their modifications, with no one process being dominant.

W. L. Nelson<sup>2</sup> has developed a grouping of processes adaptable to this study; he reduces the more than 100 processes to 16. Table 5 details the 16 process types.

This study considers that the processing unit in major use in each type of structure-change is representative of that process. For example, Orthoflow Fluid catalytic cracking is selected as representative of all catalytic cracking. Table 5 shows both the choice of the individual process within each process type and the index of capacity of each of these 16 processes, in terms of crude topping capacity for each of the six refinery categories. Because sequential processing, recycling, and reprocessing of the various intermediate products is necessary in normal refining operations, the total of the processing unit capacity indices exceeds 100 for all refineries.

The sequences and relative capacities (capacity indices) of processes are illustrated in Figure 4, a simplified flow diagram of a complete processing type of refinery. This shows the respective locations and capacities of the principal types of processes in the overall refining process flow.

### Equipment

The study took into consideration that, ideally, all equipment in a petroleum refinery is needed during the normal day-to-day operations. However, emergency refining operations, such as could exist in a postattack period, may be performed with some pieces of equipment out of service. To estimate accurately both a refinery's postattack production capability and repair requirement, it is essential to know three factors: the operational criticality, the blast vulnerability, and the repair requirements for each piece of equipment in each refining process.

Table 5

.....

-----

ł

----

ļ

-

1

. .....

## RZFINERY PROCESSING UNIT CAPACITY INDICES (Process capacity index with crude topping = 100)

.....

. ......

				Refinery	Type		
Processing Unit	Process Selected	Large Fuel	Small Fuel	Complete Processing	Aspiralt	Asphalit Lube	E E
Crude topping Thormal crecking Thermal reforming Viscosity breaking Coking	(Standard) Mixed phase thermal cracking (Standard) (Standard) Delayed coking	100. 19. 3.4 5.4	100. 12. 6.	ာတ္ စိုက် နား စိုး	100. 17. 2.	100. 17. 2.	100. 7.
Catalytic cracking Catalytic reforming Polyperization Alkylation Hydrogen treating	Orthoflow Fluid catalytic cracking Flatforming Phosphoric acid polymerization Sulfuric acid alkylation Hydro desulfurization	52. 23. 1.4 18.6	54. 24. 3.6	45. 1.8. 3,2 4.1	4. 3.	. с. т. 	27. 15. 3.2
Vacuum flashing Vacuum distillation Lubes and specialties Asphalt Lishe of encourter	(Standard) (Standard) (Standard) (Standard)	ä	28. 3.6	ર્યુ છું હ ત	ž 9	30. 30.	х. <del>ц</del>
Maphthepic lubes and specialties	(Standard) (Standard)	<b>4</b> 0.	48.	38.	Ŧ,	<b>ਸ਼</b> ਸ਼	34.

.

-----

ų

化过敏性 医小脑管外的现在分词 医外外周的 化化合金 化化合金 化化合金 化化合金化合金化合金 化分子管 化分子管 化分子管 化合金 医外外的

. . .



Program expensive indiana (mish studie tapping = 1001 applicable to all complete protocoling relineves.
 Inducting regulation index and operations processes.

FIGURE 4 PROCESSES, CAPACITIES," AND PRODUCTS: COMPLETE PROCESSING REFINERY

「「「「「」」」「「「「」」」」」「「「」」」」」

and the strapped of the co

### **Operational Criticality**

It is necessary to know how reducing or eliminating the operability of each piece of equipment affects the production capability of the corresponding process unit and of the refinery. The equipment whose reduced or eliminated operation causes the greatest degradation of refinery production capability is of most concern.

### Blast Vulnerability

For the equipment that is critical to refining operations, it is also necessary to know its vulnerability to overpressure. Information on both the overpressure level that causes damage and the extent of the damage is needed. The equipment that is extensively damaged at low overpressures is of most concern.

### Repair Requirements

For the equipment that is both critical to refining operations, and vulnerable to blast overpressure, it is necessary to know what is required to repair and restore it to operation. Emphasis is placed on the critical vulnerable equipment that requires a large amount of labor and multiple skills to repair.

### Selection of Items squipment

The refinery control rooms are examples of equipment of concern in all three categories. Equipment that may be critical to operation but is relatively invulnerable to low overpressure, or that requires a relatively small amount of repair effort, is of less concern. Examples of these are heat exchangers and pumps.

Sources of information about equipment vulnerability are published reports<sup>9,10</sup> on both petroleum refineries and the chemical industry.

(Much of the equipment used in petroleum refining processes is comparable to that used in the chemical processes.)

Twenty-five representative items of equipment applicable to the various refinery processing units were selected on the following bases:

- · Criticality of equipment to process unit operation
- . Vulnerability of equipment to blast damage
- Necessity for a large amount of labor and multiple skills to repair the equipment

Table 5 details the selected items of equipment and indicates their inclusion in the 16 types of processing units.

Although a particular piece of equipment performs a specific function regardless of its location in a process unit or its inclusion in a particular refinery category, its size and therefore its reclamation requirement is a direct function of both the processing requirement and refinery capacity. Each of the included pieces of equipment are individually sized for each processing unit in each refinery category. Calculation methods and bases of equipment sizing are detailed in Appendix A.

### Products

Equipment developed in today's industry needs specialized fuel and lubricant products. Those specialized needs designate characteristics, requirements, or specifications for petroleum products, so the equipment can meet performance standards considered to be normal or acceptable. As a result, the total number of petroleum products, separately identified by specification, is well over 1,000. However, many large groups of products are made in the same kinds of processing units and serve similar markets with only slight differences in specifications.

33

ł,

dena ы ind. ы × жмж H × M ж H ы APPELLORL Pressure verses Isolindig : HasT × TOREACTORN TAOR \*\*\*\* HHH Ħ 1 Ħ × 1 outgang meats set ж ж multon notroarras × TOJAINTAN One liter common to entire relinery wwo :wetastsan 1#190#1JO<u>H</u> Pressure Vessel ы int. × ы н н h × 14 meutoD nottanettossa ни HH ъŧ XX × \*\*\*\* - 546 ж 24 н ы ×× groseL TotoX pistenia **ннн**я \*\*\*\* **H** H H H H × N N ж Teer Translater One tram common to entire retincry :#01311130 10108 One fiem common to write reitnery stroddng edig **жжжж XXX** K K XX \*\*\*\* × Reactor: Creeking × × н 1000 \* \* \* \*\*\*\* ж × × м mattaul% :sinaT Regenerator × 443174 × × Reactor: Chemical × м × н × M и н × ы Tetred Beats × 14 × sistent Cubicle × × × × × н ж × XX ы × toon enol : Hant × × H × ы ж 34 TOWOT BULLOOD × м н н н × × × × Toon sferago × ×× × **ж** ж ж ×× × × Control Rouse: 100H Teels ×× × × Control Rouse: Lube and specialties Waphthenic lubes and Catalytic reforming Vacuum distillation Catalytic cracking Light oil treating Processing Unit Hydrogen treating Thermal reforming Thermal cracking Polymerization\* Vacuum flashing Crude topping Vis breeking specialties Alkylation Asphalt Coking

Brack Parts

į

í

1

.

Catalytic polymerization.

REFLICTING EQUITMENT INCLUED IN PROCESSING UNITS

Table 6

. . .

This study assumed that all products can be grouped into seven categories, combining physical characteristics and general market end-use:

- Gasoline Fuel oil
- Kerösene Asphalt
- Diesel Coke
- Lube

Gasoline includes all types of motor and aviation gasolines. Kerosene includes napthas, solvents, and jet fuels. Diesel includes all types of fuel for diesel use. Lube includes all waxes, greases, and lubricating oils. Fuel oil includes all types of residual fuels for both stationary boiler and seagoing vessel boiler use. Asphalt includes roofing asphalt and all types of paving and road oils. Coke is used primarily for fuel for stationary boilers, for electrodes in the aluminum industry, and for barbecue briquettes.

Product specifications cannot be met in postattack production quantities required using simple "batch-still" or simple "pipe-still" distillation equipment. Modern refining equipment and methods must be available.

### Validity of Industry Descriptors

Before attempting to estimate production after damage and repair effort, the descriptors chosen for the petroleum refining industry were tested for their ability to picture the industry as it now stands. In total, the selected descriptors give results that are representative of U.S. petroleum refining. The designated types of refineries, their respective processing units and pieces of equipment--weighted by the relative capacities of these types in the United States, and using the "normal" crude oils selected for each refinery type--were analyzed by the accepted abbreviated methods of estimating production, by product. This yielded a calculated product wix that closely approximates reported U.S. production, as shown by the following comparison with Bureau of Mines production data:<sup>4</sup>

35

Product	Calculated Yield (%)	Bureau of Mines Data <sup>4</sup> (%)
كبيت بالمكر والمراي ومعيد معطيتها وماسب معيوره	مى بىنى تىنى بەتكەر يىلى بەتتەرىپى بەتتەرىپى بەتتەرىپى بەتتەرىپى بەتتەرىپى بەتتەرىپى بەتتەرىپى بەتتەرىپى بەتتەر يىلى بىلى بىلى بىلى بىلى بىلى بىلى بىلى	همينا الرجمير التي برعاينا فاي
Gasoline	48%	49%
Kerosene and diesel	29	30
Lube	2	2
Fuel oil	12	7
Asphalt	â	4
Coke	3	2
Other <sup>#</sup>		6
Total	100%	100%

Inclusion of still gas with fuel oil in the abbreviated calculation method accounts for the only large discrepancy. Bureau of Mines data show this separately, under "Other."

In some instances, it may be desirable to estimate postattack production capabilities of individual refineries whose crude oil and processing equipment differ appreciably from the averages selected. On the basis that all refineries of one type produce similar product mixes, product changes resulting from change of crude oil characteristics (i.e., degrees API gravity) may be roughly approximated by applying ratios derived from the average refinery of that type. This is illustrated by gesoline production capabilities of a large fuel type refinery with change of crude oil:

	Crude Oil,	Gasoline Production,
	API Gravity	Undamaged (%)
"Normal"	30°-40*	54%
Alternative	<b>20° - 2</b> 5°	8-10
Approximate decrease	12°	44†

\* Includes still gas, petrochemical feedstocks, and other finished products. + Large decrease reflects limited capacity of fuel oil equipment and processing equipment used for converting heavy oils to lighter products. The approximate ratio is 44/54 parts of gasoline per 12° API crude oil change, or about 0.07 parts per 1° API.

Then, for a particular large fuel refinery that usually is supplied with a crude oil of "X" degrees API and must be supplied with alternative crude oil of "X" - 10° API, the gasoline will decrease by

= 10 × 0.07 = 0.7 parts

With initial gasoline production capability at 54 percent, the reduced production using the alternative crude oil of "X" -  $10^{\circ}$  API will roughly approximate

$$54 \times (1 - 0.7) = 16\%$$

Similar approximations may be made for other products.

In this illustration the large decrease of gasoline with use of a heavier crude oil is based on the refinery initially having all processing units sized to operate at full capacity with the "normal" crude. With heavier crudes, the heavy oil processing units limit the total refinery capacity. Gasoline production from individual refineries with excess heavy oil processing capacity of course would not drop as far as the 16 percent. The determination of the decrease would require further study.

37

÷....

### IV REFINERY VULNERABILITY

The vulnerability of petroleum refinery equipment to blast damage, drawn from published sources,<sup>8,10</sup> indicates that cooling towers, control rooms, fired heaters, and tanks--essential items in mearly all types of petroleum processing--are susceptible to blast damage at low overpressures.

### Cooling Tower

A cooling tower is the essential part of a water cooling system. Cooled water from a Marge basin or reservoir at the foot of a cooling tower is pumped to the individual refinery processing units, where it cools various hydrocarbon streams in heat exchangers. As the warmed water returns to the top of the cooling tower, it is distributed or sprayed over baffles. Atmospheric evaporation, either with natural convection air currents or with forced draft fans, cool the water as it drains back to the basin or reservoir.

Characteristically, these water cooling towers are lightweight. To function, they must have numerous water and air flow baffles with sufficient open space for large quantities of air to enter, flow through, and exhaust. The only strength required by such a tower, other than that needed to withstand normal wind pressure, is that needed to support its own weight. This weight consists of structural members and appropriate baffles to properly channel air flows and water flows, piping to return the warmed water to the top, distribute it, and possibly forced-draft fans.<sup>8</sup>,1,11,12

39

一日日本 こうまんをまた

Construction materials here must withstand a constant warm and moist atmospheric condition. Refiners have found the most satisfactory materials for this service to be redwood and asbestos. Ĵ,

in second of the second

ł

1

1

1

なるというのでないないである

A second second second

Published sources<sup>9,10</sup> indicate that these cooling towers are susceptible to blast damage at about 0.3-0.5 psi overpressure. A large cooling tower 90 ft wide, 76 ft high, and 325 ft long is damaged at about 0.3 psi.<sup>9</sup> At this overpressure, the corrugated asbestos louvers on the windward side will shatter and their fragments will be blown into the interstices of the tower, with little or no damage to the internal parts of the structure. A small cooling tower of three cells, each 20 ft wide, 20 ft long, and 15 ft high, is damaged at about 0.5 psi to 1.0 psi,<sup>10</sup> when corrugated asbestos louvers on the blast-loaded side shatter and are blown into the interstices of the tower; probability of failure is 1 percent at 0.5 psi, 50 percent at 0.75 psi, and 99 percent at 1.0 psi.

For this study, the outer louvers were assumed to break at about 0.3 to 0.5 psi overpressure, because petroleum refineries normally use large cooling towers. The loss of the louvers decreases the efficiency of the tower to about 70 percent but does not completely shut down the refinery.

Higher overpressures result in greater damage. At about 1.5 psi overpressure, approximately 25 percent of the interior baffles are destroyed,<sup>10</sup> reducing cooling tower efficiency to about 50 percent. At about 3.5 psi, the tower structure collapses<sup>9</sup> and must be rebuilt. Before rebuilding, water could temporarily be cooled on an emergency basis, if other refinery equipment still operable required cool water, by spraying the circulating warmed water over the surface of the collecting basin or on the mass of debris that may remain. This would accomplish some cooling, similar to a simple cooling spray pond.

### Controls

The electrical controls of a processing unit (manual switches and remote-operated electrical switches for motor operated equipment) are a part of its control system. These controls, or switchgear, are characteristically housed in rooms with structural steel roofs. Published data<sup>9</sup> indicate that the steel type roofs of switchgear rooms collapse at 1,0 psi, causing damage to the switchgear.

In the central instrument control room are the various instruments required for adequate indication and control of process conditions. Characteristically, these instruments are glass-fronted and some may contain jewel-bearing wheatstone bridge galvanometers. A low overpressure level of about 0.5 psi will break the glass fronts and possibly damage the jewel-bearing parts, rendering the instruments unusable.

The instrument control equipment of a process unit is normally housed in rooms with either a structural steel roof or a precast concrete roof. This study assumed that the steel roof is used on the older, less expensive, and less complex process units, i.e., the crude topping, vacuum flashing, light oil treating, and asphalt process units.

Published data<sup>9</sup> indicate that structural steel roofs on instrument control rooms survive a 1.0 psi overpressure because outer windows have broken, relieving the roof pressure. However, it was assumed that instruments are damaged from flying shattered glass particles at 1.0 psi.

The concrete roof is found in instrument control rooms in complex process units or in process units requiring "double-dock" structures. Published data<sup>9</sup> indicate that control rooms with concrete roofs suffer frame deformation at 1.0 psi and that the roofs of all control rooms collapse at 1.5 psi overpressure.

41

مدر باست از **القدر**د. ای و میتوشیالی مار

Control systems, from the instrument to the equipment that is controlled, normally consist of pressure-controlled pneumatic systems or low energy electrical systems. The pneumatic systems are susceptible to dust and pinched tubing difficulties; the electrical systems are suscoptible to wiring breakage or short-circuiting. These conditions of instrument damage can be expected after collapse of the control room roof.

Thus, it is considered that at 1.0 psi the crude topping, vacuum flashing, light will treating, and asphalt processing units would be shut down because of damage to their control rooms. It is recognized that emphasis would be placed on repair of the crude topping unit sufficiently to permit production of at least some products. Because the crude topping process is moderately simple in operation, it can operate to some degree with partial manual control. The author has assumed that sufficient emergency repair could be made to the crude topping unit to permit it to operate at 50 percent of initial capacity.

The vacuum flashing, light oil treating, and asphalt processes would remain shut down until scheduled postattack repair could be made. Until these units are repaired, the fuels, complete processing, and lube refineries could not operate at more than 50 percent of initial capacity; some products do not meet normal specifications. However, the asphalt and asphalt and lube refineries suffer greater capacity reduction because the process units of their principal product, asphalt, are shut down.

At 1.5 psi overpressure, all refinery processing is shut down because of damage to third systems.

### Fired Heater

The application of heat in petroleum processing is primarily by means of a fired heater. Characteristically, this is an insulated brickwork fire box with oil-flow tules along its inner surfaces.<sup>1</sup> • 18 At about 2.0 psi overpressure, the insulated brickwork breaks and pieces fall to the bottom of the box, demoging the burners and redirecting the flow of heat in the fire box.<sup>9</sup> This allows excessive channeling of hot flue gases to one part of the firebox, with resultant overheating and equipment failure. It is assumed that the fired heater is unusable after 2.9 psi.

### Tanks

The fourth item of refinery equipment that suffers damage at low blast overpressure is tankage, for storage of crude oil, intermediate products, and finished products. Adequate storage capacity is essential to maintaining proper relative throughputs among processing units within a refinery. Blast damage to tanks occurs over a wide range of overpressure. However, the damage effects that could stop refining operations occur at overpressures above 1.5 psi, where operations are already stopped because of control house roof collapse.

The roofs of cone roof tanks collapse and sink to the bottom of the tank after about 1 psi overpressure,<sup>9</sup> although the tank may still be used in this condition on an emergency basis. For either a cone roof or a floating roof type of tank, the overpressure level that will cause damage that stops storage operation will vary with the relative amount of liquid in the tank.<sup>9,10</sup> About 3 psi overpressure will rupture and uplift a half-filled tank, while about 6.5 psi overpressure will rupture and uplift a tank 0.9 filled. Under normal operating conditions, refinery tankage averages about one-half filled. Thus, tankage is considered to be unusable after about 3 psi overpressure.

43

1. Jan 19.

のであるというという

eres eres

Based on the above, the pattern of continued production capability after low overpressure is as follows:

......

i.

		Products	ion Capabili E Initial Ca	ty sa Percent pacity
Overpressure	Damage To	Fi Complete and Lube	uel, Processing Refinerion	Asphalt, and Asphalt and Lube Refineries
< 0.3		10	00%	100%
0.3-0.5	Cooling tower, glass-fronted instruments		70	70
1.0	Control instruments and switchgear	i	50	15-22
> 1.5	All processes, be- cause of damage to control rooms		0	o

Figure 5 summarizes the complete range of blast damage effects from 0.3 to 20 psi, drawn from published literature<sup>9,10</sup> for each of the selected 25 types of equipment critical to petroleum refineries.

44



45



Unver MS at 03-05 pe ğ

. . . . .

**}** 

Rant collin

Fich center

Derse and the second

j

Currents are they

Firm atten

Ferre cash 

Care and the state

Numeral Street

### V REFINERY REPAIR

After a refinery is subjected to blast overpressures of 1.5 psi or greater, there will be equipment to be repaired in many process units; even under normal conditions, the magnitude of repair effort would be such that only a few process units could be repaired simultaneously. Thus, it can be assumed that the repair of process units will take place in sequential stages. Selection of the sequence of refining unit repair will be determined by which products to produce and in what volume, or conversely, the selection of the sequence will determine products, volumes, and quality of product.

This study selected the repair sequence according to the logic that:

- It is most important to restore enough operating capability to produce some engine fuels--gasoline, kerosene (including jet fuels), and diesel--regardless of individual product quality.
- Next in importance is to increase the volume of those fuels.
- Next in importance is to improve fuel quality.
- Last in importance is the production of nonfuels.

### Repair Stages

On this basis, the repair sequence selected consists essentially of four major stages:

Repair Stage A - Repair the crude topping unit Repair Stage B - Repair the processing units used in cracking processes Repair Stage C - Repair the processing units used in upgrading products

Repair Stage D - Repair all other processing units

This sequence applies principally to fuels and complete processing refineries. In the postattack period there will be some need for lube and asphalt products, even though their volumes are expected to be small with respect to the demand for fuels. To permit production of these, the repair of specialty refineries differs from the sequence above enough for specialty products to be produced in conjunction with whatever fuels these refineries can produce. The second of the second secon

1

The sequence of processing unit repair for each refinery type is summarized in Table 7.

One underlying principle used in establishing estimating factors for repair is that the repair effort will be completed only to the degree necessary to permit refining unit operation, but that for the particular equipment repaired, the repair must be complete. The repaired equipment or system would be virtually identical to the preattack system condition, and all equipment that forms a part of the process unit's operation must be repaired before that process unit can operate. (When a completely repaired process unit goes back on stream, production increases by the increment of product processed in this unit.)

While following this principle means complete reclamation of most parts of the repaired refining process unit (fired heaters, control houses, fractionation columns, and so forth), it excludes repair not necessary to refining unit operation at that time (spare equipment, unneeded steel structural work, painting, and the like).

Repair requirements data were drawn from published sources.<sup>9 10</sup> In instances of conflict of data, or of incomplete data, appropriate estimates were made.

Table 7

•

-----

!

ł

## PROCESS UNITS ASSUMED REPAIRED AT EACH REPAIR STACE, BY REFINERY TYPE

Lecal		Larec	5 mail	Camplets		Asphalt	
Stafe	Process Unit	192	Fuel	Processing	Asphalt	end Lube	Lebe
•	Crude topping	×	×	ж	×	×	×
*	Vacuum [lashing	н	×	×	×		
	Vis breaking	н	Ħ	ж			
	Thermal cracking	ж	ж	ы			
	Thermal reforming	ы		X			
	Catalytic cracking	×	×	×			
	Catalytic reforming	×	H	H			
	Coking		×				
	Asphalt				×	×	
	Vacuum distillation					Ħ	Ħ
	Lube and specialites					9 <del>4</del>	set
U	Vacuum distillation			м			
	Thermal crecking				×	X	×
	Thermal reforming				н	×	м
	Catalytic cracking				X	M	ж
	Catalytic reforming				ы	ખ	и
	Polymerization	×	ж	ж			
	Alkylation	×	H	×			
	<b>Hydrogen treating</b>	×	×	×			
	Lube and specialtics			×			
	Light oil treating	×	я	×			
6	Polymerization				H	м	Ħ
	Altyletion						×
	Light oil treating				×	×	ы
	Asphal t		х	×			
	Coking	×		ы			

49

- ++-

-

ł

### Quantity of Production in Repaired Refineries

Under normal conditions a refinery operates at or near its capacity, at a nearly balanced condition with regard to operating equipment; the crude topping unit operates at maximum crude oil throughput to produce raw stocks of gasoline, kerosene, diesel, and residual products at the percentages appropriate to the crude oil supply. All processing units are sized to process these raw stock quantities. With a sajor change in crude oil supply, one of the subsequent processing units may be some the limiting factor of total refinery production, because the components of the alternative crude oil may not necessarily be in the proportions required by the existing processes to make the desired product mix. Refinery production capability can be limited by the capacity of one particular processing unit. Further, if the capacity of that processing unit has ocen reduced by blast damage effects, total refinery capability is reduced correspondingly. This can be illustrated by a simple example:

A 165,000 B/D refinery may be designed to operate on a crude oil that normally has a maximum of 15 percent of raw product, P. The processing units for product P are sized accordingly at  $0.15 \times 165,000 = 24,750$  B/D. If the crude oil is changed to one with 45 percent of P, the processing of P is still limited to 24,750 B/D. This limits crude oil throughput to 24,750/ 0.45 = 55,000 B/D, even though the refinery was designed for 165,000 B/D.

If the capacity of the process units for product P have been reduced to one-half of normal (from blast damage), the crude oil throughput is limited to  $1/2 \times 55,000$  B/D = 27,500 B/D.

Table 8 compares, at each repair stage, the product yields from the six selected types of refineries, using the selected "normal" crude oils and the product yields that could be expected from crude oils comparable to the selected alternative crude oils.

Table 8

٩

i

7

.

;

1

1111

And a second second second

1

- - Man parents from

ð v

And Sold Block Street and

ì

بر به

## REFINERY PRODUCTION CAPABILITY BY REPAIR STAGE WITH "NORMAL" AND ALTERNATIVE CRUDE DILS

		i	Per	cent of Initial	Refinery Ca	pacity	
Repair	•	Large	Small	Complete		Asphalt	
Stage	Selected Crude 011	Fuel	Fuel	Processing	Asphalt	and Lube	Lube
~	Specialty crude oil				<b>9</b> 6	08	32
	30°-40° API Gulf	37	44	32	31	14	8
	20°-25° API West Coast	24	28	ររ	61	87	8
	20°-25° API Midcontinent	22	22	18	69	31	19
8	Specialty crude oil				96	5	61
	30°-40° API Gulf	50	62	37	31	14	59
	20°-25° API West Comst	28	33	23	19	28	3I
	20°-25° API Midcontinent	23	28	19	69	31	36
ų	Specialty crude oil				<b>36</b>	8	73
	30°-40° API Gulf	65	79	65	26	14	68
	20°-25° API West Coast	32	37	31	44	24	33
	20"-25" API Midcontinent	26	31	23	48	8	36
a	Specialty crude oil				100	100	100
	30°-40° API Gulf	10	100	100	24	13	92
	20°-25° API West Coast	38	42	35	4	23	9e
	20°-25° API Midcontinent	31	33	12	44	26	26

51

\* See Section III for selection of "normal" and alternative crude oils.

1

\*\*\*\*\*\*

The limits placed on production capability by the use of alternative crude oils are pronounced in the asphalt and the asphelt and lube refineries. This limited capability reflects the emphasis on only light fuel products coupled with the volume limitations of repaired and operable processes, as well as the difference in crude cil supply. The refinery normally uses heavy crude oils to produce mainly asphalt-type products and has limited process capacity to produce gasoline. - 王武帝である中国王が王がの王がの王が、王がらの王がの王ををたたがって、この王がっている」をはるときとなるの

In Repair Stage A, the crude topping process unit is repaired and some light fuel products can be produced. If the refinery must use an alternative crude oil that contains a large percentage of a gasolinetype raw product, the refinery throughput is limited by the gasoline processing capacity. As successive repair stages B, C, and D are completed, more of the crude oil is converted into a gasoline-type product. However, the gasoline processing units remain the limiting capacity factor, so that the resultant total throughput never achieves production levels equalling initial refinery capacity.

If gasoline could be blended into kerosene and diesel, the throughput would be expected to increase with increased repair completed. The degree of this increase could be determined only after further study.

### Quality of Products After Repair

Products that can be produced after the early stages (A and B) of refinery repair will not necessarily be "on-grade" (meet today's specifications). Under postattack conditions after low overpressure (0.3-0.5 psi), it is assumed that refineries can operate with balanced operating conditions: capacities of process units within a refinery remain proportional to preattack capacities, and products receive adequate processing to meet specifications.

After 1.0 psi, all process units except vacuum flashing, light oil treating, and asphalt are capable of operating at 50 percent of initial capacity. Some products could meet specifications.

After 1.5 psi or higher overpressures, however, all refinery processing units are shut down. Making repairs in sequential stages temporarily leaves some process units inoperable. It is assumed that in the early repair stages, raw gasoline stock (and other fuel stocks) can be produced, but other process units to upgrade the gasoline and keep it "on-grade" are temporarily inoperable. As a result, gasoline (and other fuels) are expected to be of lower quality than that normally produced.

This study took into consideration that in the postattack period the short term operability of engines is of much importance. While the light oil treating process units are shut down, fuel specifications cannot be met, so that short term operation of engines must take precedence over possible degradation of engine life over the long term.

The study also recognized that engines can operate on fuels other than those for which they were designed. Tests have been made of this, and in many instances results have been satisfactory with the acceptance of a decreased efficiency and a potential increase of maintenance. The degree of decreased efficiency and the degree of increased maintenance that could be tolerated would reflect the urgency of the need for the work of the engines and for the refineries' production. Investigation of these trade-offs is beyond the scope of this study, so a refinery product is considered usable as long as it is within its normal boiling range.

53

のなどの言語を見たいで、

### Labor

### Model Formulation

The labor effort required to repair a particular piece of equipment after blast damage is, in general, a function of both the complexity of that equipment and its vulnerability to damage, as well as a function of its size and type. To adequately relate the required repair labor to the equipment condition after blast overpressure, the labor is expressed as a function of: 125 H . . . .

如此,如此是一些是一些是一些是一些是一些是一些是一些一个,不是一个人的。""这些是一些是一些是一些是一些是一些一些是一些一个,我们就是一个是一个,我们就是一个是一

- Overpressure level
- . Lowest overpressure level to cause equipment damage
- . Maximum labor to completely repair the equipment
- Equipment size

For the purpose of estimating labor requirements, a mathematical model developed by URS Systems Corporation was selected.<sup>20</sup> This model combines a basic model or mathematical function describing the repair labor required for a particular size of equipment with a scaling model describing the effects o: equipment size. The basic model is:

$$R = L \left[ 1 - e^{-k(p-x)^{y}} \right],$$

where R = repair effort (man-days)

- I = maximum repair effort (man-days)
- p = overpressure (psi)
- x = lowest overpressure (50 percent probability estimate)
   at which damage is observed, psi
- k = a constant for given equipment
- y = a constant for given equipment

The constants k and y give an expression that best fits existing data for repair requirements of each type of equipment. The base of the natural or naperian logarithms is represented by the letter e.
This basic model, however, describes the repair effort for only one equipment size. Because a petroleum refinery may have many differentsized pieces of equipment of the same type, it is necessary to scale the labor requirements to the particular equipment size. This is done with the scaling factor:

$$m\left(\frac{c}{c_{o}}\right) + b$$
,

where m = a constant for a given equipment component

C = capacity or size of equipment component being investigated  $C_{c}$  = capacity or size of equipment component standard

b = a constant for a given equipment component.

The constants m and b are selected for each type of equipment to yield appropriate scaling for types of repair that could change with equipment size (welding a seam on a large or on a small tank), or remain the same without regard to size (replace instrument gauges). At the overpressure levels at which damage effects change, these constants will change value.

The combined model used in this study is:

$$R_{g} = L \left[ 1 - e^{-k(p-x)} \right] \left[ m \left( \frac{C}{C_{o}} \right) + b \right],$$

where  $R_s =$  repair effort in man-days for each specified size piece of equipment.

Table 9 lists the seven parameters (L, k, x, y, m, b,  $C_0$ ) for the labor requirement model for each of the selected 25 types of equipment. These are applied to the size characteristics of each piece of equipment to estimate the labor required for repair after blast overpressures of 0.5, 1, 5, and 10 psi.

Table B

ł

キー・シュー 一部の第二 コー・・・・・・・ たいのでものでした。 ともの 金付き

. . ...

PARAMETER VALUES FOR LADOR REQUIREMENT MODEL

الوربوجي بنداء فالالحا

		*	• <sup>-</sup>  د	k (9-11) <sup>5</sup>				
			<b>.</b>	-				L
	-1		*	Ч	*	P		Ca1 (.a
Control bouse, ##*	480.	0.7	1.0	1.3	ł	G.	20,000	Ca 11
Control house, Ch	.019	0.1	1.5	1.3	1	6	32,000	54 ER
Pired bester	370.	1.5	6.9	÷	-	<b>.</b> .	45,000	57 H
Fractionation column		0.001	4	-	1.1 9 5 6	-C.04 P 5 8	1,100	2 8
			:	;	0.64 9 > 9		•	
Latraction column	340.	0.004	<b>.</b>	÷	1,1 P & E 0.84 a > 8	- 0.04 P 5 8	1, 100	5
Cooling tower	ä	0.1		ń	Kumbur	0.	14,000	= 8
Reactor, cracking	¥.	0.3	2. I	۲.			82	57 LT
Meactor, chemical	ž.	0.015	10			G.	ŝ	21 PJ
Retenerator	24.	1.0	2.1	1	1.4 p z 4	0.3 P S 4	058	ت ت
				i 1	1.2 p > 4	0.2 p > 4		
Pressure vessel, Morizontal Burnes concil modified	ផ័រ	16.0	1	<b>.</b>	0 0			
Pire summers a	: :						ş	(and)
forme task. Ch	175.				r.	0.	8	2
Storage tank, FR.	175.	5.5	0.4	-	1.	с.	38, 630	11 73
Storage tank, 5	200.	0.006	7.	ei,	0, <b>9</b>	0.18	65.400	2 2
Centrifugal pump	÷	0.7	12.5	.:	1.	o.	60, 600	
Electric motor	34.	0.16	3.5	:	0.86 7 5 5	0.10 9 4 5	1.000	2
Steam turbine	1 <b>8</b> .	0.091	•	5° 18	0.66 0 < 14		1	ĥ
Blower, centrifucat	17.	0.45	÷	, ,	1. 1.	0.	130	\$
Heat exchanger (stacked)	Ř	8.0	7.	~	۰,	ч. •		
Filter, rotary (vacuum)	n.	0.22	0.1	1.	0.10 P < 4	0.10 5 4 1	٠	Utam to ft
Instrument cubicles	Se		н.	١.	Runder	0.	110	20
Utilities, gas meter	2.1	6.0	1.5	, -	Number	<b>.</b>		Ladus (r lal
								a 1 ar
Utilities, gas regulator	2.1	0.7	••	;	Number	o.		Industrial
Utilities, elec. transformer	130.	0,0007		ų	Hundhe r	.0	61	ara Nya
			,					

v

• Calculated valves. Source: URS Systeme Corporation, Report No. 687-4, June 1968.

•

The results of this application show the amount of repair required in terms of blast overpressure level, for the average or representative size of each type of refinery. To determine the effect of refinery size, on repair requirement, the capacities of the refinery types-large fuel, asphalt, and lube--were varied and the resultant repair requirements determined.

THE REPORT OF THE PARTY OF THE

「日本のない」である

A. 1

The results for the six types of refineries at average capacities and for the three capacity variations are summarized in Table 10. The results indicate that the initial capacity or size of a refinery is the predominant influence in determining the repair requirement. Refinery repair needed after blast damage is within a given range, regardless of the type of refinery. This is illustrated in Figure 6.

An example of the application of the seven parameters (Table 9) to selected refinery equipment is as follows:

Refinery type	Small fuel
Refinery capacity	24,000 B/D
Processing unit	Crude topping
Equipment	Fired heaters
Number	2
Volume, each	15,000 cu ft
Overpressure	10 psi

$$R_{g} = L \left[1 - e^{-k(p-x)^{y}}\right] \left[m\left(\frac{C}{C_{o}}\right) + b\right]$$

$$R_{g} = 370 \left[1 - e^{-1.5(10-0.9)^{1.0}}\right] \left[1.0\left(\frac{15,000}{45,000}\right) + 0\right] \times 2$$

= 247 man-days to repair these two fired heaters.

57

فشواها فأجوعهم ذور ومشمد فستخلف فالمتحادث

معد شارعاني المعدار وشعائك المتحد والمعارية المعالية المتحافظ

Table 10

REPAIR REQUIREMENTS, BY REFINERY TYPE

			Labor in h	tan-Days	
Refinery Type	Capacity, B/D	0.5 psi	l psi	5 ps1	10 ps1
Large fuel	78,000 150,000*	36,000 70,000	128,000 245,000	178,000 341,000	29 <b>2,00</b> 0 556,000
Small fuel	24,000	7,000	24,000	36, 000	77,000
Complete processing	194,000	82,000	289,000	402,000	640,000
Asphalt	12,000 14,000	3,000 4,000	11,000 13,000	16,000 18,000	28,000 31,000
Asphalt and lube	7,000	2,000	6,000	10,000	22,000
Lube	4,000 27,000*	1,000	<b>4</b> , 000 25, 000	6,000 37,000	18,000 72,000

\* Included to determine the effect of refinery size variation on repair requirement.





S.

فالمستحد بتساوي وال

when has made a wind the to a 12.0

and the second second

Similar calculations were made for the other equipment and process units included in that same refinery. To repair the crude topping process unit after 10 psi requires about 24,800 man-days out of a total of 77.000 man-days to repair the entire refinery. These calculations highlight the fact that in that type of refinery, the crude topping unit requires one-third of the total repair effort after 10 psi.

Because of the differing vulnersbilities of different pieces of equipment and the variations in the amount of labor needed to repair that equipment, the total repair labor required to restore 100 percent capacity of a refinery is not a linear function of blast overpressure level. However, the amount of labor after a specific overpressure level is roughly proportional to the amount of equipment in a refinery. The repair labor requirement can be expressed as a range of labor required for a given initial refinery capacity and blast overpressure level. Figure 6 illustrates this graphically. For example:

Any 24,000 B/D refinery is expected to require between about 60,000 and 90,000 man-days of repair labor after 10 psi overpressure.

The range increases with increasing overpressure. At very low overpressure levels, only a moderate amount of equipment is damaged (cooling towers and storage tanks) and the range of repair effort is small. Since specialized equipment in different process units is damaged at higher overpressures, there is a wider range of repair effort at any given refinery capacity, depending on the type of refinery and the equipment included.

The consistency of the calculated labor requirements may be visualized by comparing them with new refinery construction costs. For a rough approximation, the current labor rate is about \$6.10 per hour,<sup>13</sup> and labor cost constitutes about 60 percent of total refinery costs.<sup>2</sup>

On these bases, the approximate cost of refinery repair after a 10 psi blast is calculated as shown in Table 11. These data are compared with the overall average costs of new refineries in Figure 7. The results indicate that the calculated labor repair requirements bear a similar relation to refinery size and type. The difference between the repair cost after 10 psi and full refinery costs includes design engineering, equipment damaged but considered not absolutely essential to immediate operation (i.e., spare equipment), and the cost of the equipment pieces not yst damaged at 10 psi overpressure.

## Crafts

For each piece of refinery equipment that has been considered to be damaged by blast overpressure, published sources<sup>9,10</sup> have detailed the individual crafts or skills that would be entailed, the equipment that those crafts would require, and the types of materials necessary to do the repair work. While there is a strict differentiation maintained among the crafts, there are instances of basic similarities. In a time of emergency, it is conceivable that one craft could quickly learn the techniques of a similar craft to circumvent skill or craft shortages. A published article, <u>Oil</u> and <u>Oss Journal</u>, December 5, 1966,<sup>2</sup> indicates current thought along this line. Crafts can be grouped by similarities of repair requirements. One possible grouping is:

Group	Included Current Craft or Skill
General construction	Mason, rigger, carponter
Mutal fabrication	Welder, boilermaker, pipefitter
Machining	Machinist, millwright
Electrician/instrument	Crafts for control instruments

Table 11

## REPAIR COST APTER 10 PS1 OVERPRESSURE

Refinery Type	Capacity, B/D	Labor Required After 10 psi* (man-days)	Labor Cost 1 (8000''s)	Calculated Total Cost <sup>1</sup> (\$000's)
Large fuel	78,000 150,000	292,000 556 <b>,0</b> 00	\$14,200 27,100	\$23,700 45, <b>200</b>
Small fuel	24,000	77,000	3, 600	6,300
Complete processing	194,000	640,000	31,200	52,000
Asphalt	12,000 14,000	28,000 31,000	1,400	2,300 2,500
Asphalt and lube	7,000	22,000	1,100	1,800
Lube	4,000 27,000	18,000 72,000	900 3,500	1,500 5,600

\* Man-days rounded to nearest 1,000. Aate = \$6.10/hr × 8 hr/day = \$48.8/day. Labor cost + 0.6.

بالعباب بعلاب

, . .

and a second second

1.1

. . . . .

1999年1999年1月1日,1999年1月1日日本書「日本山谷山」



シートには日本に日本

17

Q



の言語を見てい

SAN A STREET STREET

Based on such groupings, the general craft requirements for refinery repair after the various overpressure levels can be summarized as follows:

psi	Equipment Répair	Craft	Comments
0.3-0.5	Cooling tower	Carpenter	Outer louvers broken
0.5	Instruments	Glazier	Glass fronts broken
1.0-5.0	Structure and and tank	General construction Metal fabrication Electrician/instrument	Structures deformed and "soft" equip- ment damaged
5-10	Equipment relocation	General construction Netal fabrication Nachining Electrician/instrument	Equipment displaced from foundation
10 and higher	Nearly total rebuilding	General construction Netal fabrication Nachining Electrician/instrument	"Hard" equipment suffers damage

## **Repair Materials**

The materials required for repair of refineries are readily classified by type. However, the quantities of materials will vary with the blast overpressure level, the type of equipment being repaired, and the size of that equipment. The characteristics of equipment (see Appendix A) are given in dimensions such that the required quantities of materials for repair may be calculated when necessary. For example, the amount of brick required for a fired heater may be estimated as follows:

- Simplest configuration cube of "W" ft on each side
- Brick wall thickness 1 ft
- One internal fire-bridgewall, 2 ft thick, 3/4 of wall height

- . Roof, equal to wall dimensions
- . Floor, equal to wall dimensions Outer brick shell volume =  $6 W^2 \times 1 = 6.0 W^2$ Bridgewall brick volume =  $3/4 \text{ W}^3 \times 2 = 1.5 \text{ W}^3$ 7.5 Wª Total brick volume <u></u> ₩3 Heater volume Brick volume = 7.5  $\times$  (heater volume)<sup>2/3</sup>  $= 2'' \times 4'' \times 8'' = 0.037$  cu ft Qne brick Number of brick =  $\frac{7.5 \times (\text{heater volume in cu ft})}{2/3}$ 0.037 cu ft = 202.5 × (heater volume in cu ft) 2/3If a heater size is 45,000 cu ft No. of brick =  $202.5 \times (45,000)^{2/3}$ = 260,000

Similar approximations may be made for:

- · Steel plate in terms of tankage volume
- · Piping in terms of footage of pipe supports
- . Wood in terms of cooling tower volume

In each instance, the supply points and suppliers of materials may be found in published supplier listings.<sup>14</sup>

In the event that equipment is beyond repair, the refinery has the alternatives of:

- Cannibalization the situation of taking repairable equipment from a processing unit that is shut down
- Replacement buying new equipment and completely rebuilding the processing units needed

## Cannibalization

The equipment characteristics data (see Appendix A) have been presented in such a way as to make them usable for making cannibalization decisions. For example, if it is found necessary to obtain a pump, it is possible to refer to the list of representative equipment of processes that are shut down, verify approximate pump size and operational characteristics, and, with proper suthorization, cannibalize one that is appropriate.

## Replacement

The suppliers of each of the many types of equipment may be found by reference to published supplier lists.<sup>14</sup> In addition to the listed suppliers of equipment, there are possible instances in which equipment could be manufactured by companies that are not in that particular line of business, but who have the inherent manufacturing capability. For example, pressure vessels could be manufactured by shipbuilding companies. In the postattack period, the time lapse between equipment order placement and delivery will be related to both the extent of damage to the supply industry and the use of an appropriate priority procedure. It is conceivable that in spite of some damage to supplier industries, the use of priorities could result in delivery times less than those under normal preattack conditions.

### **Operational Materials**

The types of materials required for the operation of petroleum refining processes have been identified with the classification of the product with which each is used. This information, together with an approximation of the number of supply sources, is summarized in Table 12.

Sulfur and sulfur dioxide constitute a part of the supplies to nearly all refineries. The characteristics of the remaining supply material will vary according to the refining processes and crude oils

P

Table 12

;

.....

....

-----

## OPERATIONAL SUPPLIES

	Z	fumber of S	uppliers		Representative	<b>Representative</b>
Supply	1-10	11-20	21-50	> 50	Process	Product
Sulfur			x		Light oil treating	Automotive gasoline
Sulfur dioxide		X			Light oil treating	Solvents
Sulfuric acid	×				Light oil treating Alkylation Lube manufacture	Aviation gasoline Automotive gasoline Solvents Kerosene Lubes
Inhibitors	×				Light oil treating	Gasolines Diesel
Caustic				×	Light oil treating	Gasolines Solvents
Refrigerants		×			Alkylation Polymerization	Gasolines
Catalyst			×		Cracking Polymerization	Gasolines
Additives				×	Light oil treating Asphalt	Lubes and greases Gasolines Diesel Asphalt

used. Various strengths or concentrations of sulfuric sold are used, depending on the refining processes requiring it. The inhibitors used will be determined by the products produced, the processes used, and the crude oils supplied. Catalysts will depend on the processes used and possibly on royalty or patent agreements.

States and

·新学校·普通通路加速加速度的研究性。"他们在中国自己的相关。1997年前的全国的建立的研究。

1

In general, most of the operational supplies can be obtained from any of several manufacturers. Exceptions are sulfuric acid and inhibitors. Sulfuric solid is primarily used in the manufacture of aviation type gasolines (alkylation process) and in the treatment of the light oils to maintain quality specifications. Shortage of sulfuric acid could curtail the production of aviation and high octane gasolines and reduce the quality of light oil products.

Inhibitors are added to the light oil products to retard or limit possible degradation of the products before use. Shortage of inhibitors could create product quality problems.

Although additives as a group have many suppliers, the gasoline additives TEL (tetra ethyl lead) and TML (tetra methyl lead), which are used to increase gasoline octane rating, have a limited number of suppliers. Shortage of TEL or TML would reduce the octane rating of gasolines produced.

A detailed listing of all possible suppliers' materials required in petroleum processing is readily available from published sources.<sup>14</sup>

とういうないでは、ないのからしたなく、ない、

## VI USING THE METHOD

This section describes how to use the tables and figures presented to estimate production capability and repair effort in blast-damaged refineries. An example is carried through the procedure for illustration.

Example: At Watson, California, the Atlantic Richfield refinery receives 1.0 psi blast overpressure.

Knowing which refinery is hit, with what overpressure, the method of estimating production capability and repair effort is:

- \* Determine refinery size and type (Table 13)
- Determine crude oil supply (Table 14)
- Estimate initial production capability and remaining capability with no repair (Table 15)
- Estimate repair requirements by repair stages (Figure 8)
- Estimate production capability by repair stages (Figures 10-15)

With the estimation of postattack refinery repair efforts and production capabilities, the necessity for making several decisions before making actual repair efforts becomes evident. These decisions are discussed, and bases on which to make the decisions are indicated at appropriate points in the discussion.

### Determine Refinery Size and Type

From published sources,<sup>2</sup> determine the initial capacity and the type of refinery, based on the listed combination of production capabilities from the following five processes (see "Refinery Types" in Section III):

- Alkylation
- · Polymerization

ŧ

- . Lubo
- . Coking
- Asphalt

The Oil and Gas Journal<sup>2</sup> shows the example refinery to be a 165,000 B/D refinery with production capacities for: مديد بيشقه

- Alkylation
- Polymerization
- . Coking
- Asphalt

Location of this combination of processes among those included in the columns of Table 13 (taken from Table 4 but rotated 90°) determines that this refinery is a large fuel type, according to this study's categorization.

## Determine Crude Oil Supply

Crude oils available to refineries have been grouped as discussed in Section III. The "normal" crude oil and alternative crude oils are summarized by refinery type in Table 14. As discussed in Section III, a fuel refinery is considered to use a crude oil comparable to  $30^{\circ}-40^{\circ}$ API Gulf Coast crude oil as its 'normal" supply. Table 14 shows which alternative crude oils are considered usable for each refinery type, in the event that crude oil supplies or delivery systems have been disrupted by the nuclear attack. From this table, the "hormal" crude oil supply to the example refinery is seen to be comparable to  $30^{\circ}-40^{\circ}$  API Gulf crude oil; alternatives are comparable to  $20^{\circ}-25^{\circ}$  API West Coast and  $20^{\circ}-25^{\circ}$  API Midcontinent crude oils.

## Table 13

# DETERMINING REFINERY TYPE FROM PROCESSING COMBINATIONS

			Refinery Typ	41		
		Small	Complete		Asphalt	
Processing	Large Fuel	Fuel	Processing	Asphalt	and Lube	Lube
Alkylation	XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	XX	XOOX			
Polymerization	x xx x	XX	ğ	×	х	×
Lube	×	×	XXXX		X	ä
Coke	X XX XX	XXX	XXX	ĸ		
Asphalt	X XX X	XXX	XXX	XXX	X	
No processing						
combination						
indicated		×				

ļ

## Table 14

## NORMAL AND ALTERNATIVE CRUDE OILS, BY REFINERY TYPE

mplete Asphalt	ng Asphalt and Lube Lube	A A A	A A A	V V V	N	×	X
Fuel and Co	Crude 011 Processi	30°-40° API Gulf N	20°-25° API West Coast A	20°-25° API Midcontinent A	10°-15° API asphaltic	10°-15° API asphaltic and lube	30°-45° API lube

N = comparable to "normal" crude oil supply; A = comparable to alternative crude oil supply.

## Estimate Production Capability

.. .. .. .

The effect of limited process capability, as discussed in Section III, has been taken into account in Appendix B in calculating refinery partial production capability, both with alternative crude oils and after overpressures of 0.3-0.5 and 1.0 psi with only minor emergency repair.

Table 15 summarizes, for the six refinery types, refinery capacities for normal operations at initial capacity and partial production capabilities after damage from 0.3-0.5 psi and 1.0 psi overpressure, with "normal" and alternative crude oils. Whether the refinery has its "normal" supply of crude oil or has to operate on either of the alternative crude oils will be determined by conditions after a nuclear strack.

From Table 15, production from the example refinery after 1.0 psi overpressure would approximate 50 percent of initial capacity with "normal" crude oil and 15-19 percent of initial capacity with alternative crude oils. By using the product percentages shown in Appendix B, the individual product volumes would approximate:

	Initial C	Capacity	Product	ion Capab:	ility after	r 1.0 psi
	of "Norma	al" Crude	'Normal	" Crude	Alternat	ive Crude
Product	Percent	B/D	Percent	B/D	Percent	B/D
Gasoline	54%	89,100	26%	<b>42,9</b> 00	4- 6%	6,600- 9,900
Kerosene	15	24,700	8	13,200	2	3,300
Diesel	14	23,100	7	11,600	2- 3	3,300- 5,000
Lube		~~				
Fuel oil	13	21,500	7	11,600	7	11,600
Asphalt						
Coke	4	6,600	2	3,300	0- 1	0-
				·		1,700
Total	100%	165,000	50%	82,600	15-19%	24,800- 31,400

Table 15

## REFINERY PRODUCTION CAPABILITY WITH SELECTED CRURE OILS AFTER 0-1 PSI BLAST OVERPRESSURE

Blast			Percen	tage of Initia	d Refinery	Capacity	
Overpressure,		Large	Small	Complete		Asphalt	
ps1	Crude 011 Type	Puel	Fuel	Processing	Asphal t	and Lube	Lube
Undamaged	Specialty crude oil				100	1001	1005
	30°-40° API Gulf	100%	2001	100%	24	13	92
	20°-25° API West Coast	36	42	35	41	ន	e e
	20°-25° API Midcontinent	31	33	27	Ŧ	*	*
0.3-0.5	Specialty crude oil				20	70	70
	30°-40° API Gulf	70	70	70	17	10	64 19
	20'-25' API West Coast	56	IE	X	23	12	22
	20"-25" API Midcontinent	2	24	19	B	12	11
1.0	Specialty crude oil				15	8	8
	20°-25° API Gulf	<b>2</b> 0	50	50	ŝ	ľ	
	20 - 25 API West Coast	19	2	8	ю	Ś	19
	201-25 API Midcontinent	15	16	15	ŝ	S	15

73

٠.

Source: Appendix B.

It is possible that a nuclear attack will influence the crude oil supply. If it is necessary to supply this example refinery with a heavier than normal alternative crude oil, the gasoline production will decrease. With a crude oil comparable to the selected alternatives, gasoline production will drop to about 6,600-9,900 B/D, instead of being about 42,900 B/D with "normal" crude oil.

Planning decisions regarding the use of crude oils will hinge on the relative need for products. In this case, an increment of 33,000 to 36,300 B/D of gasoline would be gained by use of the light crude oil over the heavy.

## Estimate Repair Requirements

Figure 8 (a repeat of Figure 2) indicates that the overall cost to restore the example refinery to initial capacity is in the range from 240,000 to 280,000 man-days.

For greater detail of repair effort by repair stage, refer to Appendix D. Table D-1 details effort by repair stage for an average 78,000 B/D large fuel refinery. This is scaled up to the example refinery size of 165,000 B/D as:

Average 1 78,00	Refinery, O B/D	Example Refinery, 165,000 B/D
Cumulative Repair Requirement	Ratio to Full Repair	Corresponding Cumulative Repair Requirement
54,062	0.42	101,000*-118,000
97,955	0.77	185,000 -216,000
126,238	0.99	238,000 -277,000
127,699	1.00	240,000 -280,000
	Average 1 78,00 Cumulative Repair Requirement 54,062 97,955 126,238 127,699	Average Refinery, 78,000 B/D           Cumulative           Repair         Ratio to           Requirement         Full Repair           54,062         0.42           97,955         0.77           126,238         0.99           127,699         1.00

## Repair Requirement in Man-Days

 $*0.42 \times 240,000 = 101,000.$ 

 $+ 0.42 \times 280,000 = 118,000.$ 



## Estimate Production Capability by Repair Stage

「「「「「「「「「」」」」」

The state of the s

How much production each increment of repair effort will buy can be determined by estimating the production capability for each repair stage. This is done by combining the data of Appendix B and Appendix C.

This study assumed that refinery production capability will continue at the levels achieved with only emergency repair (to units damaged at low overpressures) until scheduled repair effort is made. Each repair stage completed will then permit a production increase corresponding to restored production in those process units damaged at higher overpressures.

Table B-1, in Appendix B, indicates that after 1.0 psi overpressure, sufficient emergency repairs can be made to permit production of gasoline equal to 26 percent of the initial refinery capacity. Table C-1 shows that this production capability is not surpassed until Repair Stages A, B, and C have been completed. Combining these data for "normal" crude oil yields the result: 「市政を見たる」はないのないの

Gasoline Yield as a Percent			
of Initial Capacity			
Production After	Production		
Overpressure = 1,5 psi*	After 1.0 psi		
13%	26%†		
22	26 1		
33	33		
54	54		
	Gasoline Yield as a of Initial Capa Production After Overpressure = 1.5 psi* 13% 22 33 54		

Percentage production with repair by stages.
Production permitted by emergency repair after 1.0 psi.

On this basis, the gasoline production from the example refinery after 1.0 psi would be:

Repair	Cumulative Repair Effort	Gasoline Production	
Stage	in Man-Days	Percent	B/D
A	101,000-118,000	26%	42,900
в	185,000-216,000	26	42,900
С	238,000-277,000	33	54,300
D	240,000-280,000	54	89,100

In other words, 238,000-277,000 man-days of repair effort will buy an increment of 11,600 B/D of gasoline (42,900-54,500 B/D); a further small increment of 2,000-3,000 man-days of repair effort will buy an additional large increment of 34,600 B/D (54,500 B/D-89,000 B/D). Similar relationships are developed for kerosene and diesel products and are shown in Figure 9. These form a part of the base of decisions on planning of repair effort. By comparing the product yields resulting from effort expended on several refineries requiring repair, the estimator may develop a basis for deciding where the least repair effort will gain the maximum quantities of the products needed.

This is illustrated by the Figures 10-15 that demonstrate the product yields from "normal" crudes for average-sized refineries of each type after selected overpressures. From these, basic decisions may be made after it is known which products are needed most and how much labor is available. Examples are:

- If gasoline is in great demand and sufficient labor is available, completion of repairs through Repair Stage D gives the best results (see Figures 10-12).
- If kerosene and diesel are in great demand, it is not advantageous to repair an asphalt, or an asphalt and lube refinery beyond Repair Stage C (see Figures 13 and 14).
- If repair labor is limited, and specialty refineries are hit, in addition to fuel and complete processing refineries, it may





78

-----



~ ~ 7

I



「「「「「「「「「」」」」」



Ŧ

FIGURE 11

PRODUCT YIELD VERSUS REPAIR EFFORT AT SELECTED BLAST OVERPRESSURES: SMALL FUEL REFINERY; 24,000 BARRELS PER DAY CAPACITY







a territoria di second



----

FIGURE 14 PRODUCT YIELD VERSUS REPAIR EFFORT AT SELECTED BLAST OVERPRESSURES: ASPHALT AND LUBE REFINERY; 7,000 BARRELS PER DAY CAPACITY

83



۹.



1

ł

(

P

be more advantageous not to repair the specialty refineries, but instead to use the repair effort in the fuel and complete processing refineries.

Assuming gasoline as the product in greatest demand, Figure 13 shows that to restore an average asphalt refinery to 100 percent of initial capacity after 1.0 psi would require 11,000 man-days, and an increment of 1,320 B/D of gasoline would result. Application of the 11,000 man-days, instead, to any repair stage for a large fuel refinery, would yield more gasoline. The increments of repair labor and gasoline production capability for a 165,000 B/D refinery can be shown as:

Repair	Labor in COO's of Nan-Days		Gasoline Production in 000's of B/D	
Stage	Increment	Cumulative	Increment	Capability
٨	101-118	101-118	42.9	42.9
B	84- 98	185-216	ο.	42.9
C	53- 61	238-277	11.6	54.5
D	2- 3	240-280	34.6	89.1

The repair stages must be completed in sequence. From this, it can be seen that if the example refinery has repair labor sufficient only to complete stages A, B, and C, it would be advantageous for gasoline supply to apply the 2,000-3,000 man-days of repair labor to the example refinery, instead of to an asphalt refinery. The asphalt refinery gasoline would only go up to 1,200 B/D instead of 1,320 B/D, a decrease of 120 B/D (Figure 13). However, the example refinery gasoline would increase by 34,600 B/D (from 54,500 to 89,100 B/D), giving a net gain in gasoline of 34,480 B/D.

In general, for the fuel and complete processing refineries, Repair Stages A and B result in distinct increments of gasoline, kerosene, and diesel production. However, when further repair is planned, it should

be noted that the combined labor of Repair Singes C and D makes a significant production increase over that from Repair Singe C effort alone. This results from the emphasis on light fuels production (i.e., gasoline). When nonfuels-producing processes are returned to operation, normal routing of process flows within a refinery is permitted. The heavy components of crude oils that normally produce fuel oils and asphalt are removed from the gasoline producing processes, so that these processes have a lighter petroleum fraction that can produce a greater amount of gasoline. Similar relationships are evident for kerosene and diesel production. Relationships of this nature may also be developed, as required, using siternative crude oils.

It is recognized that many variations of refineries exist. In some instance, a refinery that is being investigated may vary by a large degree from the average six types considered in this study. In this event, the correct equipment characteristics of numbers and sizes may be substituted in Appendix A. The seven parameters (Table 9) would then be applied to the modified sizes and numbers to yield corrected equipment repair.

It is also recognized that the sequence of repair stages and the repair of process units in each stage can vary, depending on which products are in demand in the postattack period. Repair effort has been detailed in Appendix D so that resequencing may be easily done. It is necessary for the estimator to recalculate production capabilities with each sequence selected. It is also necessary for the estimator to select an alternative sequence of repair and calculate the products that could be produced with the operable equipment at each repair stage. The summary of this effort for this study is shown in Appendixes B and C. Details of this effort have not been included.

Appendix A

,

EQUIPMENT SIZES AND NUMBERS

## Appendix A

## EQUIPMENT SIZES AND NUMBERS

The equipment that would be necessary for each processing unit within each type of refinery is detailed in Tables A-1 through A-17. These data are used to develop representative processing units and refinery categories, based on equipment data that reflect known or calculable vulnerability and blast damage reclamation requirements.

These equipment data are used in determining refinery vulnerability to low overpressure levels and resultant product capacities and the reclamation requirements and correlated production capacities after higher blast overpressures (see Sections IV and V of the main text).

## Refinery Equipment

Selected items of refinery processing equipment that represent an overall average of that type of equipment in the petroleum refining industry are described in terms of general characteristics. For refineries that include equipment that does not match the average given, the specific comparable characteristics of ind:vidual refinery equipment may be substituted. Although a particular type of equipment performs a specific function regardless of the refinery category, its size and therefore its reclamation requirements are direct functions of the refinery capacity and processing requirements. All pieces of equipment are individually sized for each processing unit in each refinery category. Individual equipment numbers and sizes for each processing unit are detailed below. Units of size measurement are kept consistent with data from which vulnerability and reclamation information are drawn.

Although these units of size in some instances are not the usual ones encountered in petroleum refining, they can be easily converted, if desired.

## Control Room

In some instances the control room roofs will be of steel construction that has been calculated to be damaged after 1.0 psi, instead of reinforced concrete construction which has been calculated to collapse after 1.5 psi overpressure. The steel construction is characteristic of older refineries, smaller refineries, simpler processing units not requiring structural strength for "double-decking," or those refineries where construction was strongly influenced by minimum investment principles. This steel control house roof could be anticipated in the process units of the following types of refineries: 

- Crude oil topping
- Vacuum flashing
- Light oil treating
- Asphalt

Of these, the first process is essential to all processing of crude oil; the second to separation of stocks for midbarrel and asphalt production and for feed preparation for cracking; the third is essential to all light products being on-grade; and the last is essential only to asphalt and road oil production. Emergency repairs to some of these as needed, would be expected before the refinery could be operated. Repairs would be in the above sequence, but only to the extent that they would then match the remaining refinery capacity.

The size of a particular processing unit control room is a function of both the capacity and the complexity of the processing unit. Larger capacity units tend to have a greater number of and more precise instrument controls, and more complex units require a greater number of control points. Control room size may be expressed as a linear function of processing unit capacity as:

V = a x c,

where

v = control room size in cu ft (minimum = 2,000 cu ft)

c = processing unit capacity in B/D

a = a constant dependent on the processing unit complexity.

For each of 16 selected types of processing units, the corresponding values of the complexity "a" are as follows:

Processing Unit	Constant "a" (cu ft per B/D)	Processing Unit	Constant "a" (cu ft per B/D)
Crude topping	0.374	Alkylation	1.667
Thermal cracking	0.746	Hydrogen treating	0,900
Thermal reforming	0.746	Vacuum flashing	0.374
Vis breaking	0.746	Vacuum distillation	0.900
Coking	1.667	Lube and specialties	3 1 2 2
Catalytic cracking	0.900	Asphalt	0.671
Catalytic reforming	0.746	Light oil treating	0,374
Polymerization	0.900	Naphthenic lube and	0,374
		specialties	2,565

Example: for a 90,000 B/D crude topping processing unit, control room

size = 90,000 B/D × 0.374  $\frac{cu ft}{B/D}$ = 33,660 cu ft

## Fired Heater

Many designs of fired heaters are in operation in various refineries. In addition to size variations, there are variations in burner location (floor, sides, ends, or top); in heat recovery (successive passes, steam generation, or waste heat recovery); and in construction
design (to permit ease of maintenance). A box-type fire box with floor mounted burners was selected as a representative fired heater. Heater volume approximates 0.8 cu ft per B/D capacity of the heater. Maximum heater sizes considered are as follows:

Refinery Type	Maximum Heater Sime (cu ft)
Large fuel	40,000
Small fuel	30,000
Complete processing	50,000
Asphalt	20,000
Asphalt and lube	20,000
Lube	20,000

In instances where a processing unit capacity requires greater than the above sizes, multiple heaters are considered.

### Fractionation Column (Distillation Towers)

Separation of petroleum into two or more parts is accomplished in fractionation columns by the different boiling temperatures of those parts. The heated petroleum enters the fractionation column where the liquid part (which has a higher boiling temperature) flows downward, and the vapor part (which has a lower boiling temperature) flows upward. For adequate separation of the petroleum parts there must be intimate contacting of liquid and vapor throughout the height of the column.

Actual design of any one fractionation column reflects the complex relationships of the characteristics of the petroleum materials entering and leaving the tower. This study made simplifying assumptions and calculated the size of each column separately as a function of quantity of petroleum separated, type of separation, and the percentage that remains as a liquid. This relationship is:

### $a = 220 \times D^2 \times R_{\star}$

whore

1.

D = column diameter in ft R = fraction of residual liquidc = column input in B/D.

- 2. Height required for one unit of intimate mixing (one "tray") is 22 in.
- Number of trays required for types of separation are as shown below.

Separation Type	No. of Trays = $c$
Stripping	10- 20
Primary fractionation	20- 40
Secondary fractionation	<b>40-</b> 50
Splitting	50 <b>- 70</b>
Super fractionation	70-100

Fractionation column sizes are expressed in cu ft.

### Extraction Columns

These are vessels used for separation of portions of petroleum liquids through use of selective solvents or immiscible chemical solutions, followed by a settling type of separation. Extraction column sizes are essentially the same as the distillation towers with which they are used.

### Cooling Tower

Extraction of heat is requisite to the operation of every refinery. This is usually accomplished by heat exchange with water and water evaporation, although air cooling systems with radiation exchanger coils with fans are also used. Deciding factors are equipment economies, climatic conditions, operational requirements, and water availability. This study considers as representative equipment the extraction of heat by cooling towers using induced draft fans for evaporative cooling of a circulating water system. The basic system is of a module construction with a volume approximating 18,000 cu ft. The outer surface has louvers of redwood or cement-asbestos, and the inner framework includes baffles and splash decks as needed for sdequate evaporation. Modules are additive as required for refinery cooling. Cooling capacity required is considered to be 4.0 cu ft of cooling tower volume per B/D throughput capacity of each processing unit.

### Reactor

Those vessels in which petroleum fractions change structurally are characteristically termed reactors. In most instances a catalyst is present. These vessels are in two groups, based on operational characteristics. One group includes those that normally operate at high temperature and pressure, such as catalytic cracking reactors. These would be of thick-walled construction and are expected to be relatively insensitive to blast conditions. In the study, this group was referred to as "cracking" reactors. The other group normally operates at a relatively low pressure and does not require as great a structural strength for normal operation. Examples are alkylation process reactors. This group was labeled "chemical" reactors. In either instance, the study assumed that reactor volume is essentially a straight-line function of reactor total throughput, which includes reactor fresh feed plus recycled material. This relationship is:

 $v = 0.1725 \times c$ ,

where

c = processing unit capacity in B/D.

v = reactor volume in cu ft

Minimum volume is considered to be 600 cu ft.

### Regenerator

In some catalytic processes the catalyst is regenerated, or returned to its active state, by transferring it from the reactor to a separate regeneration vessel, where it is properly processed by steam, air, and so forth. This study also relates sizes of these vessels to the totaled process unit throughput. This relationship is:

 $v = 0.580 \times c_{*}$ 

where

1

v = regenerator volume in cu ft c = processing unit capacity in B/D.

Minimum regenerator volume is considered to be 600 cu ft.

### Pressure Vessels

At several points in every processing unit, pressure vessels are needed for segregation of liquid and vapor phases, elimination of water, or separation of waste material. Pressure vessels are normally of heavy walled steel construction. While the vessel shells are relatively insensitive to blast, they may be displaced from their footings or foundations by blast. Differentiation is made between vertical and horizontal vessels, because of differing difficulties in handling during reclamation. Thus, this study considered only the numbers of pressure vessels of these two types that would be representative of each processing unit.

### Pipe Support

Economics of modern refining dictate conditions of ease of piping maintenance and simple flow modifications consistent with ease of operations. These factors have resulted in much of the process unit piping being supported on overhead framework. The amount of overhead pipe support in a process unit is a function of both the capacity and the

95

complexity of the processing unit. The linear fact of overhead pipe support may be expressed as a function of processing unit capacity as:

### L = A X C,

and the court of the court of the court

where

- L = linear feet of pipe support
- o = capacity of processing unit in B/D
- a = a constant dependent on the processing unit complexity,

The 16 velected types of processing units and the corresponding values of their complexity constant "a" are:

Processing Unit	Constant "a" (ft per <u>B/D)</u>	Processing Unit	Constant "a" (ft per B/D)
Crude topping Thermal cracking Thermal reforming Vis breaking Coking Catalytic cracking Catalytic reforming Polymerization	0.0049 0.0143 0.0143 0.0143 0.0490 0.0200 0.0143 0.0200	Alkylation Hydrogen treating Vacuum flashing Vacuum distillation Lube and specialties Asphalt Light oil treating Naphthenic lube and	0.0490 0.0200 0.0049 0.0200 0.1250 0.0093 0.0049
		specialties	0,0806

Example: for a 90,000 B/D crude topping processing unit, pipe support is

# = 90,000 B/D × 0.0049 $\frac{ft}{B/D}$ = 441 ft

Pipe supports are also used in the moving of intermediate products between processing units. This study weighted the complexity of the units included in a refinery and estimated the pipe supports between process units in the same manner as that for individual process units, but using the refinery capacity as throughput. Exceptions exist at either end of the scale; a minimum of 400 ft of pipe support is estimated for the smallest lube refinery, and a maximum of 2,000 feet for any refinery, no matter how large.

### Tankago

Tankage is one of the major items of investment in a petroleum refinery and it is essential to refinery operation. In addition, tankage is vulnerable to relatively low blast overpressure, and it has major reclamation requirements.

At the input to a refinery for the crude oil topping unit alone, a minimum of four large tanks are required: one being filled from the supply system, one full and ready to use, one supplying the crude topping unit, and one empty ready to be filled. If there is a secondary crude oil supply, additional tanks are required, as they are for each processing unit; the movement of intermediate products from one processing unit to the next normally requires segregation and blending of products and storage or residence time to accommodate process unit shutdowns for repairs. Seldom can only one tank be used between processing units as a surge vessel. If this is done, a shutdown of one unit forces the next processing unit also to shut down in a short time. At the point of product completion, much storage is needed--products are delivered to their respective markets in large quantities, and enough storage is needed to satisfy required shipment schedules.

The tankage volume requirement in terms of each processing unit capacity approximates a logarithmic relationship:

where

a log v = log c + b, v = tankage volume in cu ft c = processing unit capacity in B/D a = 0.807 b = 0.842

Example: for a 90,000 B/D orude topping unit, tankage required =  $15.2 \times 10^6$  cu ft

Reclamation effort after blast damage will vary with the type of tank. This study considered three types of tankage:

- Come roof tanks for those materials that are relatively monvolatile
- Floating roof tanks for those materials that could potentially vaporize
- Spherical (and semi-spherical) tanks for those materials that must be stored under pressure.

Each representative processing unit was examined and the appropriate amount of each type of tankage designated.

### Pumps

The pump requirements for each representative processing unit were investigated. The requirements include pumps that are needed for processing reasons within the process unit and pumps required for feed to the unit and for delivery of products from the unit to storage. Pump requirements are expressed as:

> Capacity = GPM × TDH, GPM = gallons per minute TDH = total dynamic head (in ft)

where

Tables A-1 through A-17 list the number of pumps required at each capacity in each process unit. The minimum capacity (GPM  $\times$  TDH) value is 10,000.

### Pump Drives; Electric Motors and Steam Turbines

Pump drives are frequently divided into two groups. One group, electric drive. is subject to electric power failure and is normally in service that is not critically affected by immediate and unscheduled shutoff. The other group, steam turbine drive, is normally supplied by steam generated within the refinery, and thus is not subject to immediate shutoff. The latter drive is used to power the more critical services in process units. Steam drive pumps are normally in service that is critical to at least partial pumping capacity, i.e., charge to a cracking unit fired heater. There is an approximately even division between these two groups.

Within each group, each pump drive was sized for horsepower requirement at 80 percent efficiency:

$$HP = \frac{GPM \times TDH \times Specific Gravity}{3,960} \times \frac{80}{100},$$

and the number of pump drives within standard power ratings available were detailed.

### Centrifugal Blowers

In some catalytic processes, the regeneration of catalyst is accomplished by passage of large quantities of air through the catalyst in a regeneration vessel at relatively low pressure. Blowers and their required drivers for this service are sized, based on the relationship of 0.112 MP per B/D of catalytic cracking process plant capacity.

### Heat Exchangers

Heat exchangers are treated in a manner similar to pressure vessels. Studies have shown them to be relatively insensitive to low blast overpressure effects, but they may be displaced from their footings or foundations. This study considered only the number of sets of heat exchangers, since repair primarily consists of righting them.

### Filters

These are relatively small in number, but they are included because they are requisite to product finishing in some instances and because they are vulnerable to damage at low blast overpressure. They are essentially a fabric-covered rotating cylindrical drum with valving arrangements to permit vacuum and pressure to be applied from within at different points during rotation. This study assumed that a representative filter has a canvas-covered 6-ft diameter drum. 

### Instrument Cubicles

In large size and complex processing units, refiners have found it expedient to have a portion of the control instrumentation located in an instrument cubicle near the operating equipment, rather than in the central control room. This study assumed that a cubicle consists of a small weather-shield type of enclosure housing six to ten instruments. Although the cubicles represent only a small investment, the contained instruments are a part of the control system of a processing unit, and they are vulnerable to damage at low blast overpressure (glass front breakage, instrument damage, or wiring breakage).

#### Utilities

Equipment necessary to bring in energy from outside he refinery is also considered. These pieces of equipment represent relatively small investments, but they are vulnerable to low blast overpressure damage. The fuel gas flows through a meter and a pressure regulator valve, both of which are normally unprotected. Every refinery requires at least one meter and one regulator valve. Electrical energy is received through

electric : transformers, also unprotected and vulnerable. This study assume: that every refinery requires at least one transformer, and largo refine is require at least three transformers to operate.

On the above bases, the equipment that would be necessary for each processing unit within each category of refinery is detailed in Tables A-1 through A-17.

101

### Notes to Tables A-1 through A-17

- About 5 percent of time is usual for shutdown and repair. Capacities for operating time only (excluding down time) would be higher by a factor approximating 100/95.
- 2. Single units of equipment are shown with only the size of the single unit in the "Size" column (the numeral 1 in the "Numbers" column is omitted); modular types of equipment have only a number in the "Numbers" column, showing the equivalent number of modules. The size module is reflected in the value of  $C_0$  shown in Table 9. Fractional modules in the case of cooling towers reflect combined use of a cooling tower by more than one processing unit. The number of fractional modules shown for any one process unit is that unit's minimum requirement (i.e., a crude topping process unit in a 24,000 B/D refinery requires 5.3 of the selected size cooling tower modules (see Table A-1).

EQUIPMENT SIZES AND NUMBERS: CRUDE TOPPING PL

7

.

			large	Fuel		Small Puol		Equipment by R Complete Processing	
Equipment	Unit of Measure	No.	51ze	No,	51K0	No.	51 E#	NO.	5119
						-			
Control wouse, steel #f.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		30.0		57		8		73
Control house, concr. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>2</sup>								
Fired heater	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>	3	21.0 16.0	3 1	40 30	2	15	3 1	50 44
Fractionation column	1,000 xt <sup>2</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>	4 8	20,3 1,8	4 8	39 3,5	2 4	22.3 1.1	4 8	50.4 4.5
Extraction column	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>								
Cooling tower	No.	17.0		33		5,3		43	
Reactor, cracking	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>								
Reactor, chemical	1,00° ft <sup>3</sup>								
Regenerator	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>								
Pressure vessel, horiz.	No.	4		4		2		4	
Pressure vessel, vert.	No.	8		8		4		8	
Pipe support	ft		380		740		120		960
Storage tank, cone rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		15,600		30,000		3,000		40,500
Storage tank, fltg. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>								
Storage tank, spherical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>								
Развре	1,000 GPM × TDH* 1,000 GPM × TDH* 1,000 GPM × TDH*	8 12 28	160 80 90	8 12 28	300 130 180	4 6 14	90 50 60	8 40	400 200
Electric motor	Нр Нр Нр	4 6 14	50 25 30	4 6 14	100 50 50	2 3 7	30 15 20	4 20	125 60
Steam turbine	Кр Нр Нр	4 6 14	50 25 30	4 6 14	10. 50 50	2 3 7	30 15 20	4 20	125 <b>6</b> 0
Centrifugal blower	Нр								
Hest exchanger	No.	72		72		36		72	
Filter	No,								
Instrument cubicle	No.								

\* Gallons per minute X total dynamic head,

A

I.

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

~ 7

NUMBERS: CRUDE TOPPING PROCESSING UNIT

<u> </u>	Equips	wht by No:	finery 1	type and C	apacity	(1/5)		BAT P				
Tuel	Pro	cessior		Aspb	alt		and Lube Lube					
,000	194	,000	12,000 14,000		,000	7,	000	4,	000	27	,000	
Size	No.	5120	Xo,	<i>8110</i>	No,	<u> ŝize</u>	Xo.	Sisa	No.	5124	Xo.	Size
5		73		4,3		5		3		2,0		10
15	3 1	50 44		9.6		11		7	?	1.5	2	10
22,3 1,1	4	50,4 4,5		6.3 0.7 0.9		7.4 0.8 1.0	2	3.2 0.3	2	4.1 0.4	2 4	13.5 1.3
~												
	43		2.6		3.1		1,6		0.91		6.1	
	4		1		1		1		1		1	
	8		2		2		2		2		2	
120		960		70		80		40		20		140
3,000		40,500		1,290		1,500		660		<b>51</b> J		3,450
90 30	8 40	400 200	2 3	90 40	2 3	100 50	2 10	60 30	2 3	30 20	2 3	200 100
60			7	80	7	70			7	20	7	129
30 15 20	4 20	125 60	3	30 15 20	3	30 15 20		20	5	10	3	80 30 40
30 15 20	4 20	125 60	2	30 15 20	2 4	30 15	5	20 16	7	10	2	60 30 40
	72		18		10		18		18		18	

M. States - Lange St. Commission Marine and a second

- -7

1

and a second report of the second report of

EQUIPMENT SIZES AND NUMBERS I THEREAL CRACKING PROCESSING

			Large	* Puel		8ma1	1 Fuel	Equipe Cos Pro-	mat by Nu aplete cessing	finery ?	(inery Type a	
19 mar 4 <b>19 mar 19</b> 19		<u></u>	,000	10	10,000		1,000	IVY	1,000		2,000	
	UNIT OI MERSHIT	NO.	5184	RO,	5154	πυ,	<u>9784</u>	#Q.	blaw.	RO.	ويون معجب ر	
Control house, steel rf.	λ,000 ft <sup>8</sup>											
Control house, concr. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>2</sup>		10,0		20		2		7		2./	
Fired beater	1,000 ft <sup>0</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>0</sup>	4	4.9	4	9.4		7.7		31		5,4	
Fractionation column	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>	4	7.8 5.9	4	18 13		6 4.6		24 18		4.: 1.:	
Extraction column	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>											
Cooling tower	No.	3.2		6,1		0.67		2.6		0,45		
Reactor, cracking	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>											
Reactor, chemical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>											
Regeretor	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										1	
Pressure vessel, horiz.	Na,										/	
Pressure Vessel, vert.	No.	12		12		Э		3		3		
Pipe support	ft		210		400		40		180		20	
Storage tank, cone rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		1,330		2,550		150		750		10	
Storage tank, fltg. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		620		1,200		80		450		50/	
Ftorage tank, spherical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										,	
Римри	1,000 GPM X TDH 1,000 GPM X TDH* 1,000 GPM X TDH*	8 20	280 30	8 20	550 55	2 5	220 25	2 5	850 90	2 5	150 20	
Electric motor	НР Кр Нр	4 10	100 10	4 10	175 20	2	60 10	2	250 30	2	50 10	
Steam turbine	HP HD HD	4 10	100 10	4 10	175 20	2	60 10	3	250 30	3	50 10	
Centrifugel blower	2P										1	
Nest exchanger	No.	24		24		6		6		6	1	
Filter	Na.										1	
Instrument cubicle	No.	4		4		1		1		1	1	

\* Gallons per minute : total dynamic head.

A

1. 2. 2.

### es and humbers : Thermal, chacking processing unit

<b>Small</b>	Yue1	Iqui pe Con Proc	wat by Re spiete cessing	finery T	Asp	hali Lube		Lu	be				
24	,000	197	1,000	12	,000	24	,000		000	4,000		27	,000
¥o,	Size	No.	5120	No.	8124	Xo.	<u>Bive</u>	No.	8114	No.	8110	No.	Size
	2		7		2.0		2		2		2.0		2
	7.7		31		5,4		6.3		3,2		0.9		6.3
	8 4.6		24 18		4.3 1,3		5 1,5		2,5 0,4		0.8 0.8		5 3,2
ł													
D.87		2,6		Q.45		0.53		0.27		0.079		0,53	
		3		3		3		з		3		з	
	40		180		20		20		20		20		40
	150		750		100		120		50		20		120
[	80		450		50		60		30		10		60
	220	2	850	2	150	2	180	2	90	2	30	2	180
	40	3	90	5	χŲ	a	20	3	10	5	10	D	20
	60		250		50		50		30		10		50
	10	2	30	2	10	2	10	2	10	2	5	2	10
	60		250		50		50		30		10		50
	10	3	30	3	10	2	10	3	10	3	5	3	10
Ī		6		6		6		6		6		6	
		ı		1		1		1		1		1	

ł

ð

- - - - ALAMA THE CANADA

### Table Aud

1

EQUIPMENT SIZES AND NUMBERS : THENNAL REPORTING PROCESSING UN

								Équipa	ont by Am	finery T	770 A.
			Large	r ruel	A AAA	Seall Yuel		Processing			
Equipment	Unit of Measure	No.	5124	¥0.	5124	No.	\$1 54	No.	51 20	No,	<u>, uno</u> #1 y
Control house, steel rI.	1,000 ft <sup>2</sup>										
Control house, concr. rf.	1,000 ft"		2.0		2				8		2,0
Fired hester	1,000 ft <sup>2</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		1.5		2,9				7.8		0,19
Fractionation column	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		3,1		ô.9				16		0.4
	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		0.5		0,9				2.4	2	0,1
	1,000 ft <sup>-</sup>		0,2		0,3				0.8		
	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Extraction column	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Cooling tower	No.	0,41		0,78				2,2		0,052	
Reactor, cracking	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Reactor, chemical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Regenerator	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Pressure vessel, horiz.	No.										
Pressure vessel, vert.	No.	2		2				2		2	
Pipe support	ft		20		40				120		20
Storage tank, cone rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		40		80				600		10
Storage tank, fltg. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		20		50				390		10
Storage tank, spherical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Pumps	1,000 GPM × TDH*	2	70	2	140			2	740	2	30
	1,000 GPM X TDH*	4	10	4	20			4	80	4	20
<b>61</b>	1,000 OM A 1DH.										
Electric motor	нр Мр	2	20 5	2	40			2	250	3	10
	Нр	-	•	-				-			
Steam turbine	Хp		20		40				250	3	10
	Нр Нр	2	5	2	10			2	25		
Centrifugal blower	Нр										
Heat exchanger	No,	5		5				5		5	
Filter	No.										
Instrument cubicle	No.	1		1				1		1	

•

-----

Τ

. – ". ".

\* Gallons per minute X total dynamic head.

A

------

RE AND HUMBERS : THERMAL REPORTING PROCESSING UNIT

	Equi p Co	mpt by Re splete	fimery 7	ype and C	spacity	( <b>m/</b> D)	A45	skal (	ويصادرون ومعروب والت				
Small Fuel		weeking		Aspi	alt.		8.50	and Lune		Lube			
24,000		1,000				1,000					27	,000	
				01 14	_ <u></u>				NU,		NU.		
				<b>3</b> 0		2		Ĩ		2,0		2	
		7.8		0,19		0.23		5, 11		0,22		1.5	
		16 2.4 0.8	2	0.4 0.1	2	0.5 0.1	2	0.3 0.1	2	0.5 0.1		3 0,5 0,2	
	2.2		0,052		0,061		0.031		0,062		0,42		
	2		2		2		2		2		2		
		120		20		20		20		20		20	
		600		10		10		10		10		80	
		390		10		10		10		10		60	
	2	740	2	30	2	40	2	40	2	20	2	150	
	•	80	٩	20	•	20	•	<u>AU</u>	•	10	•	40	
	2	250 15	3	10	2	15 10	2	15	2	10 5	2	50 10	
	-				-		•		•	5	•		
	2	250 25	3	10	2	15 10	2	15 10	2	10 5	2	50 10	
	5		5		5		5		5		5		
	1		1		1		1		1		1		

------

2

7

ر به در کره ۲۰۰۰ می و

Ì

1

2

ي ، وريس

Ì

1

[

# EQUIPMENT SIZES AND NUMBERSI VIS SREAXING PROCESSING UNI

								Equips	wat by No	finery Type	
			Large	1 Fuel		San1	1 Fuel	Col	iplete Manine		
Equipment	Unit of Manuson	7	.000	1	60,000	2	4,000		,000	12.000	
		AU.	3140	Xo,	5110	Ko.	Size	No.	81ze	HO. 81	
Control house, steel rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Control house, concr. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		3.1		A		6	-			
fired heater	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>0</sup>	2	6.8	2	13		4		5 13		
Fractionation column	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		2,8 7,3 0,7		8,2 14 1,4		0,8 2,2 0,3		5 14 1.3		
Extraction column	1,000 gt <sup>a</sup> 1,000 gt <sup>a</sup>										
Cooling tower	No.	1.0		2.0		(1					
Reactor, cracking	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>	-				0.31		1.9			
Reactor, chemics)	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Regularator	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Pressure vessel, horiz.	No.										
Pressure vasael, vert.	No.	3		з		3		-			
Pipe support	ft		60		120	•	20	3			
Storage tank, cone rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		390		750		#0		100		
Storage tank, fitg. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>9</sup>		40		150		20		890		
Storage tank, spherical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>								170		
Puape	1,000 GPM X TDM* 1,000 GPM X TDM* 1,000 GPM X TDM*	2 3 4	210 40 20	2 3 4	410 70 40	2 3	70 20	2 3	400 70		
Electric motor	HP HP	4	60 15	-	125 20	•	20 10	•	40 125 20		
Steam turbine	Hp.	4	10	2	15	2	5	2	15		
	Нр	2	15	2	125	•	20		125		
	Нр	2	10	2	15	2	5	2	20		
Leatringel blower	Нр										
ssat exchanger	No.	8		8		â		8			
Filter	Xa.							-			
instrument cubicle	No.	1		1		1		1			

• Gallons per minute X total dynamic head.

A

ł.

### SIZES AND NUMBERS: VIS BREAKING PROCESSING WHIT

Small P	ue 1	Complete el Processing 50 184,000			Asphi	r11		anphalt		1.vbe			
24,0	00			12	17,000		,000 7,000 4,000		7,000		7,000 4,000 27,		4,000
No.	8114	No.	<u><u><u>51</u></u></u>	No.	81 x.e	¥o,	Sine	Ko.	dize	No.	5114	No.	51.24
	2	2	5										
	4		13										
	0.8		5										
	2,2		14										

Т

-----

0.31 1.9

3		3	
	20		100
	80		690
	20		170
2	70	2	400
3	20	3	70
4	10	4	40
	20		125
	10		20
2	5	2	15
	20		<b>1</b> 25
2	10	2	20
2	5	2	15

1

•

 $\mathcal{L}$ 

### Table A.5

BOUTHMENT SIZES AND HUMBERS: CONTRO PROCESSING UNIT

						ميصابدة طبيدانيية		Equil put	HI by Ro	finery Type
			Lorge	Tuel		Small	Yum 1	Prec	plete Plete	
		76	000	15	0,000	24	,000	194	000	12,00
Kquipment	Usit of Messure	No.	85 s.e	No.	83.84	¥0.	51.94	80.	\$1.50	
Control house, steel rf.	1,000 ft <sup>2</sup>									
Costrol house, concr. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>a</sup>		4.2		12		2		10	
Fired beater	1,000 ft <sup>8</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>8</sup>		3,4		8,5		0,53		4.6	
Fractionation column	1,000 ft <sup>8</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		4.2 0.6		<b>8</b> 1.1		0.4 0.1		5.7 0.8	
Extraction column	1,000 ft <sup>2</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>2</sup>									
Cooling tower	No.	0.94		1,0		0.067		1,3		
Reactor, cracking	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>									
Measter, chemical	1,000 ft <sup>#</sup>									
Regenerator	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>									
Pressure vessel, horiz.	¥o.	3		3		3		3		
Pressure vessel, vert.	Xo,	3		3		3		3		
Pipe support	ft		210		400		100		300	
Storage tank, come rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		280		530		10		350	
Storage tank, fitg. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>2</sup>		140		270		10		170	
Storage tank, spherical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>									
Punpe	1,000 GPM X TDN* 1,000 GPM X TDN* 1,000 GPM X TDN*	2	70 30	2 4	130 60	•	10	2 4	90 50	
Electric motor	Нр Нр 11	2	20 10	2	40 20	3	3	2	30 30	
Steam turbine	Np Np Np	2	20 10	2	40 20	3	3	2	30 15	
Centrifugal blower	äp									
Heat exchanger	¥o.	4		4		4		4		
filter	¥o.									
Instrument cubicle	No,	1		1		ì		1		

Т

· Gallons per minute × total dynamic head.

A

· -----

## MENT SIZES AND NUMBERS: COKING PROCESSING UNIT

24 Xo,	. List M J		ANA NE		Asph	alt		and .	Lube	 Lai		
<u></u>		194,	.000	12	,000		,000 Et ro	No.	<u>6170</u>	 64.74	X/	,000
		HU:	37.64							 		
	2		10									
	0,23		4.6									
	0,4		5.7									
	0.1		0.6									
0 <b>.067</b>		1.3										
3		3										
3		3	600									
	100		300									
	10		170									
6	10	2	90 50									
		•	20		•							
3	3	2	15									
3	5	2.	30 15									
4		4										
,		,										
•		•										
										$\overline{\mathbf{O}}$		
										19		

- La Marcel 11 March 11

EQUIPMENT SIZES AND NUMBERS : CATALYTIC CRACKING PROCESSING

		مىرىنىكە <u>ت (</u> ت			بديني منبتي			Equi par	ent by Rep	inery T	10
			Large	Fuel		Small	Fue1	Proc	sseing		- 200
Equipment	Unit of Measure	<u>Xo.</u>	Size	No.	81ze	No.	5124	No.	5114	No,	
Control house, steel rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										٩
Control house, condr. rf.	1.000 ft <sup>2</sup>		36.Ŭ		70		11		77		2.
Fired heater	1.000 fs <sup>3</sup>	2	11.0	2	20		10	4	22		0,
	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>	2	10,0	2	19						
Fractionation column	1,000 ft <sup>a</sup>	4	16.6	4	31.7		21	4	35		0.
	1,000 ft	4	1,3	4	2.5		1.6	4	2.7	3	0,
	1,000 ft <sup>-</sup>	4	0.6	4	1.8		0.8	4	1.4		0,
	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>	4	5,4	4	10.3		6.8	4	11.5		
	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>	4	2.9	4	4.8		3.6	4	5,3		
Extraction column	$1,000 \text{ ft}^3$ $1,000 \text{ ft}^3$										
Cooling tower	No.	8.8		17		2.9		19		0,10	
Reactor, cracking	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>	4	2.1	4	4		2,5	4	4		0.6
Reactor, chemical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Regenerator	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>	4	6.8	4	13		8	4	14		0,6
Pressure vessel, horiz.	No.	28		28		7		28		7	
Pressure vessel, vert.	NO.	24		24		6		24		6	1
Pipe support	ft		810		1,560		260		1,760		20
Storage tank, cone rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		3,350		6,450		710		7,500		10
Storage tank, fltg. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		1,640		3,150		350		3,750		10
Storage tank, spherical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		1,640		3,150		360		3,750		10
Pumps	1,000 GPM X TDH*	8	160	8	300	2	200	8	300	16	10
	1,000 GPM X TDH*	40	120	40	230	10	150	40	230		
	1,000 GPM X TDR*	10	50	TO	90	•	80	10	100	٥	
Electric motor	Нр	4	50	4	100		80 50	4 20	75	0	5
	нр Жо	8	15	8	30	2	20	8	30		
Steam turbine	Hp	4	50	4	100		60	4	100	8	5
	Хр	20	40	20	75	5	50	20	75		
	Нр	8	15	8	30	2	20	8	30		
Centrifugal blower	Нр	8	600	8	1,200	2	700	8	1,200		75
Heat exchanger	No.	96		96		24		96		24	
Filter	No.										
Instrument cubicle	No.	• 12		12		3		12		3	

· Gallons per minute X total dynamic head.

A

. 2

9

1

ł

D NUMBERS: CATALYTIC CRACKING PROCESSING UNIT

		Equipa Com	ent by Re plata	finery T	ype and C	apacity	(9/D)	Asp	halt				<b></b>
0411	FU01	Proc	4881 Rg	Asphalt And Lube Lube   12,000 14,000 7,000 4,000 27,000   No. Size No. Size No. Size									
	El tra		1000	14	,000		,000	<u> </u>	000		000		,000
<u> </u>	3120	<u></u>	5120	<u> </u>	01 14	<u></u>	314	<u>NO.</u>	3122	<u></u>	6170	NO.	5124
ł	11		77		2.0		2		2		2.0		6
	10	4	22		0, 38		0,45		0.39		1.0		7.3
	21	4	35		0.8		0.9		1		1,8		12
	1.6	4	2.7	3	0,1		0.3		0.3	-	0,2		0,9
	0,9	4	1,8		0.0	-	0.2		0.2	2	0.1	2	0,5
	0.8 8 8	4	23 6		V. 4	3	0.1	3	0.1		0.0		3.8
	3,6	4	5,3								0.5		•
9		19		0.10		0,12		0.11		0,24		1.6	
ŀ	2.5	4	4		0.6		0.6		0.6		0.6		1.5
	8	4	14		0,6		0.6		0.6		0.7		5
		28		7		7		7		7		7	
ł		24		6		6		6		6		6	
ł	260		1,760		20		20		20		20		160
	710		7,500		16		10		10		50		350
1	350		3,750		10		10		10		30		170
	360		3,750		10		10		10		30		180
	200 150 60	8 40 16	300 230 100	16	10	16	10	16	10	2 14	20 10	2 10 4	110 80 30
	60 50 20	4 20 8	100 75 30	8	5	8	5	8	5	7	10 5	5	30 25 10
ſ	60 50	4 20	100 75	ä	5	8	5	8	5	7	10 5	5	30 25
I	20	8	30				~~				~*	2	10
F	/00	8 96	1,200	24	75	34	75	24	60	34 24	75	4 24	100
+		<b>70</b>		49		24		49		47			
Ł		12		3		3		3		3		3	

P

. . . . .,

۰. ۱

### Teble A-7

EQUIPMENT SIZES AND NUMBERS: CATALYTIC REFORMING PROCESSING UNIT

								Equips	ent by Ro	finery T	ype and
		78	Large	Fuel	0.000	<u>Spal1</u> 24	Fuel	Con Proc. 194	plete ssing .000	12	A#1
Equipment	Unit of Heasury.	No.	Size	No.	Sizo	No.	Size	¥o,	Size	No.	3124
Control house, steel rf.	1,000 ft <sup>a</sup>										
Control house, concr. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>a</sup>		13.0		25		4		25		2.0
Fired heater	1,000 gt <sup>2</sup> 1,000 gt <sup>2</sup>	4	3,6	4	7		4,6	4	7		0.29
Fractionation column	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>4</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>	4 4 4	17.6 0.6 1.7	4 4 4	33.8 1.2 3.2		22,8 0.8 2,2	4	34,2 1,2 3,3	2	1.4 0.1
Extraction column	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Cooling tower	Xo.	4.1		7.B		1,3		7.8		0,081	
Reactor, gracking	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>	16	0.8	16	1.5	4	1	16	1.5	4	0.6
Reactor, chemical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Regenerator	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Pressure vessel, horiz.	No.										
Pressure vessel, vert.	No.	12		12		3		12		3	
Pipe support	ft		260		500		100		500		20
Storage tank, cone rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		390		750		90		750		10
Storage tank, fltg. rf.	1,0%0 ft <sup>3</sup>		1,640		3,150		330		3,300		10
Storage tank, spherical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		390		750		90		750		10
Ршаре	1,000 GPM X TDH* 1,000 GPM X TDH* 1,000 GPM X TDH*	8 24 16	70 50 20	8 24 16	130 100 40	2 6 4	90 70 30	8 24 16	130 100 40	12	10
Electric motor	Нр Нр Нр	4 12 8	20 15 10	4 12 8	40 30 15	3 2	30 20 10	4 12 8	40 30 15	6	5
Steam turbine	Нр Нр Нр	4 12 8	20 15 10	4 12 8	40 30 15	3 2	30 20 10	4 12 8	40 30 15	6	5
Centrifugal blower	Нр	8	250	8	500	2	350	8	500		50
Hest exchanger	No.	48		48		12		48		12	
Filter	No,										
Instrument cubicle	Nb.	4		4		1		4		1	

• Gallons per minute X total dynamic head.

A

. ₹¥ Table A.7

### IZES AND NUMBERS : CATALYTIC REPORMING PROCESSING UNIT

Small	Fuel	Con	plate		Aash	elt	· <u> </u>	Aspi	halt Lube		 111		
24	000	194	,000	12	, 000	24	,000	7,0	500		000	27	, ೧೦৩
No.	51 x-	No.	81ze	No.	Size	No.	Sizo	No,	Size	No.	<u>Si #0</u>	No.	Size
	4		25		2.0		2		2		2.0		3
	4.6	4	7		0.29		0,34		0.17		0.49		3.3
	22.8	4	34,2	_	1.4		1.6	_	0.8		2.4		16
	0,8 2.2	4	3.3	2	0.1		0.15 0.1	2	0.1		0.1 0.2		0.6 1.8
1.3		7. <b>Ú</b>		0.081		0, <b>094</b>		0.047		0.13		0.89	
4	1	16	1.5	4	0.6	4	0.6	4	0.6	4	0,6	4	0.4
3	100	12	500	3		3		3	20	3		3	
	90		750		10		10		20 10		20		80 60
	330		3,300		10		10		10		30		210
	90		750		10		10		10		10		60
2 6 4	90 70 30	8 24 16	130 100 40	12	10	12	10	12	10	12	10	2 6 4	70 50 20
3 2	30 20 10	4 12 8	40 30 15	6	5	G	5	6	5	6	5	3 2	20 15 10
3 2	30 20 10	4 12 8	40 30 15	6	5	6	5	6	5	6	5	3 2	20 15 10
2	350	8	500		50		50		30		75	2	250
12		48		12		12		12		12		12	
1		4		1		1		ı		1		1	

P

av Andrew Market (1996) 11 Alter Laws (1996)

ł

### Table And

EQUIPMENT SIZES AND NUMBERS: POLYMERIZATION PROCESSING UNIT

- . .....

		مان بر روین است. ا	1.a Pen	Fuel		50411	Fire 1	Equipe Con Pro-	ent by Re splete	finory 1	ype and
		78	,000	15	0,000	0	,000	194	, 000	12	. 000
Equipment	Unit of Measure	No.	Size	HO.	Size	Xo.	51 24	Kô,	Size	No.	S1 24
<b>O</b>											
Control house, steel rf.	1,000 ft <sup>2</sup>										
Control house, concr. rf.	1,060 ft <sup>a</sup>		2.0		2		2		5		2.0
Fired heater	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>2</sup>										
Fractionation column	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		0.7		1.4		0.23		2.1		0.1
	1,000 ft <sup>-</sup>		0.8		1.5		0.3		2,6		0.2
	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>				•		1.0		10		0.0
	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
	1,000 ft										
Extraction column	1,000 ft <sup>2</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>2</sup>										
Cooling tower	No.	0,29		0,56		0,01		0,94		0.057	
Reactor, cracking	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
ResCtor, chemical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>	2	0.6	2	0.6	2	0.6	2	1	2	0.6
Regenerator	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Pressure vessel, boriz.	No.	3		3		3		3		3	
Pressure vessel, vert.	No.			40		20		40			
Pipe support	ft		20								20
Storage tank, cone rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Storage tank, fitg. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		40		80		20		120		10
Storage tank, spherical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		60		110		20		210		10
Puspe	1,000 GPM × 110H*	2	40	2	80	6	20	2	130	6	20
	1,000 GPN X TDH*	4	20	4	30	2	10	4	50	2	10
	1,000 GPM X TDH*	4	10	4	10	_		*	20	_	
Slectric motor	Хр Но	2	10	2	10	3	10	2	40 15	3	10
	Нр	-	5	_	5		-	-	10		-
Steam turbine	Нр		15		25	3	10		40	3	10
	Нр	2	10	2	10		5	3	15		5
Control durant has	нр		5		3				10		
Centrings: Diower	Яр					_					
nest exchanger	No.	9		9		9		9		9	
filter	No.										
Instrument cubicle	No.	1		1		1		1		1	

• Gallons per minute X total dynamic head.

A

•

### Table A.B

PHENT SIZES AND NUMBERS: POLYMERIZATION PROCESSING UNIT

\*\*\*

	Small	7001	Con	iplete essing	118417 1	Asph	alt	(8/0)	As p sud	halt Lube		نىد1	be	
000	24	1,000	164	,000	11	,000	14	,000	7,	000	4,	000	77	,000
5144	No.	Size	No.	5120	No.	81 29	No,	Bise	No.	3114	Ro,	Size	No.	8120
2		Ż		8		2.0		2		2		510		2
1.4 1.8 9		0,23 0,3 1,6		2.1 2.6 18		0.1 0.2 0.9		0,15 0;2 1	2	0.1 0.4	2	0.1 0.2	2	0.2 1.2
	0.01		a, 94		0,057		0,067		0.024		0.011		0.072	
0.6	2	0,6	2	1	2	Ú,6	2	0.8	2	0.6	2	0.6	2	0,6
	3		3		3		3		3		3		3	
	20		40			20	20		20			20	20	
									•					
10		20		120		10		10		10		10		10
10		20		210		10		10		10		10		10
10 10 10	6 2	20 10	2 4 2	130 50 20	6 2 s	20 10	6 2	20 10	6 2	20 10	8	10	8	20 10
5	3	10 5	2	40 15 10	3	10 5	3	10 5	3	10 5	4	5	3	10 5
5 0	3	10 5	2	40 15 10	3	10 5	3	10 5	3	10 5	4	<b>5</b>	3	10 5
	9		9		9		9		9		9		9	
	1		1		1		1		1		1		1	

B

·. · · · · · · · ·

EQUIPMENT SIZES AND NUMBERS : ALKYLATION PROCESSING UNIT

. .

		Management of						Equips	ient by Re	finery T	type a
			Large	Fuel	- 4-24	Small	Fuel	Con: Proc	plete essing		
Egul pront	Unit of Measure	HO.	3110	ND.	a, our	No.	Ai za	NC.	,000 	No,	-+000
				مينيتيند.							
Control house, steel rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										]
Control house, concr. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		13.0		25		4		24		1
Fired bester	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,900 ft <sup>3</sup>		11.0		22		3		22		1
Practionation column	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		8.9 14.6 6.0 5.2		17 29 12 10		2.3 3.5 1.5 1.3		17 28 11 9,4		
Extraction column	1,000 ft <sup>2</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										ļ
Cooling tower	No.	1.6		3.1		0,42		3,0			1
Reactor, cracking	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Reactor, chemical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>	4	0.6	4	1	3	0.6	4	0.9		1
Regenerator	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Pressure vessel, horiz.	No.	6		6		6		6			1
Pressure vessel, Vert.	No.	4		4		4		4			1
Pipe support	f1		360		700		100		680		1
Storage tank, cone rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		330		630		60		600		
Storage tank, fitg. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		120		240		20		240		ł
Storage tank, spherical	1,000 ft <sup>9</sup>		330		630		60		600		1
Ривре	1,000 GPM X TDH <sup>*</sup> 1,000 GPM X TDH <sup>*</sup> 1,000 GPM X TDH <sup>*</sup>	2 9 4	60 80 40	2 9 4	110 160 70	11 4	20 10	2 9 4	100 150 70		
Electric motor	Кр Нр Нр	4 2	20 25 15	4 2	30 50 20	5 2	10 5	4 2	30 50 20		
Steam turbine	Нр Нр Нр	5 2	20 25 15	5	30 50 20	<b>6</b> 2	10 5	5 2	30 50 20		
Centrifugal blower	Кр										1
Nest exchanger	No.	15		15		15		15			1
Filter	No.										1
instrument cubicle	No.	1		1		1		1			

-

· Gallons per minute X total dynamic head.

A

Table And

. .

. -----

IZES AND NUMBERS: ALKYLATION PROCESSING UNIT

See11	Fuel	Con Proc	plete Assing		Asph	11		Aspi and	ualt Lube		Lu	Lube	
24	,000	194	,000	12	,000	14	000	7,0	000	4,	000	27	,000
No.	Sing	No.	Size	No.	51 14	No.	<u>ii 190</u>	No.	<u> </u>	No.	Size	No.	81 <b>64</b>
	4		24								2,0		6
	3		22								0,46		3,1
	2,3		17								0,4		2.4
	1,5 1,3		11 9,4							2	0,7 0,2		4,1 1,6 1,4
0,42		3.U								u.065		0.44	
2	0.6	4	0.9							2	0,6	2	0,8
6		6								6		6	
4		4								4		4	
	100		680								20		100
	20		240								10		<b>60</b> 30
	60		600								10		60
11 4	20 10	2 9 4	100 150 70							15	10	11 4	20 10
5 2	10 5	4 2	30 50 29							7	E	3 2	10 5
6 2	10 5	5 2	30 50 20							a	5	6 2	10 5
15		15								15		15	
1		1								1		1	

P

. . . . . . . .



EQUIPMENT SIZES AND NUMBERS: NYDROGEN TREATING PROCESS

							Puel	Revi pa Can Pres	pieto pieto usoing	linery Typ
		71	,000		0,000	- 24	,000	IH	000	13,6
Equipment	Unit of Messure	No.	3124	No.	51 84	No.	<u>Ei ş</u> ı	Ho.	8110	10.
Control house, steel rf.	1,000 ft <sup>2</sup>									
Control house, contr. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>2</sup>		13.0		25		2		25	
Fired heater	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		13.0		25		1.2		25	
Fractionation column	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		5.4 11,4		10 22		0,5 1,1		10 22	
Extraction column	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>									
Cooling tower	Ka,	3,2		6.1		0, 31		6.1		
Reactor, cracking	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>	4	1.0 0.5	4 2	2 1	2	0,8	4 2	2 1	
Reactor, chemical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>									
Regularstor	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>									
Pressure vessel, horiz.	Ro.	3		3		3		3		
Pressure vessel, vert.	No.									
Pipe support	ft		290		560		20		560	
Storage tank, cone rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		940		1,800		50		1,800	
Storage tank, fltg, rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		470		900		30		900	
Storage tank, spherical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		470		900		20		900	
Рикре	1,000 GPM X TDH* 1,000 GPM X TDH* 1,000 GPM X TDH*	2 4 2	310 170 70	2 4 2	600 320 130	2 4 2	30 20 10	2 4 2	600 320 130	
Electric motor	НР Нр Нр	2	100 50 20	2	175 100 40	<b>,</b>	10 6	2	175 100 40	
Steam turbine	Нр Нр Нр	2	100 50 20	2	175 100 40	3	10 5	2	175 100 40	
Centrifugal blower	Hp									
Heat exchanger	No.	12		12		12		12		
Filter	No.									
Instrument cubicle	No.	1		1		1		1		

\* Gallons per minute X total dynamic head.

A

.

1

.

Ì

.

1

....

# TES AND NUMBERS: HYDROGEN TREATING PROCESSING UNIT

		žqui p	mat by Re	finery T	ype and C	apacity	(B/D)						
ile.sl.)	Complete Weill Fuel Processing				4			Asp	halt				
24	, 900	194	,000	12	12.000 14.000			baa	Lube				
No.	31 28	No.	5114	No.	Size	No.	<u>,</u>	¥0	000	4,	000	27	000
								<u></u>		<u> </u>	5120	No.	Size
	2		13 <b>di</b>										
	-		20										
	•••		40										
	0.5		10										
	1.1		22										
	•												
0.31		a .											
2	o 4	0.1											
-	0.0	2	1										
3		3											
	20		560										
	50		1,800										
	30		9:00										
	20		900										
2	30	2	600										
2	20 10	4	320										
3	10	-	175										
		2	100										
	5		40										
3	10		175										
	÷	4	40										
12		12											
1		1											

ì

じ

٠

1

EQUIPMENT SIZES AND NUMBERS: VACUUM FLASHING PROCI-

		-			,			Equi per Com	nt by Re plete	finery	
		Large Fuel				Small	Tue1	Processing			
T i sumo n t	tind of Manager	78,000		150,000		24,000		194,000			
adaibmar	UNIT OI MERSURE	<u></u>	3110	<u>NO.</u>	5120	80.	81 20	<u>xo.</u>	5120	NO.	
Control house, steel rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		8.3		18		3		11		
Control house, concr. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>a</sup>										
Fired heater	1,000 ft <sup>a</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>a</sup>	4	4.2	4	5		5,4	4,	4.8		
Fractionation column	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>	2	8.6 1.3	4 6	16 2.5	2	11 1,7	4 8	11.5 1.8	2	
Extraction column	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Cooling tower	No.	4.9		9.4		1.5		6,7		1.9	
Reactor, oracking	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Reactor, chemical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Regenerator	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Pressure vessel, horiz.	No.										
Pressure vessel, vort.	No.	4		4		1		4		1	
Pipe support	ft		110		220		40		160		
Storage tank, cone rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		3,120		6,000		620		3,750		
Storage tank, fltg. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Storage tank, spherical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Ринре	1,000 GPM X TDH* 1,000 GPM X TDH* 1,000 GPM X TDH*	16	40	16	80	4	50	16	60	4	
Electric motor	Нр Нр Нр	8	15	8	15	2	15	8	20	2	
Steam turbine	Нр Нр Нр	B	15	8	25	2	15	8	20	2	
Centrifugal blower	Нр										
Heat exchanger	No.	20		20		5		20		5	
Filter	No.										
Instrument cubicle	No.										

• Gallons per minute X total dynamic head,

.....

A

1. Mar.

### SIZES AND NUMBERS: VACUUM FLASHING PROCESSING UNIT

5ma11	Fuel	Com	plete		Asph	alt	(	Asp and	ult Lube	Lube			
24	000	194	,000	12	,000	14,000		7,0	100	4,	000	27,000	
No,	81 24	No.	51 ze	Xo.	Size	Xo.	8120	No,	51 24	No.	Size	No,	Size
	3		11		3,4		4						
	5,4	4.	4,8		6.9		8						
2	11 1,7	<b>4</b> B	11.5 1.8	2	5,4 1,4	2	6.3 1.6						
1,5		G.7		1.9		2.2							
1		4		1		1							
	40		160		50		60						
	620		3,750		880		1,020						
4	50	16	60	4	70	4	80						
2	15	8	20	2	20	2	25						
2	15	8	20	2	20	2	25						
		20				_							

-

1

and the second state of th

B

EQUIPMENT SIZES AND NUMBERS: VACUUM DISTILLATION PROCESSING

		<u> </u>			ور داری و سروی مارد.			Equipm Com	ent by Ro: plate	linery T	уро
		Largu Fuel					Fuel	Proc	BBB125		
Raviowent	Unit of Measure	No.	Size	No.	5110	No.	,000 Bize	No.	Size	No. 5	
	مىسىدەرى <u>مىل</u> انى <sup>تى</sup> يىلى <sup>نى</sup> مەلىرىمىيىدە يىپ	مستان يوراده				1	<u>مستعيدية المريقي</u>	<del>سن عالي</del> ه		<u>مسرابين مسالي</u>	
Control house, steel rf.	1,000 ft <sup>a</sup>										
Control house, concr. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>								17		
Fired heater	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>							4	3,9		
Fractionation column	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>							4 12	8 0,8		
Extraction column	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Cooling tower	No.	4						4.3			
Reactor, cracking	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Reactor, chemical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Regenerator	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Pressure Vessel, horiz.	Χο.										
Pressure vessel, vert.	No.							12			
Pipe support	ft								100		
Storage tank, cone rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>								2,400		
Storage tank, fltg. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>0</sup>										
Storage tank, spherical	1,000 Lt <sup>3</sup>										
Римра	1,000 GPM × TDH* 1,000 GPM × TDH* 1,000 GPM × TDH*							24	40		
Electric motor	Нр Нр Нр							12	15		
Stean turbine	Нр Нр Нр							12	15		
Centrifugal blower	Нр										
Heat exchanger	No.							28			
Filter	No.										
Instrument cubicle	No.							4			

.

-

\* Gallons per minute × total dynamic head,

A

IZES AND NUMBERS: VACUUM DISTILLATION PROCESSING UNIT

Complete   Small Puel Processing   24,000 194,000			Asph	alt		Asp and	halt Lube	Lube					
		194,000		12,000		14,000		7,000		4,000		27,000	
<u>.</u>	<u>31 E 8</u>	No,	<u>Bize</u>	NO.	Size	No.	5120	<u>No.</u>	5110	No.	5129	No.	817.9
			17						5		2.0		8
		4	9,9						4		1.1		7.6
		4 12	0.8 8					3	2.1 0.3	з	0.9 0.1	3	6 0.9
		4,3						1.1		0,31		2,1	
		12						3		з		3	
			100						40		20		60
			2,400						440		140		960
		24	40					8	40	6	10	6	70
		12	15					3	15	3	5	3	20
		12	15					3	15	3	5	3	20
								_		_		-	
		28						7		7		7	
		4						1		1		1	

B

Sec.

1

. . . .

ł

EQUIPMENT SIZES AND NUMBERS: LUGE AND SPECIALTIES PROCESS

-----

			·· <u></u>		<del>-</del>			Rquipment by I Complete		
			Large	Fuel	0.000	<u>Small</u>	Tue1	Proc.	12.0	
Equipment	Unit of Measure	Xa,	8120	Ho,	Sile	No.	51 20	No.	Site	Ho.
Control house steel of.	1 000 ft <sup>2</sup>									
Control house concr rf	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>								50	
Nimed bauban	1,000 4+3							з	2.5	
FAIWU GEACEI	1,000 ft <sup>2</sup>							Ū	2,0	
Fractionation column	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>								9	
	1,000 ft <sup>a</sup>							4	1	
	1,000 ft <sup>-</sup>							2	2,0	
	1.000 ft <sup>3</sup>							-	3.5	
	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>								6	
Extraction column	1,000 ft <sup>2</sup>								1	
	1,000 ft <sup>a</sup>								1.3	
Cooling tower	No.							3,6		
Reactor, cracking	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>									
Reactor, chemical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>									
Regenerator	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>									
Pressure vessel, horiz,	No.							12		
Pressure vessel, vert.	No.							7		
Pipe support	ft								2,000	
Storage tank, cone rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>								1,350	
Storage tank, fltg. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>								360	
Storage tank, spherical	1,000 ft <sup>a</sup>								90	
Pumps	1,000 GPM X TDH*							40	120	
	1,000 GPM X TDH*							20	40	
<b>41</b>	1,000 GPH X 10H								40	
Electric motor	Kp Ho							20	40	
	Нр									
Steam turbine	Нр							20	40	
	Нр Нр							10	15	
Centrifugal blower	Нр									
Heat exchanger	No.							50		
Filter	No.							6		
Instrument cubicle	No.							5		

• Gallons per minute X total dynamic head.

A
and the state of the second second

.

AND NUMBERS: LUBE AND SPECIALTIES PROCESSING UNIT

		Equip	ent by Re	finery T	pe and C	specity	(1/0)						
Small	71002	Proc	DATT DESIAR		<b>≜</b> a cib	alt		ASP ANA	erit Taina		1.44	ha.	
24	.000	194	.000	12	. 000	<u> </u>	.000		000		IN IN	27	000
No.	5110	No.		No.	Aise	Xo.	Aise	i-	<u><u><u></u></u></u>	No.	X1 za	Xo.	<u><u><u>R</u></u></u>
					-	_							
			50								3.7		25
		3	2.5							3	0,15	Ĵ	1
			9							_	0,4		3
		4	1							7	0,1	4	0,4
		9	4,5								0,2		0,9
		-	3.5								V. 5	•	1.3
			8										2,1
			1 1.3							2	0,1		0,4 0,5
		3,6								0,19		1.3	
		12								12		12	
		7								7		7	
			2,000								150		1,000
			1,350								60		410
			360								20		110
			90								10		30
		40	120							60	10	40	50
		20	40									20	20
		20	40							30	5	20	15
		10	15									10	10
		20	40							30	5	20	15
		10	15									10	10
		50								50		50	
		6								3		3	
		5								5		5	

1

P

EQUIPMENT SIZES AND NUMBERS: ABPHALT PROCESSING UNIT

-----

				_	وغايبين ويردا المتحصر الك			Equipa	ent by Re	finery 7	ype and
			Large	Fuel		Small	Tub 1	Com Proc	plete essing		A
		78	,000	18	0,000	24	,000	104	,000	13	,000
Equipment	Unit of Messure	No.	5120	No.	Size	Xo.	Size	No.	Size	No.	51 24
Control house, steel rf.	1,000 ft <sup>0</sup>						2		2		2.0
Control house, conor. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Fired hester	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>9</sup>						0,7		3,1		2,9
Prantionation column	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>						0,2		0.6		0,6
Extraction column	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Cooling tower	No.					0.19		0.89		0.81	
Reactor, cracking	1,000 ft <sup>9</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>9</sup>										
Reactor, chemical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Regenerator	1,000 ft <sup>a</sup>										
Pressure vessel, horiz.	No.										
Pressure vessol, vert.	No.										
Pipe support	ft						20		40		30
Storage tank, cone rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>						50		320		300
Storage tank, fltg. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Storage tank, spherical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Римря	1,000 GPM X TDH <sup>*</sup> 1,000 GPM X TDH <sup>*</sup> 1,000 GPM X TDH <sup>*</sup>					•	10	2 2	30 20	2 2	30 20
Electric motor	Нр Нр					2	5	2	10	2	10
Steam turbine	Нр Нр Нр					2	5	2	10	2	10
Centrifugal blower	Нр										
Heat exchanger	No.					3		з		3	
Filter	No.										
Instrument cubicle	No,										

•

• Gallons per minute X total dynamic head,

A

#### PHENT SIZES AND NUMBERS : ANPHALT PROCESSING UNIT

	Small Fuel 24,000		Equipe Com Proce	ent by No plote essing	Afinery Type and Capacity (B/D) Asphalt 13 000 14 000				Anp	telt Lube	Lube			
	24	000	194	,000	12	,000	14	,000	7,1	000	4,	000	27	,000
	No,	81.14	No.	81 84	¥o,	81 xe	No.	Size	No.	51 54	No,	Size	Ko.	#120
		2		2		2,0		3		2				
		Ō.7		3,1		2,9		3.4		1,7				
		0,2		0.6		<b>0.</b> 6		0.7		0.4				
•	0.19		0,89		0.81		0.94		0.47					
		20		40		30		40		20				
•		50		320		300		350		150				
	4	10	2 2	30 20	2	30 20	2	30 20	2	20 10				
	2	5	2	10	2	10	2	10		10 5				
	2	5	2	10	2	10	2	10		10 5				
	3		3		3		3		з					
ļ												_		
												P	)	

. 1

المامانية والوروان المحافظ فالمارية

يتعين ومسارية المربوبان ويتبار

and an entertainty and a state of the

and a state of the second property in the second second second second second second second second second second

EQUIPMENT SIZES AND NUMBERSE LIGHT OIL TREATING PROCESSING UNIT

1

						· · · · ·		Equipm	ent by Ne	finery T	ype and (
Equipment			Large	Yuel		Seal)	rue1	Com Proc	plete essing	مىرىتىتىتىتى مەربىيە بىرىمىيى	Asp
P		75	, 900	154	0,000	24	,000	184	000	12	,000
Equipment	WILL OF MEASURE	No.	3174	No.	<u>8118</u>	NO.	51ze	No.	87 54	No,	51.14
Control house, steel <u>rf</u> .	<sup>6</sup> 11 000,1		14.0		27		3		27		2,0
Control house, convr. rf.	1,000 #t <sup>3</sup>										
Fired beater	1,000 ft <sup>8</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>8</sup>	12	3.7	12	7.2	3	4,8	12	7.2	ŭ	2.0
Fractionation column	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>	13	1,5	12	2,9	3	1.9	12	2,9	3	0,8
Extraction column	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>	12	1,5	12	2,9	3	1.9	12	2,9	э	Ú.8
Cooling vower	No.	4.8		17		2.7		17		1.1	
Nesctor, gracking	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Reactor, chemical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Regenerator	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										
Pressure vessel, horiz,	No.	80		80		20		80		20	
Pressure vessel, vert.	Xo.	40		40		10		40		10	
Pipe support	ft		200		380		80		380		30
Storage tank, cone rf.	1,000 ft <sup>a</sup>		3,120		6,000		630		6,000		250
Storage tank, fltg. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>		3,120		6,000		640		6,000		230
Storage tank, spherical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>										•
Римре	1,000 GPM X TDH* 1,000 GPM X TDH* 1,000 GPM X TDH*	40 40	100 40	40 40	80 80	10 10	90 50	40 40	200 80	10 10	30 20
Eléctric motor	HP HP Mp	20 20	30 15	20 20	60 25	8 5	30 15	20 20	60 25	10	20
Steam turbine	Np Np Np	20 20	30 15	20 20	60 25	5 5	30 15	30 30	60 25	10	10
Centrifugal blower	Hp										ė
Heat exchanger	Χο.	80		80		20		80		20	
Filter	No.										
Instrument cubicle	No.										

\* Gallons per minute X total dynamic head.

A

#### AND NUMBERS - LIGHT OIL TREATING PROCESSING UNIT

Smell	Tusi	Equips Com Proc	ent by Ne plote ensing	tinery t	ype and C Aabh	apacity	(11/5)	Asp bas	Lube			be	
24	000	114	,000	13	,000	14	,000	7,	000	4,	000	3	,000
No.	#1 s.e	¥0,	\$1.80	Xo,		Xo.	\$1.00	No.	Hise	No.	Size	¥a.	Shie
	B		27		8,0		2		2		3.0		3
2	4,#	17	7.2	3	2.0	3	2.3	3	2.2	з	0,55	3	3,7
а	1.9	12	2.9	3	0, <b>Ú</b>	3	0,9	3	0.5	3	0,2	3	1,5
3	1.9	12	2,9	3	0.8	3	0.9	£	0, <b>0</b>	ť	0.2	з	1,5
2.7		17		1.1		1.3		0.61		0.31		2.1	
20		<b>#</b> 0		20		20		20		20		20	
0 0		40		10		10		10		10		10	
	80		380		30		40		20		20		60
	630		6,000		250		290		110		70		450
	640		6,000		230		270		110		70		450
0	90	40	200	10	30	10	40	10	20	20	10	10	70
0	50	40	80	10	20	10	20	10	10			10	40
	30	20	60	10	10	5	15	5	10	10	5	5	20
	18	20	25			5	10	5	8			5	15
	70	20	60	10	10	5	15	5	10	10	5	5	20
	13	20	25			5	10	5	2			5	15
		••											
°		80		20		20		20		20		20	

. . . . . . .

. .. ... .

B

والقرار فالم

EQUIPMENT SIZES AND NUMBERS: MAPHTHENIC LUBE AND SPECIALTIE

			Largo	7u+]		Small.	fuel	Rquipm Com Pruo	ent by Re plote essing	(inery 1
Yout men ?	finit of Measure	78 No.	1000 Size	15	0,000 Nixa	34 Ko.	<u>.000</u>	1V4 No.	.000 Bi za	80.
D d to a france i r	TTAL WA MT BE MEET				·····		<u>VARU</u>			
Control bouse, steel rf.	1,000 ft <sup>2</sup>				*					
Control bouse, owner, rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>									1
Fired heater	1,000 fe <sup>3</sup> 1,000 fe <sup>3</sup>									
Fractionation column	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>									
Extraction column	1,000 ft <sup>2</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>2</sup>									
Cooling tower	No.									
Reactor, cracking	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup> 1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>									
Reactor, chemical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>									
Regenerator	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>									
Pressure vessel, horis.	No,									
Pressure vessal, vert,	No.									
Pipe support	ft									
Storage tank, cone rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>									
Storage tank, fitg. rf.	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>									
Storage tank, spherical	1,000 ft <sup>3</sup>									
Ридре	1,000 GPM × TDH* 1,000 GPM × TDH* 1,000 GPM × TDH*									
Electric motor	Нр Нр Нр									
Stean turbine	НР Нр Нр									
Centrifugal blower	Нр									
Heat exchanger	No.									
Filter	No.									
Instrument cubicle	No.									

\* Gallons per minute X total dynamic head.

A

K

AND NUMBERS: MAPHEMANIC LUBE AND SPECIALTIES PROCESSING UNIT

Small Fuel	Comple Process	ABWY T	Asph	alt		Aspl and	Lube		ini			
24,000	194,00	0	12	000	14	000	7,	000	4,	000	27	,000
No. Sime	No.	Size	<u>No,</u>		No.	Size	No,	Size	No.	Size	<u>No.</u>	Bize
								5				
							3	0.7				
								0.4				
							7	0.1				
								0.3				
							2	0.1				
							0.18					
							12					
							7					
								200				
								30				
								20				
								10				
							60	10				
							30	5				
							- •			-		
							30	5	,			
												,
							50					
							3					
							5					
										$\sim$		
										1	7	
										h		
•												
			1									
			1					-				

EQUIPMENT SIZES AND NUMBERS: PIPE SUPPORTS AND UTILITIES

1

1

			Large	Fuel		Small	Yuel	Equi pe Con Proc	ent by Re: plate	fisery T	ype and
		78	,000	15	0,000	24	,000	194	,000	12	,000
Equipment	Unit of Measure	No.	5130	No.	<u>Size</u>	No.	91 <b>2</b> 0	No,	Bizo	No.	81 14
Pipe supports	ft		1,040		2,000		880		2,000		210
Utilities, gas motor	No.	1		1		1		1		1	
Utilities, gas regulator	No.	1		1		1		1		1	1
Utilities, electric transformer	No.	3		3		2		3		1	1

~

ø

I.

A

\*

#### MENT SIZES AND NUMBERS: PIPE SUPPORTS AND UTILITIES

Equipment	by	Refinery	Type	and	Capacity	y (8/D)
-----------	----	----------	------	-----	----------	---------

-

	Small Fuel Processing				Asph	alt		Asp. and	tait Lube	Lube				
	24	,000	194	,000	12	,000	14	000	7,0	000	4,0	000	27	,000
14	No.	Size	No.	Size	Xo.	81 50	No.	Size	Xo.	61	No,	Size	Xo.	Size
00		880		2,000		210		240		240		60		400
	1		1		1		1		1		1		1	
	1		1		1		1		1		1		1	
	2		3		1		1		1		1		1	

り

### Appendix B

-----

ł

tinter and and

. . . .

### PRODUCT YIELD FROM CRUDE OILS AFTER LOW BLAST OVERPRESSURE

allan in season a

#### Appendix B

#### PRODUCT YIELD FROM CRUDE OILS AFTER LOW BLAST OVERPRESSURE

For each refinery, the equipment that remained operable and its degree of operability after low blast overpressure of 0.3-0.5 psi and 1.0 psi is determined,<sup>9,10</sup> Assumptions were made of rerouting process flows within each refinery, to bypass damaged or shutdown equipment. The product yields from both the normal crude oils and alternative crude oils were recalculated. In every instance, the reduced capacity of a process unit remaining operable after blast damage is reflected in the resultant limited product yields.

The combined effects of equipment shutdown, rerouting process flows, and limited capacities of remaining equipment reduces refinery throughput after 1 psi to about one-half to one-fourth of initial capacity. If a refinery must use alternative crude oils, the throughput is reduced further.

At the overpressure that reduces the cooling towers to 70 percent capacity (0.3-0.5  $psi^{9,10}$ ), the capacities of all processing units is considered at 70 percent of initial capacity and the refinery production estimated for this condition.

At the 1.0 psi overpressure, the crude topping, vacuum flashing, light oil treating, and asphalt process units are considered shut down. Sufficient repair is made to the crude topping process unit to permit the refinery to operate at 50 percent of initial capacity. The vacuum flashing, light oil treating, and asphalt process units remain shut down. While the refinery is operating at 50 percent of initial capacity it is assumed

ومراجعهن فحابة التشلايكة

that all light oils find a market, even though they do not meet normal specifications; vacuum distillation units are assumed to process topped crude in the production of specialty products; and thermal cracking and catalytic cracking units are assumed to use some topped crude oil as a part of their input.

I

The product yields in each instance are summarized in Tables B-1 through B-6 for the six types of refineries. Yields are developed at 100 percent capacity with undamaged conditions, 70 percent capacity after 0.3 to 0.5 psi blast damage, and 50 percent capacity with appropriate volume modifications required for partial shutdown of equipment after 1.0 psi.

#### Table B-1

### PRODUCT YIELD FROM CRUDE OILS AFTER LOW BLAST OVERPRESSURE : LARGE FUEL NEFINERY

	P	roduction as a Perce	ent of acity		
illast condition	Independent	After 0 3-0 5 pet	Aftau 1 0 pat*		
Maximum capacity (%)	100%	70%	50%		
Crude gils and products:					
Normal: 30°-40° API Gulf					
Gasoline	54%	38%	26%		
Korosene	15	10	8		
Diesel	14	10	7		
Lube					
Fuel oil	13	9	7		
Asphalt					
Coke	4	3	2		
Total	100%	70%	50%		
Alternative: 20°-25" API West Coast					
Gasoline	1.25	9%	6%		
Kerosene	5	3	2		
Diesel	6	4	3		
Lube					
Fuel oil	13	9	7		
Asphalt					
Coke	2	1	1		
Total	38%	26%	19%		
Alternative: 20°-25° API Midcontinent					
Gasoline	8%	67	45		
Kerosene	4	3	2		
Diesel	4	3	2		
Lube					
Fuel oil	13	9	7		
Asphalt					
Coke	2	1			
Total	31%	225	155		

\* Emergency repairs made to crude topping process.

I

;

1.

1

1

141

1

-----

#### Table B-2

ţ

1

1

1.4.4.4.

.

ŧ

#### PRODUCT VIELD FROM CRUDE OILS AFTER LOW BLAST OVERPRESSURE: SHALL FUEL REFINERY

	p	roduction as a Percu	ercant of Capacity		
Blast condition	Undenseed	After 0.3-0.5 mmi	After 1.0 mm		
Maximum capacity (%)	1005	70%	50%		
Crude oil and products:					
Normal: 30°-40° API Gulf					
Gasoline	50%	35%	26%		
Kerosene	15	11	8		
Diesel	15	10	7		
Lube					
Fuel oil	15	11	9		
Asphalt	4	2			
Coke	1	1	**		
Total	100%	70%	50%		
Alternative: 20°-25° APi West Cosst					
Gasoline	13%	10%	7%		
Kerosene	5	4	Э		
Diesel	6	4	4		
Lube					
Fuel cil	15	11	9		
Asphalt	2	1			
Coke	1	1			
Total	425	31%	23%		
Alternative: 20°-25° API Midcontinent					
Gasoline	8%	65	3%		
Kerosene	4	3	2		
Diesel	i i	3	2		
Lube					
Fuel oil	15	11	9		
Asphalt	1	1			
Coke	_1				
Total	33%	24%	165		

\* Emergency repairs made to crude topping process.

.

#### Table B-3

-

•

1

.

#### PRODUCT YIELD FROM CRUDE OILS AFTER LOW BLAST OVERPRESSURE: COMPLETE PROCESSING REFINERY

	4 1	roduction as a Perce	nt of
Blast condition	Indexed	nitial Refinery Capa	eity
Maximum capacity (")	1005	70%	After 1.0 psi 50%
Crude oils and products:			
Normal: 30"~40" API Gulf			
Casoline	47%	392	13.4t
Kerősene	15	11	4
Diesel	15	10	/ ~
Lube		10 11	4
Fuel oil	11		•
Asphalt	3	6 1	"
Cake	2	1	*-
#****** = 1			
10(5)	100%	70%	50%
Alternative: 20°-25° API West Coast			
Ga inc	102	75	6 <b>7</b>
Kerosene	4	3	40 A
Diosel	5	4	-
Lute	3	2	3
Fuel oil	11	- x	~
Asphalt	1	-	6
Coke	1		
Total			
10 Lai	35%	24%	20%
Alternative: 20°-25° API Midcontinent			
Gasoline	6%	45	46
Kerosene	3	2	33
Diesel	3	2	<b>4</b>
Lube	2	2	<b>د</b> ,
Fuel oil	11		1
Asphalt	1		4
Colle	ĩ	1	
Total			
	275	195	15%

• Emergency repairs made to crude topping process.

#### Table 8-4

١

i

ŝ

į

A Design of the second s

i Na

「日本市市のである」で

1.74

5 × 1 × 1

「日本語語語を記述の」

· · ,

- -----

nan tanan sa

#### PRODUCT YIELD FROM CRUDE OILS AFTER LOW BLAST OVERPRESSURE: ASPHALT REFINERY

	P: 1:	roduction as a Perce hitigl Nefinery Capa	nt of city
Blast condition	Undamaged	After 0.3-0.8 psi	After 1.0 pai
Maximum capacity (%)	100%	70%	50%
Crude dils and products:			
Normal: 10 <sup>4</sup> -15 <sup>4</sup> API Heavy-Apphaltic			
Oaról ine	11%		25
<u> </u>	10	7	1
Dienel	11	*	1
Lube		**	au 94
Fuel oil	2	1	11
Asphalt	66	46	**
Coke		ید من نتینانیین	
Totul	100%	70%	15%
Alternative: 30"-40" API Gulf			
Gásóline	11%	<b>#</b> %	2%
Kercsene	4	3	1
Diesel	4	2	1
Lube			
Fuel oil	1	1	1
Asphalt	4	3	
Coke			
Total	24%	17%	35
Alternative: 20°-25° API West Coast			
Gasoline	11%	6%	15
Kerosene	5	4	*-
Diesel	7	4	1
Lube			
fuel oil <sup>†</sup>	4	3	1
Asphalt	14	10	
Coke			
Total	41%	295	3%
Alternative: 20°25' API Midcontinent			
Gasoline	11%	25	15
Kerosene	5	4	1
Diesel	6	4	1
Lube			
Fuel oil <sup>†</sup>	9	7	2
Asphalt	13	10	
Coke			
Total	445	33%	5%

• Emergency repairs made to crude topping process. † Some asphalt equipment used for fuel cils.

ţ

#### Table 8-5

. . .....

ł

\* 1 \*

のためのなる

with the state of the state of

### PROJECT VIELD FROM CRUDE OILS AFTER LOW BLAST OVERPRESSURE: ASPHALT AND LUBE REFINERY

	P	roduction as a Perce	nt ni
Blast condition	1	nitial Refinery Cana	
Maximum capacity (5)	Undamaged	After 0.3-0.5 pa1	After 1 C
	100%	705	ANK KIN DEX
Grude oils and products:			30 %
Normal: 10"-15" API Asphaltic-Lube			
Caseline			
Kerosene	57	45	1 \$
Diesel	3	Ĵ	4 A 1
Lube	15	10	1
Fuel oil	22	8	3
Asphalt	6	5	3
Coke	57	40	12
		••	**
Total	1000		<u> </u>
Alternative: 30"-40" API Gulf	100%	70%	22%
Gasolino			
Keronono	5%	45	
Dienol	2	2	A 14
Lube	2	3	* -
Fuel of	2	1	*-
Annhalt		-	
Coke	2	2	*-
	~~	-	~
Total			
Alternative: 20"-25" ADT Walk W	13%	10%	12
Country of the Ari west Coast			
Useoline	<b>5</b> 2		
AUTOSORO	7	4%	17
Diasel	3	1	1
Lube	3	2	1
Fuel oil	3	1	1
Auphult	*	1	2
Coke	1	3	~ •
Total			~-
10.041	235	1.94	-
Alternative: 20°-25° API Midcontinent		***	55
Gasoline			
Kerosono	2,2	45	22
Diesel	3	3	1
Lube	3	3	ĩ
Fuel oil	J	2	1
Asphalt	4	3	2
Coke	8	6	
49182	26%	91 (	
		41.14	65

· Emergency repairs made to crude topping process.

- ----

7

#### Table B-6

. . .

~

,

ı

والمريح ومعامد بالمحام معا معاومات

1

;

į

.

.

-----

#### PRODUCT YIELD FROM CRUDE OILS AFTER LOW DLAST OVERPRESSURE: LUBE REFINERY

	P	roduction as a Perce	nt of
Digt condition	llaidean a sea d	nitial Refinery Capa	<u>eity</u>
Maximum capacity (%)	100%	Alter 0.3-0.5 pei	After 1.0 pmi 50%
Crude oils and products:			مند <sub>ک</sub> ونور بنی رنی منه کار اور
Normal: 30"-45" API Lube			
Gasoline	425	108	
Xerosene	1.4	30%	217
Diesel	15	11	•
Lube	17	10	7
Fuel oil	11		•
Asphalt		1	6
Coke			÷ •,
**-*-*	-		
lotal	100%	70%	50%
Alternative: 30°-40° API Gulf			
Gasoline	39%	9 <i>64</i>	
Kerosene	14	20%	215
Diesel	14	10	7
Lube	14	y 10	7
Fuel oil	*1	10	
/ phalt	••	1	6
Coke	**		**
<b>a</b>		بط 60 والمتحكية	
Total	92%	62%	49%
Alternative: 20°-25° API West Coast			
Gasoline	75		
Kerosene	4	57.	42
Diesel		3	2
Lube	7	2	3
Fuel oil	,	•	4
Asphalt	**	1	6
Coke		**	
<b>-</b>			
Total	345	22%	19%
Alternative: 20°-25° API Midcontinent			
Gasoline	45	3%	25
	3	2	2
Viezei	3	2	2
	5	3	3
ruel oil	11	7	6
Asphalt			-
CORE	<b></b>		
Total	20=		د نفييب
	40%	17%	15%

\* Emergency repairs made to crude topping process.

#### Appendix C

2 -2 -2 -

....

Ţ,

and the second second

,

.....

العماديون بمرارين

PRODUCT YIELD FROM CRUDE OILS AT FOUR STAGES OF REPAIR

and the same of the same

#### Appendir C

#### PRODUCT YIELD FROM CRUDE OILS AT FOUR STAGES OF REPAIR

This appendix details the estimated product yields from each of the six types of refineries after each of the four stages of reconstruction summarized in Section V of this report. For the large and small fuel types and the complete processing refineries, these repair stages are:

- A. Repair crude topping unit
- B. Repair processing units utilized in cracking processes
- C. Repair processing units utilized in upgrading of products
- D. Repair all other processing units

Slight modifications of these stages are considered for the specialty refineries to permit the production of some of the necessary nonfuels products. The repair sequences are detailed in Table 7 in the main text.

In all instances, the repaired equipment is considered to be returned to initial capacity. At Repair Stages A, B, and C, it is necessary to reroute process flows within each refinery to bypass the process units not yet repaired. After Repair Stage D, all process units are at initial capacities.

A summary of the pertinent factors of the products produced after each repair stage is outlined below.

#### Large fuel refinery:

- A. Low octane gasoline, kerosene, and diesel are produced as raw stocks. Balance of crude oil is produced as fuel oils.
- B. Larger volume and improved quality gasoline is produced.
- C. Light oil products are "on-grade."
- D. Coke is produced.

#### Small fuel refinery:

- A. Low octane gasoline, kerosene, and diesel are produced as raw stocks. Balance of crude oil is produced as fuel oils.
- B. Larger volume and improved quality gasoline is produced.
- C. Light oil products are "on-grade."
- D. Asphalt is produced.

Complete processing refinery:

- A. Low octane gasoline, kerosene, and diesel are produced as raw stocks. Balance of crude oil is produced as fuel oils.
- B. Larger volume and improved quality gasoline is produced.
- C. Light oil products are "on-grade."
- D. Asphalt and coke are produced.

#### Asphalt refinery:

- A. Low octane gasoline, kerosene, and diesel are produced as raw stocks. Balance of crude oil is produced as fuel oils.
- B. Asphalt is produced.
- C. Larger volume and improved quality gasoline is produced.
- D. Light oil products are "on-grade."

Lube refinery:

- A. Low octane gasoline, kerosene, and diesel are produced as raw stocks. Balance of crude oil is produced as fuel oils.
- B. Lubes and greases are produced.
- C. Larger volume and improved quality gasoline is produced.
- D. Light oil products are "on-grade."

After each repair stage, the product yield for each refinery has been calculated by methods comparable to those indicated in Appendix B. The product percentages produced reflect both the availability of repaired equipment, the equipment capacities, and the composition of the crude oil used. The repair sequence selected results in the individual refinery product percentages summarized in Tables C-1 through C-6. In all cases, production is shown as the percentage of initial refinery capacity.

----

7

Ŧ

#### PRODUCT YIELD FROM CRUDE OILS AT FOUR REPAIR STAGES : LARGE FUEL REFINERY

Productio	R 85 8	Percent	of
Initial R	efiner	y Capaci	ty

7

ANTONIA STATE OF STREET

-item with - -

And the state of the second

アンキャー コークマント

ś

		Norma1		
		Crude 011	Alternativ	• Crude Oils
Repair		30°-40° API	20°-25° API	20°-25° API
Stage	Product	Guif	West Coast	Midcontinent
A	<b>Qasoline</b>	13%	4%	3%
	Kerosene	6	3	3
	Diesel	5	4	3
	Lube		~ -	
	Fuel oil	13	13	13
	Asphalt			
	Coke			
	Total	37%	24%	22%
в	Gasoline	22%	7%	4%
	Kerosene	8	4	3
	Diesel	7	4	3
	Lube			
	Fuel oil	13	13	13
	Asphalt			
	Coke			<u> </u>
	Total	50%	28%	23%
с	Gasoline	33%	10%	7%
	Kerosene	10	4	3
	Diese1	9	5	3
	Lube			
	Fuel oil	13	13	13
	Asphalt			
	Coke			
	Total	65%	32%	26%
D	Gasoline	54%	125	8%
	Kerosene	15	5	4
	Diesel	14	6	4
	Lube			
	Fuel oil	13	13	13
	Asphalt	*-		
	Coke		2	2
	Total	100%	38%	31%

.

#### PRODUCT YIELD FROM CRUDE OILS AT FOUR REPAIR STAGES: SMALL FUEL REFINERY

		Prod	uction as a Perc	ent of
		Init	ial Refinery Cap	acity
		Normal		
		Crude 011	Alternative	e Crude Oils
Reconstruction		30°-40° AP1	20°-25° API	20°-25° API
ätage	Product	Gulf	West Coast	Midcontinent
A	Gasoline	155	5%	45
	Kerosene	7	4	3
	Diesel	7	4	3
	Lube			<b>~</b> -
	Fuel oil	15	15	15
	Asphalt			
	Coke		<u></u>	
	Total	44%	28%	25%
в	Gasoline	29%	9%	6%
	Kerosene	9	4	3
	Diesel	9	5	4
	Lube			
	Fuel oil	15	15	15
	Asphalt	~-	· -	
	Coke			<u> </u>
	Total	62%	33%	28%
C	Gasoline	40%	11%	87.
	Kerosene	12	5	4
	Diesel	12	6	4
	Lube			
	Fuel oil	15	15	15
	Asphalt			
	Coke			
	Total	79%	37%	31%
D	Gasoline	50%	13%	8%
	Kerosene	15	5	4
	Diesel	15	6	4
	Lube			
	Fuel oil	15	15	15
	Asphalt	4	2	1
	Coke	_1		_ <u>i</u>
	Total	100%	42%	33%

• 1

1

-----

7

·····

......

2000年により、1900年に、1900年に、1900年に、1900年に、1900年に、1900年に、1900年に、1900年に、1900年に、1900年に、1900年に、1900年に、1900年に、1900年に、1900

#### PRODUCT YIELD FROM CRUDE OILS AT FOUR REPAIR STAGES: COMPLETE PROCESSING REFINERY

		Prod	uction as a Perc	ent of acity
		Normal		
		Crude Oil	Alternativ	e Crude Oils
Reconstruction		30 -40 API	20°-25° API	20 - 25 API
Stage	Product	Gulf	West Coast	Midcontinent
	0			
A	GISOLINE	113	<b>4</b> 72	3%
	Kerosene	5	3	4
	Diesel	ç	3	2
	Lube			
	Fuel 011	11	11	11
	Asphalt			
	CORE			
	Total	32%	21%	18%
в	Gasoline	14%	55	3%
	Kerosens	6	3	2
	Diesel	6	3	3
	Lube			
	Fuel cil	11	11	11
	Asphalt	==		
	Coke			
	Total	37%	22%	19%
С	Gasoline	29%	9%	45
	Kerogene	10	4	3
	Diesel	10	5	3
	Lube	5	2	2
	Fuel oil	11	11	11
	Asphalt			
	Coke			
	Total	65%	31%	23%
D	Queoline	47%	10%	6%
	Kerosene	15	4	3
	Diesel	15	5	3
	Lube	8	3	2
	Fuel oil	11	11	11
	Asphalt	2	1	1
	Coke		1	1
	Total	100%	35%	27%

154

كالمستحدة

-----

#### PRODUCT YIELD FROM CRUDE OILS AT FOUR REPAIR STACES: ASPHALY REPIRERY

		Production	AR & Percent	of Initial Nefir	ery Capacity
		Normal			ميسامي ومدالك ويستحصيني المتصريون والكالا فتقال
		Crude 011	A1	ternative Crude	Oils
Reconstruction		10 -15 AP1	30 -40 API	20"-23" API	20"-25" AP1
Stage	Product	Asphaltic	Gulf	West Coast	Midcontinent
٨	Gasoline	95	115	112	115
	Kerosene	10	5	8	8
	Dicsel	10	5	9	9
	Lube				
	Fuel oil	47	10	***	
	Asphalt	07	10	33	41
	Coke	ar is Thistical			
	Total	965	312	61%	695
B	Gasoline	95	11%	11%	115
	Kerosene	10	5	8	8
	Diese1	10	5	9	9
	Lube				
	Fuel oil ( Asphalt	67	10	33	41
	Coke				
	Total	96%	31%	61%	69%
C	Gasoline	10%	11%	115	115
	Kerosche	10	4	6	6
	Diesei	11	4	7	6
	Lube			~ =	
	Fuel oil Asphalt	67	7	20	25
	Coke				
	Total	98%	265	445	48%
D	Gasoline	11%	11%	115	11%
	Kerosena	10	4	5	5
	Diesel	11	4	6	6
	Lube				<b></b>
	Fuel oil	69			• -
	Asphalt	08	a	19	22
	Coke				
	Total	100%	245	41%	445

155

er .

ىب بە بىلەملىراۋاقلاردارىچە

7

7

Sec. Mar

ī

#### PRODUCT YIELD FROM CRUDE OILS AT FOUR REPAIR STADES: ABPRALT AND LUBE REFINERY

		Production a	s a Percent of	Initial Rafim	ery Capacity
		Normal Churche (143		annattur Pourie	0414
Maconstruction		10 -14 491	30 40 471	20°-25° API	20 - 25 AP1
<u> </u>	Product	Asphaltic-Lube	Gulf	West Coast	Midcontinent
	Gasoline	1%	5%	25	55
	Kerosene	4	3	4	4
	Diesel	12	2	4	4
	Lube				
	fuel oil	44		1 8	1.8
	Asphalt (	•5		20	••
	Coke				د تد +
	Total	40%	145	28%	31%
t	Gasoline	1%	3%	5%	5%
	Xerosene	5	2	4	4
	Diesel	14	2	4	4
	Lube	11	2	3	4
	Fuel oil	9		3	5
	Asphalt	54	3	9	9
	Coke			ar. 44	
	Total	945	14%	20%	31%
ç	Gasoline	45	5%	5%	5%
	Xurosene	5	2	3	3
	Diesel	15	2	4	4
	Lube	12	2	3	3
	Fuel oil	7		2	4
	Asphalt	56	з	7	9
	Coke				مو ما البربانية
	Total	995	145	245	28%
D	Gasoline	5%	5%	5%	5%
	Kerosene	5	2	Ĵ	з
	Dissel	15	2	3	3
	Lube	12	2	3	3
	Fuel oil	6		2	4
	Asphalt	57	2	7	8
	Coke	* * *			
	Total	100%	135	23%	26%

----

Ĩ

#### PRODUCT YIELD FROM CRUDE OILS AT FOUR REPAIR STACKS: LUBE REFIRERY

		Production	as a Percent of	of Initial Refin	ery Capacity
		Normal			
		Crude 011	A11	ternative Crude	011
econstruction		30'=45 API	30'=40' AFI	20°-25° API	20"-25" API
Stage	Product	Lube	Oulf	West Coast	Midcontinent
*	Gasoline	11%	11%	4%	3%
	Kerosene	5	5	2	2
	Diesel	5	5	3	3
	Lube				**
	Fuel oil	11	11	11	11
	Asphalt		••	**	÷
	Coke		قو ية معرية		
	Total	325	32%	20%	195
B.	Gasoline	22%	21%	5%	45
	Kercseze	9	9	4	3
	Diesel	9	9	5	3
	Lube	10	9	6	5
	Fuel oil	11	11	11	11
	Asphalt				
	Coke			<u> </u>	
	Total	61%	59%	31%	265
с	Gasoline	285	27%	75	45
	Kerosene	11	10	4	3
	Diesel	77	10	5	3
	Lube	12	10	6	5
	Fuel oil	11	11	11	11
	Asphalt				10 M
	Cok#		<u> </u>		
	Total	735	68%	335	265
a	Gasoline	42%	39%	75	45
	Kerosene	15	14	4	3
	Diesel	15	14	5	5
	Lube	17	14	7	5
	Fuel oil	11	11	11	11
	Asphalt				**
	Coke	ی ک میرینیون			
	Total	100%	925	345	265

157

and the second second

#### Appendix D

T

\*\* \*\*

Ĺ

.

2

and a subset of the subset of

-----

#### REPAIR REQUIREMENTS AT FOUR REPAIR STAGES AFTER BLAST OVERPRESSURE

#### Appendix D

#### REPAIR REQUIREMENTS AT FOUR REPAIR STAGES AFTER BLAST OVERPRESSURE

This appendix details the labor repair requirements for each of the six types of refineries after blast damage from overpressure of 1/2, 1, 5, and 10 psi, for each of the selected Ropair Stages: A, B, C, and D. Calculations follow the method outline in Section V, "Refinery Repair," in this report. The mathematical model is:

$$R_{B} = L \left[ 1 - e^{-k(p-x)^{y}} \right] \left[ m \left( \frac{C}{C_{o}} \right) + b \right],$$

where Rs = repair effort in man-days for each specified piece of equipment

- p = overpressure in psi
- C = size of equipment being investigated
- L, k, x, y, m, C, and b are the parameters of the selected items of equipment as listed in Table 9 in the main text.

At each selected overpressure, the parameters are applied to each piece of equipment at the sizes (values of C) and total numbers detailed in Appendix A to yield the estimated labor repair required. The results are totaled to indicate the total labor requirement for each process unit,

for each repair grage, for each select. erpressure, and for each type of refinery.

The totaled repair requirements are summarized for the six types of refineries at average capacities. Similar results are included for the calculations that were used to determine the effect of refinery size on repair requirements.

Values included on these tables are shown as calculated (not rounded), to permit an estimator to resequence process unit repair. Totalled repair requirement after resequencing would be rounded.

7

1

....

----

# KEPAIR REQUIREMENTS AFTER BLAST OVERPRESSURE, FOUR REPAIR STAGES: LARGE FUEL REFIRENC, 78,000 B/D CAPACITY

				R	spair Require	ments in M	an-Days		
Repeir		0	5 ps1		psi	5	pst	N.	psi
Stage	Process Unit	Each	Cumulative	Bach	Cumulative	Each	Cumulative	Each	Cumulative
۲	Crude topping Utilities and pipe supports	15, 364		54,062 0		72,074 841		93, 277 3, 942	
	Total	15,364	15,364	54,062	54,062	72,915	72,915	51,219	91, 219
æ	Vacuum flashing Thormal cracking Thermal reforming	3,076 1,923 70		10,826 6,778 247		14,609 9,524 435		17,736 21,137 1,457	
	Vis-breaking Catalytic cracking Catalytic reforming	464 4,922 2,003		1,646 17,349 7,056		2,410 25,694 10,391		4, 912 53, 057 27, 986	
	Total	12, 458	27,822	43, 893	97,955	63,063	135,978	126, 285	223, 504
C	Polymerization Alkylation Hydrogen treating Light oil treating	40 446 1,392 6,150		141 1,579 4,907 21,656		306 2,810 7,232 29,204		2,046 11,020 11,781 39,522	
٩	Total Coking	8,028 415	35, 850	<b>26, 283</b>	126, 238	39,552 2,267	175,530	<b>6</b> 4, 36 <b>9</b> 3, 922	287, 873
	Total	415	36, 255	1,461	127,699	2, 267	177,797	3, 922	291,795

T

1

1

1

1

**NAME** 

# REFAIR REQUIREMENTS AFTER BLAST OVERPRESSURE, FOUR REPAIR STAGES: LARGE FUEL REPINERY, 150,000 B/D CAPACITY

				a Se	pair Requires	ents in Ma	un-Days		
Repair		0	5 psi	"	psi	ŝ	ps1	01	psi
Stage	Frocess Unit	Each	Cumulative	Rach	<b>Cumulative</b>	Each	Cumulative	Kach	Cumulative
~	Crude topping Utilities and pipe supports	29,546 0		103, 965 0		138,561		176, 888 7, 209	
	Total	29,546	29,546	103, 935	103,935	140,135	140,135	184,097	184,097
2	Vacuum flashing	5,915		20,819		28,085		44, 999	
	Thermal cracking Thermal reforming	3, 693 123		458		18, 231 758		<b>39, 1</b> 37 2, 435	
	Vis-breaking	688		3,152		4,602		9,049	
	Catalytic cracking	9,469		33, 357		49,160		911,14	
	Catalytic reforming	3, 849		13, 555		16,813		51, 719	
	Total	23,949	53, 495	84,513	168,310	120,649	260,784	245, 276	129,375
υ	Polymerization	09		281		488		3,160	
	Alkylation	862		3,053		5, 397		20, 791	
	Hydrogen treating	2,666		9,396		13,814		22,068	
	Light oil treating	11,827		41,648		56,129		72,852	
	Total	15, 435	68,930	54,378	242,688	75,828	336,612	116,891	548, 266
۵	Coking	190		2,763		4, 298		7, 348	
	Total	790	69,720	2,783	245, 471	4,298	019,046	7,248	555,514

I

- 7

S.

(1) (1)

State Same

ł

-

1

ļ

.

i i

----

1

;

•

# REPAIR REQUIREMENTS AFTER BLAST OVERPRESSURE, FOUR REPAIR STAGES: SMALL FUEL REFIXERY, 24,000 B/D CAPACITY

					tepair Require	sments in	Kan-Days		
Repair		0	5 psi	1	psi		5 psi	91	ps1
Stage	Process Unit	Each	Cumulative	Each	Cumulative	Each	Cumulat Ave	Each	Cumulative
<	Crude topping Utilities and pipe supports	2,959		10,430		14,226		24, 833	
	Total	2,959	2,959	10,430	10,430	14,927	14,927	28,102	28,102
£	Vacuum flashing Thermal cracking Vir buanking	612 227 09		2,158 808 352		2,999 1,232		5, <b>99</b> 3 3,542 1,512	
	catalytic cracking Catalytic reforming	1,048		3,693		5,766		14,095	
	Total	2,402	5,361	8,476	18,906	12,684	27,811	141'61	61, 243
v	Polymerization Alkylation Bydrogen treating Light oil treating	20 80 1, 254		69 283 280 4, 121		177 619 699		л, 065 3, 262 3, 338 5, 215	
	Total	1,433	6,794	5,053	23, \$59	7,422	35, 233	14 <b>, 88</b> 0	76,123
ß	Coking Asphalt	8 8		70 175		234	**	<b>808</b> 531	
	Total	70	6,864	245	24, 204	527	35,760	1,339	77.462

Ï

•
•
•
•

,

į

1

•

i

•

1

2

1.346

# REPAIR REQUIREMENTS AFTER BLAST OVERPRESSURE, FOUR REPAIR STAGES: COMPLETE PROCESSING REFINERY, 194,000 B/D CAPACITY

Repair		0	ü psi		psi	vi	<b>Pa1</b>		1 251
Stage	Process Unit	Rach	Cumulative	Each	Cumulstive	Each	Cusulative	Lach	Cumulative
۲	Crude topping	39,884		140,330		186, 789		235, 472	
	Utilities and pipe supports	•		°		1,554		7, 209	
	Total	39,884	39,864	140,330	140,330	188,343	188,343	242,601	242,661
8	Vacuum flashing	3,699		13,015		17,650		30,109	
	Thormal cracking	1,185		4,128		6,067		14,479	
	Thermal reforming	617		3, 443		4,868		8,969	
	V1s-breaking	878		3,013		4, 382		8.721	
	Catalytic cracking	11,094		39,079		57,089		110,421	
	Catalytic reforming	3,996		14,072		20,440		52,746	
	Total	21,800	61,684	76,823	217,153	110,556	<b>296, 6</b> 99	225,447	468,128
U U	Polymerization	120		<b>5</b>		769		5,137	
	Alkylation	832		2,949		5,214		20,041	
	Mydrogen treating	2,666		9,396		13,814		22,066	
	Vacury distillation	2,367		8,335		11,621		30, 904	
	Lube and specialtics	1,702		5,969		10,611		23, 581	
	Light oil treating	11,827		41,648		56,129		72, 652	
	Total	19,514	81,198	68,719	285, 672	98,158	397,057	164,603	632,731
9	Coking	514		1,810		2, 667		5,095	
	Asphalt	316		1,115		1,583		1,953	
	Total	830	62,028	2,925	288, 797	4,470	401,527	7,048	639,779

166

----

!

i

# REPAIR REQUIRDENTS AFTER BLAST OVERPRESSURE, FOUR REPAIR STACES: ASPHALT REFINERY, 12,000 B/D CAPACITY

				Repa	ir kequirerent	is in Man-i	Jays		
Repair		°	.5 ps1		psi	5	ps 1	1	) psi
Stage	Process Unit	Each	Cumulative	Each	Cumulative	Each	Cumulative	Esch	Cumulativo
~	Crude topping Utilities and pipe supports	1,273		4,484		6, 144 182		8, 467	
	Total	1,273	1,273	4,484	4,484	6, 326	6, 326	9, 328	9, 32 <b>8</b>
æ	Vacuum flashing Asphalt	869 297		3,060		4, 212 1, 479		6,114 1,821	
	Total	1,166	2,439	4,105	8,589	5,691	12,017	7,935	17, 263
U	Thermal cracking Thermal reforming Catalytic cracking Catalytic reforming	¥ 8 8 8		5 <b>29</b> 70 70		826 173 256 240		2.176 614 1,140	
	Total	208	2,647	139	9,326	1,495	13,512	5, 540	22, 803
۵	Polymerization Light oil treating	10		35 1,672		154		934 1,129	
	Total	484	3, 131	1,707	11,035	2,491	16.003	5,063	27, 866

T

7

167

÷

Algebrain 1
Table D-6

「おおいたみないない」のなど、「おおおいまい」という、 いいない、ことの

# NEPAIR REQUIREMENTS AFTER BLAST OVERPRESSURE, FOUR REPAIR STATES: ASPHALT REFINERY, 14,000 B/D CAPACITY

				Repa	ifr Requirement	nto in Ma	n-Deva		
Nepalr Steen			5 pc1		psi		5 ps1	7	0 ps1
21810	Process Unit	Rech	Cumulative	Each	Cumulative	Each	Cumulati ye	Each	Cumulative
<	Crude topping Utilities and pipe supports	1,481		5, 214		7,146		9,735 863	
	Total .	1,481	1,481	5, 214	5, 214	7,351	7,351	10,696	10,696
æ	Vacium flashing Asphalt	1,007 346		3,547		4, 883		7,050	
	Total	1,353	2,834	4,767	186'6	6,606	13,957	B, 161	19,859
υ	Thermal cracking Thermai reforming Catalytic cracking Catalytic reforming	178 20 20		633 70 71 70		973 174 258 241		2,486 633 1,630 1,186	
	Total	236	3,072	844	10, 525	I,646	L5, 603	5,935	15,794
۵	Polymerization Light oil treating	10		35 1,951		137 2,724		881 4, 649	
	Total	563	3,635	1,386	12,811	2,861	18,464	5, 530	31.724

1

7

ï

そうないないであったいかいかいかいないないないが、そのないないないないないないないないないないないないない、これがあったのであるとのないないないないないないないないないないないないないないないないない

31,324

s, 88

18,464

Table D-7

;

# REPAIR REQUIREDREFTS AFTER BLAST OVERPRESSURE, FOUR REPAIR STACES: ASPHALT AND LUBE REFLICERY, 7,000 B/D CAPACITY

					Repair Requi	iresetts i	в Мал-Dзуя		
Repair		0	5 p#1	I	ps t		5 psi		0 ps1
Stage	Process Unit	Each	Cumulative	Each	Cumulative	Each	Cunulative		Cumulative
<	Crude topping Utilities and pipe supports	652		2, 299		3,203		4, 701 963	
	Total +	652	632	2, 299	2,299	3,408	3,405	5,664	5,664
\$	Vacuum distillation Asphalt Naphthetic lub: and	435 148		1,53 <b>2</b> 524		2,225 768		3, 204 1, 045	
	speckalties	8		161		686		3,689	
	Total	639	162,1	2,247	4, 546	3,679	7,027	7.968	13,652
J	Thermal cracking Thermal reforming Catalytic cracking Catalytic reforming	8 8 8 9		282 69 70 70		482 171 236 235		1,414 593 1,645 1,025	
	Tetal	139	1,430	16+	5,037	1,144	<b>1</b> , 231	4,677	16, 329
۵	Polymerization Light oil treating	218		8		134		741.	
	fotal	228	1,658	807	5,844	1,274	9, <u>1</u> 03	<b>B</b> , 529	21,653

T

7

7

••

### Table D-5

• - •

# NEPAIR REQUIREMENTS AFTER BLAST OVERPRESSURE, FOUR REPAIR STACES: LUBE METHERT, 4,000 B/D CAPACITY

e Unit Each Cumulative	0.5 pit Each Cumulative	5 pst Cumulative	1	292	1 psi Cumulative	Fach 5	Currichess Currichester	1	10 pei Cumulative
503 pipe supports 0	503 0 1			1,771		2,417		4,048	
503 503	503 <b>5</b> 03	<b>203</b>		1.771	1,771	2, 485	5" <b>48</b> 4	4, 399	4, 399
Jetion 138 Jultics 66	138 86			487 293		134 255		1,375	
121 122	224 727	121		780	2, 551	1,479	3,967	<b>₩</b> ,	9, 390
би <b>д 10</b> 15.0 20 14.1 гд 79 20.1 гд 79 20.1 гд 60	8 8 2 9			20: 70 279 279				810 8,103 1,436	
169 896	169 896	896		\$94	3,145	1,278	5, 245	5,062	14,452
1 10 20 20 138	10 80 1138			35 76		730 730		784 1, 275	

18,363

3, 111

6, 321

1,076

3,738

593

1,064

168

Total

.....

ากการการที่สาวการสี่ได้เหตุสาร์ที่มีสาวการสารสี่ได้เกิดสารสี่ได้เสียง

١

### Table D-9

-----

.....

1

# REPAIR REQUIREMENTS AFTER BLAST OVERPRESSURE, FOUR REPAIR STARES: LURE REFINERY, 27,000 B/D CAPACITY

				Repai	ir Requirement	te in Man-	Cays		
Repair		0	5 255		psi		5 951	21	I A
Stage	Process Unit	Each	Curulative	f) f)	Cumulative	Each	Conclutive	Each	Comulative
٩	Crude topping Utilities and pipe supports	3, <del>1</del> 03		11,978		16,243		1, 507	
	Total	3, 403	3, 403	11,975	11,978	16, 566	16,566	14,741	24, 781
iii	Vacuum distillation Lube and specialties	948 521		3, 335		817.) 3.631.E		6,404	
	Total	1,469	4,872	5,162	17,140	8,553	25,119	17,462	42, 243
U	Thermal cracking Thermal reforming Catalytic cracking Catalytic reforming	178 139 514 267		633 488 1, #16 943		967 747 2,948 1,538		2, 662 1, 753 5, 666	
	Total	<b>\$60</b> ' X	5,970	3,880	21,025	6,240	0f£" 1£	16,434	60, 677
٩	Polymerization Aikylation Light oil treating	10 89 899		35 316 3,170		118 712 6.408		928 309-1 7,019	
	Total	966	6,968	3, 523	24,543	5, 258	35, 617	11, 641	72,115

\*\*\*\*\*

i

ň

where the second second

ł

### REFERENCES

7

- Nelson, W. L., Petroleum Refinery Engineering, 4th Edition, McGraw-Hill, 1958
- 2. Stormont, D. H., refining ed, The Oil and Gas Journal, Issues 1958 to date, published weekly, The Petroleum Publishing Company
- Rocq, Margaret M., U.S. Sources of Petroleum and Natural Gas Statistics, A Project of the Petroleum Section, Science-Technology Division, Special Libraries Association, 1961
- 4. Petroleum Facts & Figures, American Petroleum Institute, 1967 Ed.
- 5. Minerals Yearbook 1987, Vol. I-II, Metals, Minerals, and Fuels, Crude Petroleum and Petroleum Products, U.S. Bureau of Mines, United States Department of the Interior, 1968
- Bureau of Nines, Report of Investigations, RI 6819, Analyses of Crude Oils from 546 Important Oilfields in the United States, United States Department of the Interior, 1966
- 7. "National Petroleum News Factbook Issue 1968," National Petroleum News, Mid-May 1968
- 8. Bland, William F., and Robert L. Davidson, Petroleum Processing Handbook, McGraw-Hill, 1967
- Critical Industry Repair Analysis Petroleum Industry, prepared for the Office of Civil Defense under Contract OCD-PS-64-201, OCD Subtask 3311 A, Report No. CIRA-4, Advance Research, Inc., October 1965, DDC No. AD 482 909L
- Van Horn, William H., Carl R. Foget, and Milton Staackman, Damage to the Basic Chemical Industry from Nuclear Attack and Resultant Requirements for Repair and Reclamation, URS 687-4, prepared for Stanford Research Institute and Office of Civil Defense, Contract Number 12475 (6300A-300), Work Unit 3311 B, June 1968

-

No.

- Perry J. H., Chemical Engineers Handbook, Second Edition, McGraw-Hill, 1941
- Badgar, W. L., and W. L. McCabe, Elements of Chemical Engineering, Second Edition, McGraw-Hill, 1936
- 13. Engineering News Record, published weekly, McGraw-Hill
- 14. The Thomas Register of American Manufacturers, Fifty-Ninth Edition, 1969

### BIBLIOGRAPHY

Annual Statistical Review: U.S. Petroleum Industry Statistics, 1940-1966, American Petroleum Institute, 1967

Cameron Hydraulic Data, Eleventh Edition, Ingersoll-Rand Company, 1942

Civil Defense and Emergency Planning for the Petroleum and Gas Industries, Volume I - Principles and Procedures, Volume II - Guide and Sample Company Plans, National Petroleum Council, 19 March 1964

Domestic Oil Requirements and Economic Incentives, A Forecast to 1980, Petroleum Industry Research Foundation, Inc., February 1967

Glasstone, Samuel, The Effects of Nuclear Weapons, U.S. Dept. of Defense, published by U.S. Atomic Energy Commission, April 1962

- McFadden, Fred R., and Charles D. Rigelow, Development of Rapid Shutdown Techniques for Critical Industries, prepared for Office of Civil Defense on Contract OCD-PS-64-201(32), Work Unit 2321A, January 1966, DDC No. AD 643 573
- Methods of Estimating Production for Industries Following Nuclear Attack, John Cone, 27 April 1959
- Minvielle, L., and W. Van Horn, Recovery of Petroleum Refineries Contaminated by Fallout, USNRDL-TR-656, 24 June 1963, DDC No. AD 419 334
- 1963 Census of Manufacturers: Distillate and Residual Fuel Oil Consumed in Manufacturing Industries: 1962, U.S. Dept. of Commerce, Bureau of the Census. November 1967
- 1963 Census of Manufacturers, Petroleum Refining and Related Industries, Petroleum and Coal Products, Major Group 29, U.S. Dept. of Commerce, Bureau of the Census, March 1966
- Palmer, Mona ed., International Petroleum Register, 38th Fdition, 1966/ 1967
- Technical Data Book, Petroleum Refining, American Petroleum Institute, 1966

مسببة مايتر بالألا

Thayer, Sanford B., and W. lis W. Shaner, The Effects of Nuclear Attacks on the Petroleum Inc. try, SRI Project No. IU-3094, prepared for Office of Civil Ds' ase Mobilization under Contract Nos. CDM-SR-59-19 and CDM-SR-6 7, July 1960, DDC No. AD 276 539

T

1

......

Security Clas	sification			
	DOCUMENT CON	TROL DATA - R	L D	
(Security classi ORIGINATINE ACTIVI	lication of title, budy of abottact and indexing T < (Corporate author)	ennelellen musi be c	AN. REPORT	ECURITY CLASS FICATION
<b>5</b> • • • • • • • •	nd Desseven Tradducks		t t	Unclassified
Stanio	ra Kesearch Institute		IL BROUP	
Menio I	PErk, Calliornia 94025			
Retimai	ting Production and Repair 1	effort in Ria	it-Damager	4
Petrole	aum Refineries			-
DESCRIPTIVE NOTES	(Type al report and inclusive dates)			
Final	Report			
Frank l	E. Walker			
				Tet up on name
July 1	969	208	T PAGLI	14
CONTRACT OR GRA	NT NO.	M. ORIGINATOR	REPORT NU	1 /BER(8)
1	DAHC 20-67-C-0136	-0136		
PROJECT NO.	Work Unit 33110	SRI	Project No	o, 6300-620
	FOIR ONLY SOLLS	N. OTHER REPO	AT NOIS (Any	other numbers that may be easigned
		(Bile report)		
This di its di: BUP/LEMENTARY N	ocument has been approved for stribution is unlimited.	or public rela	Base and s MILITARY ACT of Civil 1	sale; TIVITY Defense
This di its di Bupflementary n	ocument has been approved for stribution is unlimited.	or public rela	ease and : MilitARY ACT of Civil 1 of the Sec	sale; Defense cretary of the Army 20310
This di its di SUPFLEMENTARY H	ocument has been approved for stribution is unlimited.	or public rele 12. SPONSORING Office Washing imating survi	ease and : MILITARY ACT of Civil 1 of the Sec ton, D.C.	sale; Defense cretary of the Army 20310 oleum refinery
This di its di SUFFLEMENTARY N ABSTRACT This repo	ocument has been approved for stribution is unlimited.	or public relation of fice of the sponsoning of the sponsoning of the sponsoning of the sponson	ease and : of Civil ) of the Sec ton, D.C. ving petre	sale; Defense cretary of the Army 20310 oleum refinery ility following exposu
This di its di supriementany n Assimity in conselected bl	ocument has been approved for stribution is unlimited.	or public rela	ease and a of Civil 1 of the Sec ton, D.C. ving petro ion capabi informat	sale; Defense cretary of the Army 20310 oleum refinery ility following exposu ion required for post-
This di its di suprilementary n This, repo sapability and so selected bl attack decisio	ocument has been approved for stribution is unlimited.	or public rele Office Office Washing imating survi store product hod addresses d facilitate	ease and : of Civil 1 of the Sector, D.C. ving petro ion capab: informat: decisions	sale; Defense cretary of the Army 20310 oleum refinery ility following exposu ion required for post- of which refineries
This di its di sufficementary n This repo apability and to selected bl ttack decisio bhould be rest	ocument has been approved f stribution is unlimited. Tt details a method for est repair effort needed to re ast overpressures. The met n areas. The results shoul ored and to what degree, ba	or public rela Office Office Washing imating survision store product hod addresses d facilitate sed on produc	ease and : of Civil 1 of the Sec ton, D.C. ving petro ion capabi informat decisions ts needed	sale; Defense cretary of the Army 20310 oleum refinery ility following exposu ion required for post- of which refineries and repair effort
This di its di suprilementany n Assimilty and to selected bl attack decisio should be rest available.	ocument has been approved for stribution is unlimited. NOTES rt details a method for est repair effort needed to re ast overpressures. The met n areas. The results shoul ored and to what degree, ba	or public rela Office Office Washing imating survi store product hod addresses d facilitate sed on produc	ease and a of Civil 1 of the Sec ton, D.C. ving petro ion capabi informati decisions ts needed	sale; Defense cretary of the Army 20310 oleum refinery ility following exposu ion required for post- of which refineries and repair effort
This di its di supricementany n This, repo apability and to selected bl ttack decisio should be rest vailable. The many	ocument has been approved for stribution is unlimited. Totes rt details a method for est repair effort needed to re ast overpressures. The met n areas. The results shoul ored and to what degree, ba variations inherent in petr	or public rela Office Office Washing imating survi store product hod addresses d facilitate sed on produc oleum refinin	ease and a of Civil 1 of the Sec ton, D.C. ving petro ion capabi informat decisions ts needed g have be	sale; Defense cretary of the Army 20310 oleum refinery ility following exposu ion required for post- of which refineries and repair effort en reduced to readily
This di its di supricementary n This, repo sapability and to selected bl attack decisio should be rest available. The many sable numbers	ocument has been approved f stribution is unlimited. Totes Tt details a method for est repair effort needed to re ast overpressures. The met ored and to what degree, ba variations inherent in petr : the total U.S. refinerie	or public rela Office of Office of Washing imating survisions tore product hod addresses d facilitate sed on produc oleum refinin s are classif	ease and : of Civil 1 of the Sector, D.C. ving petro ion capabi- informat: decisions ts needed g have be- ied by si- ielty typ	sale; Defense cretary of the Army <u>20310</u> oleum refinery ility following exposu ion required for post- of which refineries and repair effort en reduced to readily x refinery types; crud
This di its di suprilementary n Assfract This repo apability and to selected bl attack decisio should be rest available. The many asable numbers bils are group are typified b	ocument has been approved f stribution is unlimited. Tt details a method for est repair effort needed to re ast overpressures. The met n areas. The results shoul ored and to what degree, ba variations inherent in petr : the total U.S. refinerie ed into three major types a by the 16 most prominent: al	or public rela Office of Office of Washing imating survi store product hod addresses d facilitate sed on produc oleum refinin s are classif nd three spec l refinery eq	ease and a of Civil 1 of the Sec ton, D.C. ving petro ion capaba informata decisions ts needed g have be ied by si ialty typ uipment i	sale; Defense cretary of the Army 20310 oleum refinery ility following exposu ion required for post- of which refineries and repair effort en reduced to readily x refinery types; cruc es; refining processes s represented by 25
This di its di suprisementany n Assimation This, repo capability and co selected bl attack decisio should be rest available. The many sable numbers bils are group are typified b tems most vit	ocument has been approved for stribution is unlimited. Total rt details a method for est repair effort needed to re ast overpressures. The met ored and to what degree, ba variations inherent in petr : the total U.S. refinerie ed into three major types a by the 16 most prominent; al al to process operation, mo	or public rela Office Office Washing imating survi store product hod addresses d facilitate sed on produc oleum refinin s are classif nd three spec l refinery eq st susceptibl	ease and a militARY ACT of Civil 1 of the Sec ton, D.C. ving petro informat: decisions ts needed g have be ied by si ialty typ uipment i e to blas	sale; Defense cretary of the Army 20310 oleum refinery ility following exposu ion required for post- of which refineries and repair effort en reduced to readily x refinery types; cruc es; refining processes s represented by 25 t damage, and requiring
This di its di suprilementany n Asstract This, repo apability and to selected bl attack decisio should be rest available. The many asable numbers bils are group are typified b tems most vit largest labor	ocument has been approved for stribution is unlimited. Totes rt details a method for est repair effort needed to re ast overpressures. The met ored and to what degree, ba variations inherent in petr : the total U.S. refinerie ed into three major types a by the 16 most prominent; al al to process operation, mo input for repair; and petro	or public rela Office Office Washing imating survision istore product hod addresses d facilitate sed on produce oleum refinin s are classif nd three spec l refinery eq st susceptibl leum products	ease and a military act of Civil 1 of the Sec ton, D.C. ving petro informat: decisions ts needed g have be- ied by si ialty typ- uipment i e to blas are repr	sale; Defense cretary of the Army 20310 oleum refinery ility following exposu ion required for post- of which refineries and repair effort en reduced to readily x refinery types; cruc es; refining processes s represented by 25 t damage, and requiring esented by seven major
This di its di supricementany n Assimation This repo sapability and to selected bl attack decisio should be rest attack decisi	ocument has been approved f stribution is unlimited. Total rt details a method for est repair effort needed to re ast overpressures. The met ored and to what degree, ba variations inherent in petr : the total U.S. refinerie ed into three major types a by the 16 most prominent; al al to process operation, mo input for repair; and petro	or public relation of public relation of the second state of the s	ease and a militARY ACT of Civil 1 of the Sec ton, D.C. ving petre ion capabi- informat: decisions ts needed g have be- ied by si- ialty typ- uipment i e to blas are repr	sale;
This di its di supricementary n Assfract This repo capability and to selected bl attack decisio should be rest available. The many isable numbers bils are group are typified b tems most vit largest labor groups. In this c	ocument has been approved f stribution is unlimited. Tt details a method for est repair effort needed to re ast overpressures. The met n areas. The results shoul ored and to what degree, ba variations inherent in petr : the total U.S. refinerie wed into three major types a sy the 16 most prominent; al al to process operation, mo input for repair; and petro	or public relation of public relation of the second of the	ease and a militARY ACT of Civil 1 of the Sec ton, D.C. ving petro informat: decisions ts needed g have be- ied by si- ialty typ- uipment i e to blas are repr producti ethod to	sale;
This di its di suprilementany n Asstract This repo capability and co selected bl attack decisio should be rest available. The many isable numbers bils are group are typified b items most vit largest labor groups. In this c requirements i is illustrated	ocument has been approved f stribution is unlimited. Totes rt details a method for est repair effort needed to re ast overpressures. The met n areas. The results shoul ored and to what degree, ba variations inherent in petr : the total U.S. refinerie wed into three major types a by the 16 most prominent; al al to process operation, mo input for repair; and petro context the method of estima is detailed, and the applica	or public relation of the minimum of	ease and a militARY ACT of Civil 1 of the Sec ton, D.C. ving petro informat: decisions ts needed g have be ied by si ialty typ uipment i e to blas are repr producti ethod to	sale;
This di its di suprimentany n Asstance This repo capability and to selected bl attack decisio should be rest available. The many isable numbers bils are group are typified b items most vit largest labor groups. In this c requirements i is illustrated Results i	ocument has been approved f stribution is unlimited. Totes rt details a method for est repair effort needed to re ast overpressures. The met ored and to what degree, ba variations inherent in petr : the total U.S. refinerie ed into three major types a by the 16 most prominent; al al to process operation, mo input for repair; and petro context the method of estima s detailed, and the applica L()	or public relation of fice of the second sec	ease and a military act of Civil 1 of the Sec ton, D.C. ving petro informat: decisions ts needed g have be- ied by si ialty typ- uipment i e to blas are repr producti ethod to duced to	sale;
This di its di supricementary n Assimation This repo capability and to selected bl attack decision should be rest available. The many isable numbers bits are group are typified b items most vit largest labor groups. In this c requirements i is illustrated Results i 0.3-0.5 psi, a	ocument has been approved f stribution is unlimited. Tt details a method for est repair effort needed to re ast overpressures. The met ored and to what degree, ba variations inherent in petr : the total U.S. refinerie ed into three major types a by the 16 most prominent; al al to process operation, mo input for repair; and petro context the method of estima s detailed, and the applica L() . ndicate that production cap and to about 50 percent after	or public relation of fice of the second state	ease and a militARY ACT of Civil 1 of the Sec ton, D.C. ving petre ion capabi- informat: decisions ts needed g have be- ied by si- ialty typ- uipment i e to blas are repr producti- ethod to er overpr	sale;
This di its di supricementany n Assimation This repo capability and to selected bl attack decisio should be rest available. The many isable numbers oils are group are typified b items most vit largest labor groups. In this c requirements i is illustrated Results i 0.3-0.5 psi, a	ocument has been approved f stribution is unlimited. Tt details a method for est repair effort needed to re ast overpressures. The met n areas. The results shoul ored and to what degree, ba variations inherent in petr : the total U.S. refinerie wed into three major types a sy the 16 most prominent; al al to process operation, mo input for repair; and petro context the method of estima s detailed, and the applica L() 	or public relation of fice of the office office of the office office office of the office off	ease and a militARY ACT of Civil 1 of the Sec ton, D.C. ving petro informat: decisions ts needed g have be- ied by si ialty typ- uipment i e to blas are repr producti ethod to duced to er overpr	sale;
This di its di supricementary n Asstract This repo capability and to selected bl attack decisio should be rest available. The many isable numbers oils are group are typified b items most vit largest labor groups. In this c requirements i is illustrated Results i 0.3-0.5 psi, a psi refineries ments and part	ocument has been approved f stribution is unlimited. Totes Tt details a method for est repair effort needed to re ast overpressures. The met n areas. The results shoul ored and to what degree, ba variations inherent in petr : the total U.S. refinerie ed into three major types a by the 16 most prominent; al al to process operation, mo input for repair; and petro context the method of estima s detailed, and the applica l.() 	or public relation of public relation of fice of the office office of the office offic	ease and a military act of Civil 1 of the Sec ton, D.C. ving petro informat: decisions ts needed g have be ied by si ialty typ uipment i e to blas are repr producti ethod to duced to er overpr rder to o stage. include r	sale;
This di its di supricementary n assimilation capability and to selected bl attack decision should be rest available. The many isable numbers bils are group are typified b ltems most vit largest labor groups. In this c requirements i is illustrated Results i 0.3-0.5 psi, a psi refineries ments and part Additions gasoline indus	ocument has been approved f stribution is unlimited. Totes rt details a method for est repair effort needed to re ast overpressures. The met ored and to what degree, ba variations inherent in petr : the total U.S. refinerie ed into three major types a by the 16 most prominent; al al to process operation, mo input for repair; and petro context the method of estima s detailed, and the applica L() . Indicate that production cap and to about 50 percent after are shut down and must be tial production are calculated to potential areas of method atries.	or public relation of public relation of fice of the office office office of the office office of the office office office of the office offic	ease and a militARY ACT of Civil 1 of the Sec ton, D.C. ving petro informat: decisions ts needed g have be- ied by si ialty typ- uipment i e to blas are repr producti ethod to duced to er overpr order to o stage. include p	sale;
This di its di aufricementany m Assimation This repo capability and to selected bl attack decisio should be rest available. The many isable numbers bits are group are typified b items most vit largest labor groups. In this c requirements i is illustrated Results i 0.3-0.5 psi, a psi refineries ments and part Additiona gasoline indus	ocument has been approved f stribution is unlimited. Tt details a method for est repair effort needed to re ast overpressures. The met ored and to what degree, ba variations inherent in petr : the total U.S. refinerie ed into three major types a by the 16 most prominent; al al to process operation, mo input for repair; and petro context the method of estima is detailed, and the applica L() . ndicate that production cap and to about 50 percent after are shut down and must be tial production are calculated potential areas of method atries.	or public relation of public relation of fice of the office office of the office offic	ease and a militARY ACT of Civil 1 of the Sec ton, D.C. ving petro ion capabi informat: decisions ts needed g have be ied by si ialty typ uipment i e to blas are repr producti ethod to duced to er overpr rder to o stage. include p	sale;

1

•

I

•

:

. . . . . . . .

·

ļ

		LIN	K A	LIN		LIN
ngt wongs		AOLE	WY	APLE	**	
						T
rude oils		1		1		1
sfinery types			[			ł
lefining processes			1	1		1
Refinery equipment						1
Petroleum products			]	1		1
Production capability			{			ſ
lepair requirements			]			1
lepair stages						}
artial production			1			1
						1
			l		,	{
			l			ł
		1				1
						ł
			i i	1		ſ
			1			1
			ļ			1
		1	ł	1		
		}	]	1		1
			1			
						1
				1		
			{			1
		1				
,						
						1
					l	
				}		{
						<b>i</b> 1
				[ ]		
				}		<b>j</b>
		1		[ ]	i	
				( İ		
						} 1
				; I		
				{		
	182	<b></b>	Unc	lassifi	ed	
			Recursity	Clessific	ation	

ł

7